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Mr. Lo Peter (Chairman) (Note 2)

Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien

Mr. Chen Johnny (Note 3)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Chen Sun-Te (Chairman)

Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien

Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony (Note 1)
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Notes:

1. With effect from 1 April 2016, Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony ceased to be
the chairman of the Nomination Committee and was appointed as a
member of the Remuneration Committee.

2. With effect from 1 April 2016, Mr. Lo Peter ceased to be a member of
the Remuneration Committee and was appointed as the chairman of
the Nomination Committee.

3. With effect from 1 April 2016, Mr. Chen Johnny was appointed as a
member of each of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Investment, Strategy and Development Committee.

% — % BB R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. 8
Annual Report 2016 £ #



R R

Financial Summary

SUMMARY OF RESULTS
BZ12A31BLEE
Year ended 31 December

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
ARBTRTE ARETT ARETT AREFTT ARETRT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Wz Revenue 20,985,532 22,101,871 22,487,671 23,328,991 21,405,723
E7 Gross profit 7,227,800 8,140,733 7,308,387 7,779,629 7,401,844
B P15 8 A& Profit before income tax 1,067,972 1,170,761 414,678 1,116,048 1,076,929
FEfiFEX Income tax expense (460,643) (336,256) (129,141) (199,636) (221,041)
FEHEF Profit for the year 607,329 834,505 285,537 916,412 855,888

Vi/NETL £ Profit attributable to equity
BHEAELER holders of the Company 607,329 834,505 285,537 916,412 855,888
ey Dividends 121,466 166,901 57,107 183,282 171,178
AR¥S ARES ARES ARES ARES
RMB cents RMB cents RMB cents RMB cents RMB cents
BRERAF Basic earnings per share 14.06 19.32 7.18 25.46 23.78

MW12B31H
As at 31 December

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
AR®TRT AREFTRT AREBEFT AREFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
HEE Total assets 20,705,427 21,606,419 21,264,409 18,967,792 16,539,813
waE Total liabilities 8,665,316 10,004,016 10,427,671 10,825,624 8,868,745
EmAsE Total equity 12,040,111 11,602,408 10,836,738 8,142,168 7,671,068
BeMBELSEMEY  Cashand cash equivalents 2,076,839 1,473,317 1,804,022 1,413,929 2,290,809
mE (BE)F5E Net current (Liabilities) (1,868,005)  (1,337,930) (632,403) (828,438) (30,930)
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Chairman’s Statement

The growth of GDP of the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) continued to slow down, with a year-on-year growth
rate decreased to 6.7% in 2016. The changes in the political
situation in Europe and America are affecting the international
economic development, resulting in a sharp depreciation of
the Renminbi exchange rate. Costs of certain raw materials
increased, and the food and beverage industry has not yet
recovered under the pressure of the economic downturn.
Amidst the ongoing industrial structural adjustment,
innovative and upgraded products are obviously favoured by
consumers. Existing products continued to be challenged and
compressed, with their growth turning to a slow down or even
a recession. Changes in consumers’ preferences intensified,
pushing the product life cycle towards a test. Making timeless
products and establishing consumer-recognized brand value
becomes another round of challenges.

In 2016, Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) upheld the spirit
of progress through innovation, brand building and operation
and continued to promote product upgrading and improve
the marginal efficiency prudently. In the second half of 2016,
we have implemented sales channel reform, sales rhythm
adjustment and organization integration, to strive to reach the
business goals set by the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) and maximize benefit in a more reasonable and
effective way under the new economic situation.

# — P =R AR A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. 6
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Chairman’s Statement
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In 2016, the Group recorded a revenue of RMB20,985.5
million and profit attributable to shareholders of RMB607.3
million. The revenue of instant noodles recorded a historic
high at RMB8,221.1 million, representing a growth of 8.6%
when compared to the same period of last year. The market
share of instant noodles has made a further breakthrough
to 21.0%, in which “Soup Daren (/5% A) " grew rapidly
under the continuous implementation of mid-high end instant
noodles development strategy and became a significant brand
priced at RMB5.0 and above. The overall instant noodles
business recorded profit due to the increase in revenue
when compared to the same period of last year. The revenue
of beverages business amounted to RMB12,180.7 million,
representing a downturn of 13.3% when compared to the
same period of last year. As the overall economic growth has
slowed down, the whole beverage market remained sluggish.
“Classmate Xiaoming (/NZ R &) " has successfully driven
the rapid development of the ready to drink tea market with
selling price of RMB5.0 and above and become a role model
in the industry. “Haizhiyan (& 2 )" adjusted its sales
rhythm and carried out channel inventory improvement. The
scale of existing products reduced because of the changes in
consumer trends, and as a result, profit decreased.

The Group will insist on satisfying the consumers’ demands
as its priority. By continuously launching differential and
innovative products, building brand value, expanding market
scale, enhancing integrated efficiency of the organization, the
Group will take the new round of opportunities in the food and
beverage industry to develop a new setup.

DIVIDENDS

Having accounted for our overall performance, balances,
financial conditions, capital expenditures, etc., the Board
proposes to declare a final cash dividend of RMB2.812 cents
per share (amounting to a total dividend of RMB121.5 million)
for the year ended 31 December 2016 at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.

i — e EFEER G A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Chairman’s Statement

PROSPECT

The PRC’s economy is expected to continue to slow down in
2017, while the GDP growth remains moderate. The uncertain
factors in international economic development will increase
as the political situations change. Raw materials costs are
likely to rise, so do the exchange rate risk. Food and beverage
market will continue industry structure adjustment. The Group
is optimistic about the development in 2017 and expects the
economy will grow steadily. The Group will focus on its core
competitiveness and leverage on its organizational abilities
in innovation to grasp the market trend and consumers’
preference, and to continue developing high-quality innovative
products. It will also facilitate sales channel reform and create
reasonable returns for all shareholders.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Our Group’s steady growth is credited to every party’s
support and dedication. On behalf of the Board, | would
like to express our sincere gratitude to clients, suppliers,
partners, financial institutions and shareholders for their
unparallelled support, especially for all my colleagues’ efforts
and contributions in the past year.

Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien
Chairman

24 March 2017
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Management Discussion & Analysis
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ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT

The PRC’s GDP growth rate was down to 6.7% in 2016. This
continuous moderate growth rate falls within Chinese government’s
expected range, which is from 6.5% to 7.0%. As the PRC’s
economy struggles for momentum, the food and beverage industry
also remains sluggish. Meanwhile, consumers nowadays are willing
to spend more on upgraded and unique products. The rapid
changes in consumer preferences and choices has changed the
model for competition among industry participants, requiring for
innovation and the ability to adapt. Besides, the global political
situation is steering the economy into uncharted water. Renminbi
slumped in 2016, while raw material prices rebounded. This added
a lot of pressure on every industry. The Group believes the only way
to stand out is to understand consumers’needs and be innovative.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2016, the Group continued to work on innovation, research
and brand building and management for achieving a better
product lineup and higher profitability. As the pace of economic
growth decelerates, conventional sales approach is not able to
boost revenue and profit anymore. The Group is using a new
sales approach to get out of the woods. Sales is being constantly
adjusted according to market demands in different seasons, which
helps reduce channel costs. In the second half of 2016, the Group
adjusted its sales momentum of its beverage business according
to the season and channel inventory level, and hence the Group’s
results in the second half of 2016 was affected by such adjustment.
Information about the Group’s businesses are as follows:

Instant noodles business

Instant noodle sales amount bounced back in 2016 with an overall
industry growth rate of 1.3%. Although things are looking up
after several sluggish years, the overall sales volume is generally
still in a recession. This shows a continuous trend of industrial
upgrade. The Group recorded a revenue of RMB8,221.1 million
in 2016, representing a year-on-year growth rate of 8.6%. The
Group outperformed the market. Despite the inactive environment
of 2016 and the impact of food delivery apps on the industry, the
Group broke new ground by releasing innovative and differentiated
products, aiming at catching up with consumer trends and
facilitating industry upgrade. Thanks to all these measures, the
Group’s market share rose to 21.0% in 2016.

#— e EFEZER G2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

8 Annual Report 2016 %



BEEENWRE D

Management Discussion & Analysis

EERMELH L AEER IR Tl E
FIE S BTl EEEPIRELL Y EEE
820165 AT ERMMEBZRMEBE T K
[EtRNEFESERMAGESTERAE]
b AREEBEDRERE] RH DB R
ET2016FRETERMAIFE] R [#
S/EIM TREKRE ] DEF [2016F KX
BAmhERAE] -

[ —ZEBEE I BZUAEEERE [&KIE
THEEK | ERAEEHK -EER N LT
BBl SROBRERREORETEET
WRERE RARKBEORRME B
FRE SR o [A) B - AL HE R oo 2 88 (b H) B RS 3R
ET EHEMEREEN BARERE]
WL B R FHEMBEEITRE:
ERAEKOER EMARITTE EE®M
TERLERUB BEE FEFEHEEBEN
EF - 2016F EMAETIRELEGE FHE
VASRRE HABR A F 0% - IEE M hEEHE - LA [ 5B
REBH ] RBEEIE BERIENER
FRCEZESNEBEEREED LR
AEAEBEEY [ —EEEX] MR
KoMt EBEEH MEEBENANE
WiIRA - 2016F ER L ANEEMWIEEEE
R - [F S| AR # E 3% (Virtual Reality) ~ 43
BIYZERSTFEHBEARNMEFR
EHBEFRS|IBEHE

s
Et:ja Wiy

KALTET. 3

ERR <=
o s

"o Algs”

The Group never stops integrating new concepts and technologies
into product innovation. The Group has received lots of favourable
comments and awards from the industry. In the “16th China
Convenience Food Conference-cum-Convenience Food Expo
(BT R"EYPBEFERBAZEHERME) " organised by the
Chinese Institute of Food Science and Technology, the Group’s
“Imperial Big Meal (j#/& A% ) " instant noodle received the “2016
China Convenience Food Innovation Award (2016 Bl H @&
mhAlET2€) 7. In addition, “Urban Bistro (#8& /\88) ” and “Imperial
Big Meal (ji/& K% ) ” were both awarded the “2016 Most Popular
Convenience Food Award (2016F & X EUIM FER ML) .

Offering consumers the “Authentic Tasty Sourness (& IE 5= HY
fL5%) " is of highest priority for “Uni-President Lao Tan Pickled
Cabbage (i — 218 3)". As for product improvement, a
traceability management system is implemented to manage the
whole production process of the pickled cabbage flavour packet, a
core feature of “Uni-President Lao Tan Pickled Cabbage (5 — 18
B£3Z) ”. The Group keeps enhancing the flavour packet’s taste and
quality to sharpen the competitive edges of “Uni-President Lao Tan
Pickled Cabbage (£t —£188£3Z) ”. Additionally, under a strategy
to make the brand more appealing to young consumers and a main
idea of “let the brand shine and stand out (X% @ K& 17 - 127
miBET ) ", the Group redesigned product packaging in the first
half of the year. The combination of trendy elements and classic
image has definitely brought the Group’s products to the next level.
They are more outstanding and eye-catching than other products
on the market, and young consumers really love the new look.
The Group’s cooperation with Mr. Wang Han continued in 2016
by using humour to promote the brand with a slogan of “This tasty
sourness, who else! ((EEEFIEBFE) " in a series of commercials.
In-depth communication with consumers from different background
increased their awareness of “Uni-President Lao Tan
Pickled Cabbage (i —Z1E&3) " as well as their
appreciation of the brand and customer loyalty. In
2016, the Group also promoted the brand by a mixed
media model, which combined various marketing
techniques together. By introducing technologies
popular among young consumers (e.g., Virtual Reality
and Live Streaming), customer recognition is raised.

#— %P EZER AR 2 F Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. 9
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“Soup Daren (%3 A)” continued its double-digit growth in
2016, and it has become the first choice for more consumers. The
confidence and experience gained in this success is absolutely a

E2RETELOELER BFGSHFF [/5E great help in developing other mid-range and high-end products
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of the Group. Making great soup is what “Soup Daren (;53EA )"
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is always after. By offering a perfect consumer
experience with a slogan of “Bottoms-up for the
Nourishing Soup (TT&®)% - —HERIE) ", it is
hoped that brand recognition can be built such
the customers will choose “Soup Daren (/5
A) " when they want a good soup. Different
types of media have been used in advertising.
The Group continued to broadcast commercials
on premium media platforms while targeting core
markets, which helped to expand the brand’s
influence. The brand’s core values are intricately
embedded in micro films, TV programmes,
variety shows, etc. Positive feedback from
consumers was achieved. Besides, two new
flavours, i.e. “Korean Spicy Beef Noodle ( #83 5k
445 ) ” and “Original Chicken Noodle ( /& 52 %
%) ", were launched in 2016. Consumers now
have more types of soups to choose from, and
the Group keeps on building a high quality brand
image.

2016 [# & /e THRH — B AR
B0 M LB mE [He/ N E] 5
ERESMAREENFEAOK  GRINE

“Urban Bistro (#8&/\88) ” and “Mix-up in Town with You (#8#
—3¥%) " with a price tag of RMB 5.0 and above were launched in
2016. “Urban Bistro (& & /]\88) " features many unique flavours

EFEHMER FHEEUUBEE®LERA  from different places. These flavours are new to the existing instant

M ARER  [HEH - EENH A H
BE BHEEITUNEXAANER X3

noodle market. Consumers now can enjoy delicious noodles of
various backgrounds almost anytime anywhere. “Mix-up in Town

R T R
BXRK- '

with You (483 —3i) " showcases the charm
v W= &5 .. of mixed noodles from the city such that

2 -

-t delicacies in the hot summer.

10
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After the launch of high-end brand “Imperial Banquet
(GWEZ) ", the Group introduced “Imperial Big Meal
(mZEAKRE)” in November 2016. This new brand
represents the very essence of “Imperial Feast (& &
%) ”. A combination of various fresh ingredients and non-
fried noodles saves busy and uncompromising university
students and workers time and effort while satisfies them
with gourmet enjoyment to reward themselves. “Imperial
Banquet (iiiEE) ” and “Imperial Big Meal (miE X&) " are
a representation of China’s high-end instant noodles. They are
pioneers of the future of China’s instant noodles.

Food safety will continue to be
the top priority of the Group’s &
quality control in 2017. The Group
will catch up with the trend of
industry upgrade, build up the brand
value with continuous innovation and
meet customer needs.

Beverages business

The beverage industry remained sluggish in 2016, yet sales amount
and sales volume recovered a bit as compared to 2015. High-end
products with unique design became even more popular. The growth
pattern of different drinks changed in 2016 as well. Instant tea drinks
(excluding milk tea) stood out with a significant double-digit increase,
among which tea drinks with over RMB5.0 price tag dominated the
market soon after their launches, showing that consumers do love
them. This injected positive energy into the beverage market after
a recession of the instant tea drinks market which had lingered for
years. The Group adjusted its beverage sales strategies and channel
inventory management according to seasons and market sizes for
better cost-effectiveness in the second half of 2016. Due to such
adjustment, the Group’s beverage business generated a revenue of
RMB12,180.7 million in 2016, representing a year-on-year decrease
of 13.3%. The performance of the major drink products are as
follows:

Tea Drinks

The Group has found out a development opportunity in consumption
upgrade and transformation and successfully launched “Classmate
Xiaoming (/NZ RIE)” as a pioneer of industrial upgrade. It is
leading the evolution of the tea drink industry. According to Nielsen’s
data, tea drinks with over RMB 5.0 price tag rapidly occupied the
market after developments in 2015 and 2016. This has brought
the tea drink (excluding milk tea) industry to the next level. The
Group’s tea drinks generated revenue of RMB 5,914.5 million in
2016, representing a year-on-year growth of 1.5%. The 2015 market
share and 2016 market share were 24.8% and 27.8% respectively,
representing an impressive increase of 3.0 percentage points.

#— ¥ P EZER AR 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. /] /]
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“Classmate Xiaoming (/NZ [A2) " is targeted at students.
Thanks to the fresh flavour of cold-brewed tea, unique packaging
and the easy-going attitude the brand promotes, it has become

---------

a trendy drink among post-95 consumers
soon after its launch. The Group also
introduced “Liuliuda Tea (B EBEZLL)”
in 2016, which has a popular lactic acid
flavour and interacted with consumers by an
interesting and funny activity named “Totally
Awesome (6664 4-4) . “Liuliuda Tea (/&
SEUEZE) " definitely left a great impression
on consumers by this activity. In terms of
marketing, “Classmate Xiaoming (/NZ A
B2)” remained as a title sponsor of “Back
to School 2 (A E2MW2)” from June
to September. Through the cooperation
with Zhejiang Satellite TV and iQlYl and
the combination of nine celebrity stars and
hot topics, “Classmate Xiaoming (/% A
E)” became very popular. From August
to December, “Classmate Xiaoming (/N2
&) " was embedded into two TV series,
i.e. “No.2 Middle School (M =) " and
“Suddenly Seventeen (285 A4 ) 7, aiming

to tighten the connection with consumers.

“Uni Ice Tea (#—K4LZ%) " always focuses on young consumers.
Thanks to a brand new packaging, it has become younger, cooler
and more energetic. Kris Wu, one of the most popular young idols
at the moment, continued to be the brand ambassador in 2016.

The Group is creating a unique brand identity through various
M EHRHARE R —HKE s interactions that young people are interested in, e.g., being

a title sponsor of IGL (the “International Gaming League”),
holding Electric Run (the premier 5-kilometre fluorescent
night run) and making use of the influence of “To Youth (%X
H%&) " (afilm that Kris Wu starred in).

“Uni Green Tea (£ —#E4%) " continues to use “Experience
the Nature (3T E#X) " as its brand concept. The Group is a
special sponsor of “Our Law (F I815%8]) ", a variety show of
Anhui Satellite TV. The mesmerising jungle view gifted by mother
nature matches with the brand concept. Moreover, the innovative
crossover cooperation with LETV (£43848) has attracted many

young people’s attention. The outcome exceeds expectations.

% — e EFEZER G2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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The market is ever-changing, and consumers
nowadays are after unique products. Under
the circumstances, the Group will continue to
promote its tea drinks by a “Value Marketing
({B{E778Y) " tactic in 2017 and keep on
optimising market layout and brand building
strategies. The three core brands have
distinct market positioning. For “Uni Ice Tea
(B—/KEZR)” and “Uni Green Tea (45—
4k Z%) ", the Group will focus on enhancing
the products quality to ensure a steady sales
volume. Meanwhile, for “Classmate Xiaoming (/NEREE) " the
Group will build on its success by building strategic bases while
expanding sales into new markets or territories proactively. It is
hoped that the tea drink market will revive to satisfy young people
with what they love.

Juice Drinks

The Group’s juice drinks business generated a revenue of RMB
2,500.4 million in 2016. A marked year-on-year drop was recorded
because of the decrease in demand for juice and the impact of
channel inventory adjustment. According to Nielsen’s data, juice
market generally suffers from a mild recession, and the growth of
refreshing drinks is slowing down. However, assorted juice drinks
are coming to the market, and consumption upgrade continues.
The Group managed to maintain the second-largest market share
with 13.6% under the circumstances.

“Uni More Orange Juice (4 —##& %) " was the focus in the
“More Juice Series (i —Z% F7t) " in 2016. With its brand slogan
“More Vitamin C, More Beauty ( %C% %% ) ", the Group provides
consumers with all sorts of surprisingly special orange drinks
(refreshing orange juice, orange juice with pulp and juice smoothie)
to bring a diverse and fantastic experience about orange to
consumer in order to satisfy demand from young people who have
a pretty and enthusiastic life attitude. The Group strives to become
an orange juice expert in the industry. In 2017, “Uni More Orange
Juice (#— 8% %) " will continue to take its orange flavour as
the best selling point. Meanwhile, the taste and packaging of the
products will be continuously improved. Online media will be an
important part of marketing to win more young consumers.

% — % FEZER AR 2 F Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
Annual Report 2016 £ #
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The Group continued to market “Haizhiyan (/&2
=) 7 with a master slogan of “Cooling You Down
(BIBBER)” and build an impression of “The
Refreshing Ocean (J&7F)5%&) " on consumers. A
new blackcurrant flavour was introduced in 2016.
Thanks to a cool and black packaging and its
refreshing taste, it became popular among young
consumers in a blink of an eye. Jing Boran, a
famous talented idol, signed as a brand ambassador
with “Haizhiyan (/82 )" in 2016. With actual
talent as well as temperament as an idol, he
perfectly represents the brand’s inner and outer
beauty. “Haizhiyan Seaside Summer Camps (/&
ZEMEESE)”, the annual themed marketing
event in 2016, awarded some loyal supporters an
opportunity to join seaside activities, e.g., watching

popular idols, led by Jing Boran contend with several Olympic gold
medalists, led by Yang Wei, in a series of interesting games and

enjoying a concert. Immersion marketing offers consumers tons
of opportunities to interact with the Group, making them feel the
peacefulness and happiness brought by the ocean and “Haizhiyan
(2 5)”. Sales strategies for “Haizhiyan (/&2 5 )" has been
adjusted in 2016. “Drinking Haizhiyan, Instant Refreshing (18 /& 2

=
=

BB FE) " will be used as the slogan to offer consumers an

unprecedented and refreshing experience in 2017.

“Seasonal Nourishing and Moisturising—Way of Relax and
Revival (PUZ 5« 4778 238) " continued to be promoted as
the core brand value of “Seasonal Drinks (X2 P12 ) ” in 2016.
The marketing of the leading product “Crystal Sugar Pear Drink
(FkHEZHL) " features “Music (&%) " and “Official Website (&
F =) ", aiming to target consumers precisely. The word “Stew
(B0 " will be added to the packaging in 2017. In addition to
the improvement of packaging, the production process will be
enhanced as well. Besides, members of the brand can also earn
bonus points through various interactive activities. This is going
to make the brand more appealing to young consumers.

% — %P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Chinese people believe that warm drinks are healthy drinks.
“Ruyin (Z08R) " is inspired by this belief. Thanks to its carefully
selected ingredients and intricate drink-making process, “Ruyin ( 41
#%) " opens up a new market for Chinese style drinks. As a new
benchmark for Chinese style warm drinks, it is only sold in winter.
Apart from a heartwarming “Pomelo with Honey (i B 5 1&) 7,
“LiLaiwuSan (B2 55 8k) " (a functional drinks with
fruits and herbs as its ingredients, and the design of
its recipe being guided by professors from Guangzhou
University of Chinese Medicine) is leading a trend of
drinking Chinese style beverages that moisturise the
lung. “LiLaiWuSan (ZLZKFE81) 7 in 2017 will start
with paying attention to consumers’ concern about
the changes in weather conditions. “A Moistening
Pear Herb Juice Gift that always Stays with You (/&
TS NgREETT) " gift box will be introduced in
2017. In addition, the Group will continue to spend a
lot of effort in marketing to build up brand value with
a slogan of “this is what Chinese style drinks should

always be (R XCFHER A FE QAL ) .

In 2017, in terms of juice drinks, the Group will keep on building
the above-mentioned brands. Besides, “Uni More Orange Juice (%t
—#EE%)” and “Orange PLUS (#plus)” will be enhanced by
“Uni More Orange Juice (£t — &%) ” with “Orange Plus Pomelo
Pulp (Jn4#) " to highlight the pomelo pulp and an unparallelled
taste created by offering “refreshing orange juice with pomelo pulp
(GBI T +8MARHAL) 7. Marketing and product innovation will be
improved in 2017 in hopes that a broad range of juice drinks can
meet different consumers’ needs better leading to good health and
quality growth.

Combined Drinks Business
Milk Tea

According to Nielsen’s data, the overall milk tea market in 2016
declined by 9.0%, narrowed by 11.2% compared to the 2015
recession, indicating that the market has gradually stabilized.
By virtue of competitive smooth taste and excellent quality of its
products, the Group continues to challenge itself and optimize the
products in the field of milk tea, and to establish its brand value.
Market share in 2016 increased to 72.3%, representing a year-on-
year growth of 4.5%, ranking first in the market.

% — % FEZER AR 2 F Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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For “Uni Assam (% —Fi i) ”, the Group continued to deeply
explore the youth market, and converted the brand advocate of
“Smooth Happiness (g8 47 0:15) 7 into happiness ingredient
that can be experienced anytime, and held the annual activity of
“Ask Assam with Good Mood ( — & Fi] 2 4 - 58§ £ &7 /0
&) . The packaging of “Q&A Bottle (% )" was
welcomed by young consumers on the Internet, and the
funny interactions between consumers and the “Q&A
Bottle (&) ” in microblog spread the
happiness of young people. The advertising
film by spokesperson Amber Kuo Tsai-chieh
and “Happiness Factor (475 F ) " was
accurately delivered in young people’s favorite
TV and video site programs. The “Asking
Assam for Whimsy Reply ( — & B i 1 34
[B17&) " solicitation activity held at the Bilibili
website beloved by the youth born after 1995
has inspired the interest of young people, and
has improved the strength of communication
through website interactions. The “Rock Salt Cheese (&&=
+) " milk tea flavour will be newly launched in 2017 and sold in
key markets at first, and will be gradually extended to the whole
country, offering young consumers a new and differentiated
experience.

“Assam Small Milk Tea (FIEE®/NEIZE) " combines real milk
(Australian frozen milk) and real tea (South African Louis Bose
tea), highlighting the differentiated taste of the product. The core
demand for “Going Back to the Childhood of Milk Tea ( [2 2| %}
Z /B {R) " has been adhered to in brand
marketing. In the second half of 2016, the
product was further optimized to strengthen
the sales of hot drinks in winter. In terms of
marketing, the Group continued to have in-
depth cooperation with the world famous
peanut comics, and through “Snoopy ( % %%
th) ", the pure essence of the small milk tea
was vividly shown. At the same time, by utilizing
festivals (e.g. Christmas, New Year’s Day) and

’3,.'.5,‘ through interesting topic interactions beloved by
f_L'f white-collars, the spread by Internet and mobile

' new media was maximised, so as to enhance
ﬂ preference towards the brand.
-

(Nt o

% — %P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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In 2017, the Group’s milk tea business will continue to lead the
milk tea market to a healthier and broad road, with the aim to
satisfy consumers and to provide more fresh products to the store
F[fE ) ” fresh and
smooth happiness, and to create a better experience of milk tea.

shelves, so as to make each “Uni Assam ( 5 —

Aqua More

“Aqua More (7K#% ) " was launched in March
2016. It combines the water fun packaging and il
the fresh and delicious lactic acid bacteria flavour

to meet the demands of target consumers. The )

—
EY

Group focused on operating in core cities, and
in terms of marketing, the Group combined the
funny elements of the newly launched movie “Ice
Age 5(7k)IIt425) " and the product, to bring
consumers new and funny experiences.

=

Others B
Coffee

In recent years, with the rapid expansion of coffee shops in
major cities and substantial growth of freshly brewed coffee in
convenience stores, coffee culture has gradually become popular
and become a new trend of young people nowadays, affecting the
habits and taste of coffee drinkers, making significant changes to
the consumption trends and patterns of ready-to-drink coffee.

For the “A-Ha (#% )" coffee, in 2016, the Group used the
drinking time as “chat communication (X327 ) ” as the starting
point, and put forward “Enjoy the good taste and chat happily ( ¥f
LRI - R HI) ” as the brand positioning, and enhanced brand
awareness by cooperation with the Internet conversation program
“Let's Talk 3 (F#EFE) ", In 2017 the brand of “A-Ha (FMS)”
will be integrated by using the same smiley brand trademark. In
addition to the “lce Coffee ( /KWIE) ", “Italian series (E =) " and
“Hey” series, the Group will launch the “Dear” fancy coffee to bring
consumers better and comprehensive experience.

#— P E =R AR A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
Annual Report 2016 £ #&
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Bottled Water

With the improvement of environmental and health awareness in
the PRC, people become increasingly aware of the importance of
sunshine, air and water, and the idea of drinking good water has
been further enhanced. The Group focused on natural mineral
water, and the revenue from packaged drinking water in 2016
showed positive growth over the same period last year.

In 2016, the leading brand “ALKAQUA (&) ” hired Mr. Wang
Kai (£8l),
the brand ambassador. “Appearance accounting for 30% and
inner beauty accounting for 70% (SO%sErETE 70%;5?%?) "
one of the brand values of “ALKAQUA (&%
presented through commercials,

one of the most popular actors at the moment, as

, was perfectly
interviews and embedded ads
in TV series, etc. The Group strengthened new
media marketing to win young consumers with
a slogan of “ALKAQUA 70% of me (E #570%H)
#)”. The Group also introduced the packaging of
“ALKAQUA (E ) ” with labels varied in colours
in May. Consumers love the new packaging,

783}

-~ and many of them looked for the bottles for
"Wﬁ:' ‘,,% collection. The brand awareness and fondness was
S . significantly higher.

2017F 5 1H B B [ALKAQUAE % | RIEE
g RHBEERESLE AR RAL
K EEFEGEE R P AEE  HAFT
HEEERANBB  [ALKAQUAE # | #
HHOAD TR LLRER  BEBERE
ET\IEE% EE\—FE@*UWEI%"

fF 2%

AEBEREPOLIFERFTERNEFNFTIGE
ﬂvE%ﬁ%%lﬁﬁ/ﬁ%%ﬁaxmmﬂﬁtuﬁém

Lo BiIREZ OB REEEMERE
%izomimﬁ ~ﬁﬁ%§¢/b%m§?§ﬁé%
2o BB R EFS2E T EEBRIR
f& o

18

Annual Report 2016 %

The Group will continue to focus on the marketing of “ALKAQUA

A 0
S

in 2017, and offer high-quality and tasteful natural water
to consumers. The connection with consumers will be tightened
by greater efforts on marketing in new media. Packages with six
bottles for sharing and bottles of a volume size of 1.5 litres would
be soon joining “ALKAQUA (& &%

customers with more volume sizes to choose from for different

” product range to provide

consumption occasion.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The Group’s R&D centre is the powerhouse of the Group’s
industry-leading innovations. The centre worked hard to create
trendy products with high added value to lead customers’ demand.
In terms of the protection of core technologies and intellectual
properties, the R&D centre has taken out 29 patents, and
applications for another 52 are under way in order to put up a tall
wall against intellectual property theft.

— B E R EZER B R 2 8 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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“Aqua More (7Kk#% ) "is a fermented whey drink using the Group’s
patented “Lactic Acid Bacteria LV108, originating from Bama,
a longevity village in China (R EI REHMEF I EEL/108) " .
It also has consumers’ beloved elderflowers, a famous flower
plant in Europe, as one of its ingredients. All these features and
ingredients give consumers the impression that “Aqua More (7K
%) "quenches thirst and benefits digestive system. The Group’s
business is expanding into “near water (#17K) ” market, to make
plain water become “funny and tasty (B #4118 ) "

“Uni Assam (£ —PBfE#) " understands consumers’ needs for
fancy drinks. The new “Rock Salt Cheese ((ZEEX +) " milk tea is a
perfect blend of pure Himalayan rock salt, fragrant Danish Cheddar
cheese and Indian black tea. Its mild tea aroma and creamy,
silky smooth and slightly salty taste of cheese give a unique taste
to consumers. Unlike conventional sweet milk tea, the Group's
unique and innovative drinks are definitely a game changer and a
groundbreaker for milk tea market.

“Soup Daren (%# A ) ” now has a new “Korean Spicy Beef Soup
(BREFA5) " flavour. Its main ingredients are Korean hot
sauce, Korean soybean paste, chillies with different flavours (e.g.,
hot, sweet and fragrant), classic Korean pickled cabbage (3%)
and big pieces of beef. Consumers are able to experience an exotic
blend of flavours such as sweet, hot, rich, appetisingly fragrant and
sour while at the same time enjoy the feeling of “Bottoms-up for the
Nourishing Soup (TR &5 —MRIK) "

With making a high-end meal alternative for the PRC domestic
market in mind, “Imperial Banquet (2= ) ” has carefully selected
ingredients, including high-quality dried frozen vegetables (e.g.,
broccoli and carrots). The freezing and drying method can maintain
ingredients’ nutrition and freshness. Patiently cooked stock, unique
flavour packets with juicy and tender meat and low-fat non-fried
noodles are definitely going to feast people’s appetite. “Imperial Big
Meal (Jf/Z K& )" represents the essence of the Chinese royal
delicacies, “Imperial Feast (ji/ZZ &) ” with an aim to create the
most valuable meal alternatives for consumers. “Beef Brisket with
Tomato Noodles ( E&hn4-fE%E) ” and “Pork with Bamboo Shoots
Noodles (& ¥ A %) ” have their own flavour packets with
juicy and tender braised meat, which is pressure-cooked at high
temperature. Additionally, non-fried noodles are a much healthier
choice compared to fried noodles. The products bring consumers
high quality and delicious delicacies.

# — P =R AR A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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FOOD SAFETY

The Group always upholds “high-quality, reliable and reasonably
priced products with good service ( =#f — A8 : mE L~ E AL
R EF - (BA& /A3 )“. Thanks to this, customers can enjoy safe,
healthy and delicious food. With an aim to bring the Group’s food
safety management to a higher level, the Group has established
a food safety committee and a centre for food safety to establish
food safety control system, set up food safety policies, enhance risk
assessment in food safety with a pre-alarm and monitoring system.
The Group is also responsible for managing the quality control
system and implementing quality policies to ensure product quality.

The Group has never stopped improving the supervisory
mechanism for raw material supply. The food safety control at the
starting point of supply chain and finished goods is of top priority.
The Group inspects supplier qualification in food safety, conducts
site inspections and controls food quality through a supervisory
system in order to ensure that food quality and safety control starts
from the point of origin. The Group also has a system for inspecting
manufacturing sites and qualifications. All products must pass a
quality and food safety check before distribution pursuant to laws
and regulations. Every aspect of food safety of all products are
strictly supervised. All these measures aim at ensuring that the
Group’s products are safe and delicious.

#— e EFEZER G2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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The Group spares no efforts in supplier source management. The
Group provides trainings and inspections conducted by certified
third-party institutions on suppliers, helping them set up their own
food safety and quality control system in a scientific and effective
way. The Group has also implemented a detailed food safety plan,
covering product design, manufacturing processes and channel
distribution to ensure consumers are satisfied with the Group’s
products.

The Group keeps abreast of the latest food safety incidents in the
industry and conducts risk assessment exercise in a timely manner.
The Group re-examines its own similar raw materials and finished
products and improve the food safety control system when such
incidents happen. The Group helps to set up and revise many
national standards related to food safety. Relevant regulations and
information both at home and abroad are collected and published
to enhance the Group’s food safety awareness and ensure
compliance with regulations and standards. All these measures are
a strong protection for consumer rights.

The Group’s food safety testing centre has been accredited by
China National Accreditation Service for Conformity Assessment
(CNAS) every year since 2005. The 165 accredited test items
the Group has passed to date and resources of the subsidiaries’
laboratories and of some external inspection bodies cover the
major food safety inspection requirements. Thus, the Group has
access to professional and authoritative testing services and
technical supports, to help ensure food safety.

As at 2016, 31 subsidiaries of the Group were certified with
ISO9001, the internationally recognised standard for Quality
Management Systems, and 28 subsidiaries were certified with
ISO22000, the internationally recognised standard for Food
Safety Management System, and some other standards. All these
certifications and honours require corporations to continuously
improve food safety and quality management systems. They also
show that the Group’s products are not only delicious, but also
healthy and safe.

# — P =R AR A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. 21
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PRODUCTION STRATEGIES

The Group spares no effort in operation, research and
development, innovation, brand building and sales expansion,
aiming to meet customer needs, develop and strengthen the
corporation and maximize revenue. The Group does not rely on its
own production resources only. It also outsources its production
to other professional beverage manufacturers (including external
independent third parties and related parties companies). Thanks to
the long-term cooperation, a strategic alliance is formed, giving the
Group some production flexibility. Thus, the Group is able to fully
utilise its resources on core operation and try to achieve the best
outcome.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016 (the “Year”), the Group
recorded a revenue of RMB20,985.5 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 5.1% from RMB22,101.9 million of
2015. Revenue from the instant noodles business increased
by 8.6%, and revenue from the beverage products business
decreased by 13.3%, standing at RMB8,221.1 million and
RMB12,180.7 million respectively, accounting for 39.2% and
58.0% respectively of the Group’s total revenue. During the Year,
gross profit of the Group decreased by 11.2% from RMB8,140.7
million of the corresponding period last year to RMB7,227.8 million
while gross profit margin decreased by 2.4 percentage points
from 36.8% for the corresponding period of last year to 34.4%,
which were mainly due to a decline in revenue from the beverage
business.
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Operating profit was RMB962.5 million for the Year, decreasing
by 6.7% from the operating profit of RMB1,031.5 million for 2015.
During the Year, share of profits of investments accounted for using
the equity method decreased 17.5% to RMB93.1 million (2015:
RMB112.9 million). During the Year, profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company was RMB607.3 million, representing a
decrease of 27.2% as compared with RMB834.5 million of the
corresponding period last year, which were mainly attributable to a
decline in revenue from the beverage business. Earnings per share
during the Year were RMB14.06 cents (2015: RMB19.32 cents).

During the Year, the Group focused on key markets, effectively
refined channels, built its brands and precisely targeted markets
with its internal and external marketing resources. As a result,
the selling and marketing expenses decreased by 7.4% to
RMB5,849.9 million (2015: RMB6,320.5 million). During the Year,
administrative expenses amounted to RMB999.0 million (2015:
RMB1,015.6 million), representing a decrease of 1.6% compared
to the corresponding period last year, which was mainly due to a
corresponding decrease in surtaxes (such as urban maintenance
and construction tax) resulting from the decrease in gross profit of
the Group.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
Cash and Borrowings

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had cash and time deposits
of RMB2,463.2 million (31 December 2015: RMB2,915.1 million),
among which 96.2% were denominated in Renminbi and 3.3%
were denominated in United States dollars. During the Year, the
Group mainly financed its working capital and capital expenditure
by internally generated cash flows and the proceeds from
disposal of interests in Jinmailang Beverage Corporate Limited
(“JML Beverage”), of which the remaining balance was applied
to repay borrowings. As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s total
financial liabilities was RMB2,600.2 million (31 December 2015:
RMB4,254.3 million), decreased by 38.9%, and 19.2% of such
financial liabilities were repayable over one year. Al of the Group’s
total financial liabilities were denominated in Renminbi. As at 31
December 2016, all of the Group’s financial liabilities bore floating
interest rates, save for the RMB1,000 million notes due 2017, the
RMB500 million notes due 2017 and the RMB500 million notes due
2019, which were at fixed interest rates of 3.6%, 3.5% and 3.9%
per annum respectively. As at 31 December 2016, the Group did
not have any secured bank borrowings (31 December 2015: Nil).
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Financing

The Group aims to maintain an appropriate capital structure. Taiwan
Ratings Corporation, a credit rating agency, issued a press release
about the Group’s credit rating on 30 June 2016 and recognised
a long term credit rating of twAA- to the Group on the same day,
with the upgrade from “Stable (#&5E ) ” to “Positive ( IE[A]) ” rating
outlook on the Group’s long term credit rating. The following table
sets out the gearing ratios of the Group during the two years ended
31 December 2016:

HZ=12A31H8
As at 31 December

2016 2015
ARB TR AR¥FT
RMB’000 RMB’000
mEE Total borrowings 2,600,169 4,254,316
B eRERAER Less: cash and time deposits (2,463,201) (2,915,109)
BIEF & Net debt 136,968 1,339,207
R Total equity 12,040,111 11,602,403
FER= N Total capital 12,177,079 12,941,610
BERABELE (M) Gearing ratio (Note) 1.12% 10.35%

et BAABLRZERFERNEESLE
BFE2MEE-

ERETRECERNABLEE KEBERRES
REFS REREHRES L2 2HRGF
T YAREBEERENENCHBRERE
R

Note:  The gearing ratio is computed as the net debt divided by the sum of

total equity and net debt.

The Group reviews its gearing ratio on a regular basis. According to
the capital plan for the future, the Group tries to maximise revenue
for shareholders with capital risk awareness in mind. Capital
structure is being constantly adjusted according to changes in the
operational environment.
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Cash Flow and Capital Expenditure

As at 31 December 2016, the Group recorded a year-on-
year net increase in cash and cash equivalents of RMB592.1
million, comprising net cash inflow from operating activities of
RMB2,143.05 million, net cash inflow from investing activities of
RMB272.2 million, and net cash outflow from financing activities
of RMB1,823.2 million. The net cash inflow was mainly due to
the disposal of interests in JML Beverage. The Group’s capital
expenditure for the year is RMB1,126.0 million (31 December 2015:
RMB1,400.8 million), which was mainly resulted from investments
in acquiring new equipment, modifying equipment, building a
distribution network and acquiring R&D equipment etc.

Analysis of Operating Efficiency

Sales to most customers are made on a delivery on payment
basis. Trade receivables are generated from credit sales to credit
customers from modern channels (including but not limited to food
and groceries stores, stalls and department stores) with credit
terms normally ranging from 60 to 90 days. During the Year, as the
number of the Group’s credit sales clients increased, and net trade
receivables increased by RMB13.7 million to RMB542.9 million (31
December 2015: RMB529.2 million).

The Group'’s trade payables mainly arose from credit purchase of
raw materials, and the inventories mainly comprised raw materials,
packaging materials, finished goods and low-value consumables.
As the Group strategically adjusted product supply strategy in the
second half of 2016, trade payables decreased by RMB90.8 million
to RMB1,138.2 million (31 December 2015: RMB1,229.0 million),
while the inventories decreased by RMB153.2 million from last year
to RMB1,214.5 million (31 December 2015: RMB1,367.7 million).
The following table sets out the major turnover days during the two
years ended 31 December 2016.

BZEZ12A31BLEE

Year ended 31 December

2016 2015
FEWE 5 RN EAEXE Trade receivables turnover days 9 8
FEEE X Inventories turnover days 34 32
BB SR AERE Trade payables turnover days 31 30
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Trade receivables turnover days is calculated based on the average
of trade receivables balances at the beginning and at the end of the
year divided by revenue multiplied by days in the year.

Inventory turnover days is calculated based on the average of
inventory balances at the beginning and at the end of the year
divided by cost of sales multiplied by days in the year.

Trade payables turnover days is calculated based on the average of
trade payables balances at the beginning and at the end of the year
divided by cost of sales multiplied by days in the year.

The Group reckons that inventory turnover days, trade receivables
turnover days and trade payables turnover days in the distribution
channel help the Group in understanding its ability to convert
inventory into cash and sales and cash conversion cycle. Through
reviewing and improving the turnover days, the Group can
improve its revenue, profit, the ability to develop continuously and
operational efficiency.

Financial Management

The Group adheres to the principle of financial prudence. It
seeks to control risk variables and moved forward prudently by
moderately adjusting its selling and marketing expenses according
to market condition, and made appropriate capital expenditures to
optimize and expand the basic infrastructure. The Group’s finance
department has formulated financial risk management policies
based on the policies and procedures approved by the Board and
guided by the executive Directors. These policies are reviewed
by the Group’s internal audit department regularly. The Group’s
financial policy aims at reducing impacts of interest rate and
exchange rate fluctuations on the Group’s overall financial position,
as well as minimizing the Group’s financial risk exposure.

The Group’s finance department provides centralized financial risk
(including interest rate and foreign exchange risk) and cash flow
management, and cost-effective funding for the Group and its
members. During the Year, the Group gathered the shared service
centers for different accounting regions, the regional finance center
and the settlement center for centralised accounting treatment,
with a view to improving capital efficiency and accounting treatment
effectiveness.
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Treasury Policy

It is the Group’s treasury management policy not to engage in any
highly leveraged or speculative derivative products and not to invest
the working capital in financial products with significant underlying
leverage or risk, including hedge funds or similar instruments. The
Group continued to adopt a conservative approach to financial risk
management with no significant bank borrowings during the Year.

Most of the Group’s currency of receipt and payment is
denominated in Renminbi since majority of its revenue are derived
from operations in the PRC. The Group may be exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from future borrowings from overseas and
some of its recognized assets or liabilities, such as cash and
cash equivalents and borrowings, which are denominated in other
currencies. The Group uses foreign exchange forward contracts
outside the PRC, when appropriate, for risk management and to
control the Group’s assets and liabilities when interest or exchange
rates are uncertain or fluctuating, or whenever suitable.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

As at 31 December 2016, the fair value of the Group’s available-
for-sale financial assets was RMB225.5 million (31 December 2015:
RMB227.0 million), which is resulted from the fair value changes of
listed securities. The fair value of available-for-sale financial assets
mainly consist of the fair value of the equity of China Haisheng
Juice Holdings Co., Ltd. (listed securities) of approximately
RMB13.9 million and the fair value of the equity of Heilongjiang
Wondersun Dairy Joint Stock Co., Ltd. (non-listed securities) of
approximately RMB211.6 million.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2016.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

The Group did not have any charges on group assets as at 31
December 2016.
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MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

On 9 May 2016, two indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company as vendors (the “Vendors”) entered into the share transfer
agreement with Consistent Returns Pte. Ltd., (the “Purchaser”),
pursuant to which the Purchaser conditionally agreed to purchase,
and the Vendors conditionally agreed to sell, approximately
47.83% of the total issued share capital of JML Beverage at the
consideration of RMB1,291,324,340. After closing, the Group
ceased to hold any interest in the JML Beverage.

Saved as disclosed above, the Group had no other material
acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures during the Year.

FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

The Directors confirmed that as at the date of this report, there
are no current plans to acquire any material investment or
capital assets other than in the Group’s ordinary business of
manufacturing and sale of beverages and instant noodles.

PROSPECT

The domestic and overseas political and economic environment in
2017 is full of uncertainty, and the market has become even more
unstable. The rapid development of the Internet changes the way
people live and the way consumers shop. Nowadays, food delivery
apps are on the rise, and various exquisite customized products
are what everyone is after. This new trend adds pressure on
conventional food and beverage products. Young customers’ love
for the Internet has led to the evolution of marketing. The Group
always puts shareholders’ long-term benefits in the first place.
The Group’s product innovations, brand building, observations on
market changes, active adjustment on sales tactics are going to
help it take the preemptive opportunities, expand market share,
increase revenue and bring more benefits to shareholders.
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 31 December 2016, the total number of employees of the
Group was 31,754. The Group adhered to the policies of focused
and streamlined operation, and organizational structure and staff
structure will be improved on a continuous basis to make the
enterprise stronger and more efficient. In terms of recruitment, the
Group is streamlining its administration and progressing towards
meritocracy. The Group insists on building a team that is robust and
strong with mechanisms like comprehensive trainings, humane care
and etc. Internal trainings, regular position transfer, external part-
time study and other measures can enhance overall performance
and provide talents for important positions of the Group steadily.
Meanwhile, internal promotion, performance evaluation and others
measure are implemented to keep the current management
personnel ambitious and strong. To achieve the Group’s annual
goals, the Group has set up performance bonuses and incentive
schemes to commend and encourage employees at all levels
that make outstanding contributions to the Group’s business
performance. Performance bonuses are distributed on the basis
of the Group’s overall and business units’ earnings and profits
objectives, as well as employees’ performance reviews.

The Group’s remuneration policy rewards employees and
directors based on their performance, qualifications, demonstrated
capabilities, market comparable information and the performance
of the Group. For the Group’s remuneration policy, the Group has
entered into employment contract with each of its employees,
which covers wages, national allowances, social security benefits,
employee benefits, workplace safety and hygiene environment,
trade secrets confidentiality obligations and termination conditions.
In addition to the employment contracts with mid-level and senior
management staff, the employment contracts are for one to three
years, with a probation period of two months for new staff.

During the Year, total staff costs (including directors’ remuneration)
were RMB3,176.8 million (2015: RMB3,164.7 million).
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Report of the Directors

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) is pleased to
present its report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2016 (the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group comprise the manufacturing and sales
of beverages and instant noodles in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”). The principal activities of its subsidiaries as of
31 December 2016 are set out in Note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the Year by business
segments is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 103 of the annual report.

DIVIDENDS

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of
RMB2.812 cents per share of the Company for the Year amounting
to a total dividend of RMB121.5 million. The payment of the final
dividend is subject to the approval of the shareholders of the
Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Details are
set out in Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements. There
was no arrangement with any shareholder of the Company under
which he/she/it has waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in Note 7 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in the investment properties of the Group
during the Year are set out in Note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the Year are set out in Note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the Year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on page 105 of the annual report and Note 19
to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2016, the Company’s distributable reserves
calculated under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands
comprise the share premium, contributed surplus, fair value
reserves and retained earnings totalling RMB6,661,981,000.

FIVE YEARS’ FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 4 of the
annual report.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of the borrowings of the Group are set out in Note 22 to
the consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the Year
amounted to RMB741,999 (2015: RMB147,422).
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Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date of
the annual report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien (Chairman)
Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui (Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. Liu Xinhua (President)
(appointed with effect from 25 March 2017)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Hou Jung-Lung
(redesignated from executive director to
non-executive director with effect from 1 July 2016)
Mr. Su Tsung-Ming

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chen Sun-Te

Mr. Chen Johnny

Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony
Mr. Lo Peter

In accordance with Article 130 of the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles of Association”), each of Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien,
Mr. Hou Jung-Lung and Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui will retire by rotation at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. Each of
Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien and Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui, being eligible, will offer
himself for re-election while Mr. Hou Jung-Lung will not offer himself
for re-election due to his other business commitments. There is no
service contract entered into between each of Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien,
Mr. Hou Jung-Lung and Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui and the Company which
is not determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

In accordance with Article 114 of the articles of association, Mr. Liu
Xinhua, who was appointed with effect from 25 March 2017, shall
hold office only until the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company, and being eligible, will offer himself for re-election.

The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 56 to 60 of
the annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)
were as follows:

RAERBRBDZHE Long positions in the shares of the Company
H20164
12A31H
ZERBS K
AT Percentage of
ZERHE shareholding
Number of as at
BEENF 514 ordinary shares 31 December
Name of Director Capacity of the Company 2016
(BE49)
(Approximate)
Hou Jung-Lung Beneficial owner 60,000 0.00%

RERfE
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RAEEEERD 2HF R Long positions in the shares of the associated corporation
Ligiy- 4=
Number of shares

12016

12A31H

185% ZERBESH

IR F 2z Percentage of

ZEEBRE BBz Es shareholding

HERR2E B AR Interest of NEER as at

Name of corporation and Personal child under Corporate #3531 December

name of its relevant shareholder Interest 18 or spouse Interest Total 2016

(BE49)

(Approximate)
H—¥ERM  Uni-President
BERATE Enterprises

Corporation*
EBE Lo Chih-Hsien 4,059,095 93,182,918 - 97,242,013 1.71%

Br EXCPTHE EE & SN 7A20165F 128318 ' #f Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of the
BARANFBEERTETHAEHEBTME  Directors nor the chief executive of the Company had any interests
RARBIRBHREEEMEIB26MEM  or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
GFzERMA R EEESFAEME AR the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning
A N B R BT 2 A AN R | B A AR B O of Part XV of the SFO), which were recorded in the register
(TERBHNMHEBEMEXVED) MM -8 maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO
AR RES 2 EE AR or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Equity-linked
Agreements — Share Option Scheme” in this Report of the
Directors below, none of the Company, any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries was a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors or their respective associates
(as defined under the Listing Rules) to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate at the end of the Year or at any time during
the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS AND
SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract/letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years and may
be renewed upon expiry of their term.

Except for the service contracts/letters of appointment with the
Company, during the Year, no other contracts of significance,
transaction and arrangement to which the Company, any of its
holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director or an entity connected with a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the Year or at any time during the Year.

DIRECTORS’
BUSINESS

INTERESTS IN COMPETING

As at the date of the annual report, none of the Directors and
directors of the Company’s subsidiaries, or their respective
associates had interests in businesses, other than being a Director
and/or a director of its subsidiaries and their respective associates,
which competes or is likely to compete either directly or indirectly,
with the businesses of the Company and its subsidiaries as
required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.

#— e EFEZER G2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ OR OTHERS’
INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2016, so far as are known to any directors or
chief executive of the Company, the following parties (other than
directors or chief executive of the Company) had interests in the
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

He Long positions
20165F
12A31H
ZERBES K
KAF Percentage of
ZBREE shareholding
Number of as at
#18 5% ordinary shares 31 December
Name Capacity of the Company 2016
(#49)
(Approximate)
Uni-President Enterprises Corporation* Interest of controlled 3,046,953,983 70.54%
corporations (Note)
G ERMARRAA REHEE RS (BF3E)
Cayman President Holdings Ltd. Beneficial owner 3,044,508,000 70.49%
BEnEAA
B 5T Note:

AR A 7]3,046,953,983 8% & 1n ([ 1) & & -
3,044,508,0000% %1% Fi Cayman President Holdings
Ltd. ([Cayman President | - i — ¥R H BR A
A(IH—DED 22— REEZ2EWBRR)FAE
M2,445,983%% J% 19 A President (BVI) International
Investment Holdings Ltd. ([President (BVI)] * & —
EMERECII7TNER L —KAE)FEF-
I BIEFSHRBEGN S —ERE A IR
Cayman President ) President BV 5 2 FT & B
AR

Br bl 3 5 & SN 2016128318 @ &
H b E ZRRE KA TRAR B AR5 sk 48 BE A%
MHEEEZIAE  THEBERBREBEELFR
HEIRAIEICH(ERFENE LML

Out of 3,046,953,983 shares of the Company (the “Shares”), 3,044,508,000
Shares were held by Cayman President Holdings Ltd. (“Cayman President”),
which is a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of Uni-President Enterprises
Corporation* (“UPE”) and 2,445,983 Shares were held by President
(BVI) International Investment Holdings Ltd. (“President (BVI)”), which is
indirectly owned by UPE as to 69.37%. Accordingly, UPE was deemed to
be interested in all the Shares respectively held by Cayman President and
President (BVI) by virtue of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, no other
substantial shareholder or person had an interest or short position
in the shares or underlying shares in the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the Year.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” of this Report of the Directors, (i) no contract of
significance was entered into by, and/or subsisted between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries with the controlling shareholder
or any of its subsidiaries during the Year; and (i) there is no contract
of significance in relation to provision of services by the controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries to the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against
its Directors and senior management arising out of corporate
activities. During the Year and up to the date of this annual report,
permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 9 of the
Companies (Directors’ Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D of the
Laws of Hong Kong)) was or is being in force for the benefit of the
Directors.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

UPE is the holding company of Cayman President which in turn is
a substantial shareholder of the Company. As Cayman President
is a connected person of the Company and UPE is an associate
of Cayman President, UPE is also a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

#—EFEZER G2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Details of the continuing connected transactions entered into by,
and/or subsisted between, the Group and UPE, its subsidiaries and
associates (excluding the Group) (for the purpose of this Report of
the Directors, hereinafter referred to as “UPE Group”) during the
Year and which are not exempt under Rule 14A.73 of the Listing
Rules are set out below:

() 2014 Framework Sales Agreement

On 24 October 2014, the Company entered into a framework
sales agreement (the “2014 Framework Sales Agreement”)
with UPE, pursuant to which the Company agreed to sell or
procure the sale of, on a non-exclusive basis, to UPE Group
certain beverages, instant noodles and bakery products and
such other products as may be agreed by the Group and
UPE Group for a term from 1 January 2015 to 31 December
2017. The pricing basis and the other terms of the sales
transactions contemplated under the 2014 Framework Sales
Agreement shall be subject to the terms and conditions
contained therein and determined in accordance with the
internal control procedures of the Group, which, in principle,
shall be no less favourable to the Group than those offered
to independent third parties by the Group in comparable
transactions of the same period. Further details of the
2014 Framework Sales Agreement were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 24 October 2014.

As the 2014 Framework Sales Agreement will expire at the
end of 2017, on 24 March 2017, the Group entered into a
new framework sales agreement (the “2017 Framework Sales
Agreement”) with UPE for a term from 1 January 2018 to
31 December 2020. The terms and conditions of the 2017
Framework Sales Agreement are substantially similar to those
of the 2014 Framework Sales Agreement.
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2014 Framework Purchase Agreement

On 24 October 2014, the Company entered into a framework
purchase agreement (the “2014 Framework Purchase
Agreement”) with UPE, pursuant to which the Company
agreed to purchase or procure the purchase of, on a non-
exclusive basis, from UPE Group certain raw materials,
packaging materials, finished goods, low-cost consumables
and such other goods as may be agreed by the Group and
UPE Group for a term from 1 January 2015 to 31 December
2017. The pricing basis and the other terms of the purchase
transactions contemplated under the 2014 Framework
Purchase Agreement shall be subject to the terms and
conditions contained therein and determined in accordance
with the internal control procedures of the Group, which,
in principle, shall be no less favourable to the Group than
those offered to the Group by independent third parties in
comparable transactions of the same period. Further details
of the 2014 Framework Purchase Agreement were disclosed
in the announcements of the Company dated 24 October
2014, 23 December 2014 and the circular of the Company
dated 5 December 2014.

As the 2014 Framework Purchase Agreement will expire at
the end of 2017, on 24 March 2017, the Group entered into
a new framework purchase agreement (the “2017 Framework
Purchase Agreement”) with UPE for a term from 1 January
2018 to 31 December 2020. The terms and conditions of
the 2017 Framework Purchase Agreement are substantially
similar to those of the 2014 Framework Purchase Agreement.
The 2017 Framework Purchase Agreement is subject to the
approval of independent shareholders of the Company.
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2014 Framework Logistics Service Agreement

On 24 October 2014, the Company entered into a framework
logistics service agreement (the “2014 Framework Logistics
Service Agreement”) with UPE, pursuant to which UPE
agreed to provide or procure the provision of, on a non-
exclusive basis, to the Group transportation and logistics
service (including, but not limited to, storage and design of,
and the provision of support service to, logistics application
systems and such other logistics related ancillary and support
services as may be agreed by the Group and UPE Group)
for a term from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2017. The
pricing basis and the other terms of the transportation and
logistics service transactions contemplated under the 2014
Framework Logistics Service Agreement shall be subject to
the terms and conditions contained therein and determined in
accordance with the internal control procedures of the Group,
which, in principle, shall be no less favourable to the Group
than those offered by independent third parties suppliers to
the Group in comparable transactions of the same period.
Further details of the 2014 Framework Logistics Service
Agreement were disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 24 October 2014.

As the 2014 Framework Logistics Service Agreement will
expire at the end of 2017, on 24 March 2017, the Group
entered into a new framework logistics service agreement
(the “2017 Framework Logistics Service Agreement”) with
UPE for a term from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2020.
The terms and conditions of the 2017 Framework Logistics
Service Agreement are substantially similar to those of the
2014 Framework Logistics Service Agreement.
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(iv)

2014 Framework Technical Support Service
Agreement

On 24 October 2014, the Company entered into a framework
technical support service agreement (the “2014 Framework
Technical Support Service Agreement”) with UPE, pursuant
to which the Company agreed to provide or procure the
provision of, on a non-exclusive basis, to UPE Group
technical support services (including, but not limited to, the
human resources management services and such other
technical support services as may be agreed by the Group
and UPE Group) for a term from 1 January 2015 to 31
December 2017. The pricing basis and the other terms of the
technical support service transactions contemplated under
the 2014 Framework Technical Support Service Agreement
shall be subject to the terms and conditions contained therein
and determined in accordance with the internal control
procedures of the Group, which, in principle, shall be no less
favourable to the Group than those offered to independent
third parties by the Group in comparable transactions of
the same period. Further details of the 2014 Framework
Technical Support Service Agreement were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 24 October 2014.

As the 2014 Framework Technical Support Service
Agreement will expire at the end of 2017, on 24 March
2017, the Group entered into a new framework technical
support service agreement (the “2017 Framework Logistics
Service Agreement”) with UPE for a term from 1 January
2018 to 31 December 2020. The terms and conditions of
the 2017 Framework Technical Support Service Agreement
are substantially similar to those of the 2014 Framework
Technical Support Service Agreement.
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The maximum aggregate annual value (the “Annual Cap”)
approved by the independent shareholders of the Company
or set by the Company (as the case may be) and the
aggregate annual transaction value actually recorded
pursuant to the 2014 Framework Sales Agreement, the
2014 Framework Purchase Agreement, the 2014 Framework
Logistics Service Agreement and the 2014 Framework
Technical Support Service Agreement (collectively, the
“Existing CCT Agreements”) for the Year are set out below:

ERSE
Actual
x5 BERERERZHR Transaction FELR
Transaction Existing CCT Agreements Amount Annual Cap
(ANRBBEET) (AREEBET)
(RMB million) (RMB million)
2014 FIEZRSHE W 2014 Framework Sales Agreement
BIHEEE Total sales value 200.1 800.0
2014 IEZRIXEER 3% 2014 Framework Purchase Agreement
BEEEEE Total purchase value 3,193.2 6,500.0
2014 HELE 2014 Framework Logistics Service Agreement
Y AR 7% h i Total transaction value
B 5EE 15.5 49.4
2014 HELR 2014 Framework Technical Support Service
Bl 2 & AR 75 W i Agreement
BT 5HEE Total transaction value 65.3 115.0

BYIFMTERRAR LR ARER
BRXBERA NN AKREZBE
R—REBBIETRIEEHEGRNE
REMREFERERFIHHELART
MEBRRAY HIGRBAFAEL
NEARERARRRR ZERBHN &

In the opinion of the independent non-executive Directors, the
above transactions pursuant to the Existing CCT Agreements
were carried out in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Group, on normal commercial terms and were in
accordance with the relevant Existing CCT Agreements and
the pricing policies of the Company, and on terms that were
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Group and the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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The Company’s auditors were engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The auditors have issued their unqualified letter containing
their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions of the Group in accordance with the
Listing Rules 14A.56.

The auditors of the Company have confirmed that regarding
the continuing connected transactions of the Group, nothing
has come to their attention that causes them to believe that:

- the disclosed continuing connected transactions have
not been approved by the Board;

- for transactions involving the provision of goods or
services by the Group, such transactions were not, in
all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group;

- the transactions were not entered into, in all material
respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transactions;

- the transaction amount of the disclosed continuing
connected transactions as mentioned above have
exceeded the annual cap set by the Company.
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Report of the Directors

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Board confirms that the related party transactions with
the subsidiaries and/or associates of UPE during the Year as
disclosed in Note 34(a) to the consolidated financial statements
fall under the definition of “connected transactions” or “continuing
connected transactions” (as the case may be) in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. The Directors confirm that the Company has,
where applicable, complied with the disclosure requirements
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Save as
aforesaid, the Board confirms that the related party transactions
conducted during the Year as disclosed in Note 34(b) and Note
34(c) to the consolidated financial statements do not fall under
the definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected
transaction” (as the case may be) in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

NON-COMPETITION CONFIRMATION

The Company has received a written confirmation from UPE
confirming that UPE Group has not breached any of the terms of
the non-competition deed entered between the Company and UPE
on 23 November 2007.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the Year, the aggregated sales attributable to the five
largest customers represented less than 30% of the Group’s total
revenue and the aggregated purchases attributable to the five
largest suppliers represented less than 30% of the Group’s total
purchases.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed below, during the Year, the Company has not
entered into any equity-linked agreement (as defined in section 6 of
the Companies (Directors’ Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D of the
Laws of Hong Kong)).
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Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
pursuant to a written resolution passed on 23 November 2007.
The purpose of the Scheme is to provide the Company with a
flexible means of retaining, incentivising, rewarding, remunerating,
compensating and/or providing benefits to employees, directors
or non-executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors) of any member of the Company, any holding company,
subsidiaries or affiliates of the Company or other companies
or associated companies of the Company which the Board
determines will be subject to the Scheme.

The total number of shares of the Company which may be issued
under the Scheme must not exceed 352,681,000 shares of
the Company, representing 10% of the total number of shares
issued by the Company as at 17 December 2007 (i.e. the listing
date of the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange) and
approximately 8.17% of the issued share capital of the Company as
at the date of the annual report. Unless approved by shareholders
of the Company in the manner as set out in the Scheme, the total
number of shares of the Company issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options to granted to each eligible person (including
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period must
not exceed 1% of the shares in issue at the date of grant of the
option.

The exercise price shall be the price determined by the Board and
notified to the option holder which shall not be less than being
the highest of: (a) the average closing price of the shares of the
Company for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant of the option as stated in the Stock Exchange'’s
daily quotations sheets; (b) the closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated on the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet of the shares on the date of grant of the option; and (c) the
nominal value of the shares of the Company. No amount will be
payable for the acceptance of an option.

#— S EFEZER G2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Report of the Directors

Unless otherwise specified by the Board in the offer, the options
granted under the Scheme shall generally be vested in five
tranches with each of the 20% of the options vested on the first,
second, third, fourth and fifth anniversary dates of the date of grant
respectively. An option may be exercised to the extent that it has
vested and any performance conditions or targets set by the Board
have been met. The option period will not be more than 10 years
from the date of grant.

As at 1 January 2016 and 31 December 2016, there was no
outstanding share option. No share option has been granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Scheme. The Scheme
will remain in force until 16 December 2017 unless terminated in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association, although there are no restrictions against such rights
under the laws of the Cayman Islands.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
the shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the
shares of the Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

The Company and its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem
any of the listed securities of the Company during the Year.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules
during the Year and as at the date of the annual report.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Board reviewed with the management
of the Company the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group and discussed auditing, internal control and financial
reporting matters including the review of the audited financial
statements for the Year and has recommended their adoption by
the Board.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who shall retire and, being eligible, shall
offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

There has been no change of auditors of the Company in any of the
preceding three financial years.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Below is a business review of this report as required by Schedule
5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong). The discussion on a fair review of the Group’s business,
financial key performance indicators and performance and
indication of future development of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2016 can be found in the sections headed “Chairman’s
Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” in this
annual report. Those discussions form part of this report of the
Directors.

i — S EFEZER G2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Report of the Directors

Principal risks and uncertainties

A number of factors may affect the results and business operations

of the Group, some of which are inherent to beverages and instant

noodles business and some are from external sources. Major risks

are summarized below.

()

(i)

Consumer preferences risk

The Group’s success depends on its ability to anticipate the
tastes and dietary habits of consumers and to offer products
that appeal to their preferences. Consumer preferences
change and the Company’s failure to anticipate, identify or
react to these changes could result in reduced demand for
the Group’s products, which would, in turn, cause excess
inventory levels and lower sales volume. The Group will
continuously introduce new products throughout the season
and will further shorten the product development cycle
in order to improve our portfolio of products and satisfy
consumers’ changing preferences.

Competition risk

The industries in which the Group operates in the PRC are
highly competitive. The Group’s ability to compete is, to a
significant extent, dependent on its ability to distinguish its
products from those of the Group’s competitors by providing
high quality products at reasonable prices that appeal to
consumers’ tastes and preferences. The Group’s competitors
have varying abilities to withstand changes in market
conditions. Some of the Group’s competitors have larger
market shares in the PRC in respect to beverages or instant
noodles products, have operated their respective businesses
longer than the Group has, have wider geographical coverage
for its products and/or stronger distribution networks in
the PRC, may have substantially greater financial and other
resources than the Group has and may be better established
in the market. Should the Group’s competitors manage to
seize a larger market share, the Group’s sales volume may
be adversely affected. To manage competition risks, the
Group will continue to research and development to introduce
new products as well as maintain a high level of quality of its
existing products to compete with its competitors.
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(i)

(iv)

Economy and financial markets risk

The food and beverage industry in the PRC is impacted by
fluctuations in the global economy and financial market. The
slowdown of the worldwide economy, including that of the
PRC, caused a drop in consumer confidence and the level
of disposable income, which translated into lower demand
for the Group’s products, affecting the Group’s results of
operations. As a result, the global and local economies,
including the PRC economy, could continue to experience
significant volatility. Significant volatility or another downturn
in the PRC and global economy in the future could have an
adverse effect on the food and beverage industry in the PRC
and the demand for the Group’s products, which may affect
the Group’s business, results of operations and financial
condition. Cash flow in the food and beverage industry is
relatively stable, the Group will continue launch new products
to boost the growth of revenue, strictly control costs, and
maintain a stable and appropriate capital structure to reduce
the risk from global economic and financial market volatility
impact.

Supply chain risk

All of the packaging materials used in the manufacture of the
Group’s instant noodle products and a large percentage of
packaging materials used in the production of its beverage
products are supplied by independent third party or related
party suppliers. In the event these independent third party
or related party suppliers fail to continue to supply or cannot
meet the Group’s demand for such packaging materials, or
the Group is unable in the future to reach agreement upon
reasonable terms with them in relation to such continued
supply, the Group may be unable to find a comparable
substitute supplier of packaging materials, which may lead
to delays in the delivery of its products to customers. Such
delays may affect the Group’s results of operations. The
Group strives to maintain stable and cooperative relationships
in procurement of important raw material, develop long-term
strategic partnerships and productivity strategies with three or
more suppliers to reduce the risk on being over dependent on
a single supplier.
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Report of the Directors

Seasonal and weather conditions risk

The Group experiences seasonal fluctuations in its revenue
and operating income for its beverage and instant noodle
products. The Group generally records lower turnover for its
beverage products during the fourth quarter, while turnover
for its instant noodle products is generally lower during the
second quarter. The seasonal nature of the Group’s products
causes specific production lines to operate at uneven levels.
Sales and operating results for any particular period will not
necessarily be indicative of the Group’s results for the full
year or future periods. Cold weather conditions in the areas
in which our suppliers and customers are located could
adversely affect our beverage sales results and financial
condition. To reduce the risk on seasonal fluctuations, the
Group launched iconic brand of summer noodles to turn the
traditional consumption pattern of instant noodles in summer
session. On the other hand, the Group launched hot-drinks
products to renovate the warm and mild taste of Chinese-
style drinks and establish a new model Chinese-style hot
beverage in developing winter hot-drinks market.

Key Relationships

The Group’s success also depends on the support from key
relationships which comprise employees, suppliers, distributors and
customers.

()

Employees

Human resources are one of the greatest assets of the Group.
In view of the huge market opportunities for beverages
and food products in the PRC, the Group is continuously
recruiting talented professionals. In respect of the new lower-
level staff, the Group devotes considerable resources in staff
training and monitoring their development and progress in a
timely manner in order to familiarise them with the working
environment and build up team spirit. Meanwhile, the Group
recognises the value of its key personnel in maintaining
team morale and competitiveness. Both internal promotion
and external recruitment are applied to select and promote
top employees for vacant positions and attract qualified
candidates to join the Group. On the other hand, the
Group ensures the continuity of the senior management by
grooming management talents with various measures, such
as continuous internal training and appropriate job rotation as
well as external on-the-job training.
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(i)

(i)

(iv)

Suppliers

The Group has developed long-standing relationships with a
number of suppliers and take great care to ensure that they
understand the Group’s commitment to quality and ethics. To
achieve the objective of fair trade and win-win situation with
suppliers, the Group carefully selects suppliers in conformity
with the food safety requirements of “three lines of defense”
(i.e qualification audits, on-site evaluation, food safety testing),
through inviting quotations from suppliers to be procured to
the extent that those products are of comparable nature,
quality, quantity and condition via open tender.

Distributors

The Group sells products to end customers through third-
party distributors. The Group works with distributors like
business partners with the same interest, specifically focusing
on attracting and retaining customers in order to drive sales
growth. The Group requires distributors and sub-distributors
to comply with its policies, including but not limited to product
retail selling price, promotional activities and use of the
Group’s system.

Customers

The Group is committed to offer tasty, differentiated and
trendy products to customers. The Group provides safe,
healthy and delicious beverages and instant noodles to
consumers. The Group also stays connected with customers
to keep abreast of the changing consumer preference
through various channels like the company’s website,
customer’s hotline, marketing materials and social media. In
the instant noodles and beverages industry, the Group’s vast
number of customers are from modern channels (including
but not limited to food and groceries stores, stalls and
department stores) which were scattered and separated.
Therefore, the Group does not have major customers which
account for a significant part of the Company’s revenue.
The credit terms and subsequent settlement for customers
have been disclosed in the paragraph headed “Analysis of
operating efficiency” in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.
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Report of the Directors

Environmental Policies

Environmental protection is not only the responsibility of the
Group’s business, it is the responsibility of each of us. The Group
initiates and strives to minimize environmental impact by using
water-saving facilities, saving electricity and encouraging recycle
of office supplies and other materials. The Group also requires
factories of original equipment manufacturer (OEM) to operate in
strict compliance with the relevant environmental regulations and
rules and possess all necessary permission and approval from the
PRC regulators. A further discussion of the environmental policies
of the Group can be found in the section headed “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” of this annual report, the
discussion of which forms part of this Report of the Directors.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group’s operations are carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in the PRC while the shares of the Company itself are
listed on the Stock Exchange. Our operations are regulated by
Hong Kong and PRC laws. During the year ended 31 December
2016 and up to the date of this report, we have complied with
the relevant laws and regulations that have significant impact in
the PRC and Hong Kong. In particular, as a food and beverage
manufacturer, the Group’s operation are regulated by the food
safety and environmental protection laws and regulations in the
PRC. During the year under review, the Group did not have any
material non-compliance with such laws and regulations.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There were no significant events after the reporting period of the
Group.
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GENERAL DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE
13.18 OF THE LISTING RULES

Facility Agreement dated 15 August 2012 (as amended)

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 15
August 2012, on 15 August 2012, the Company (as borrower)
entered into a facility agreement (the “Facility Agreement”) relating
to a revolving facility in an aggregate amount of US$30 million (the
“Facility”) with a syndicate of banks (revised to US$50 million on
12 August 2013). The original maturity date of the Facility was the
date falling 365 days after the date of the Facility Agreement. As
disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 12 August
2013, 12 August 2014 and 14 August 2015, the Company (as
borrower) entered into amendment agreements including the third
amendment agreement (“Third Amendment Agreement”) to the
Facility Agreement (as amended and supplemented from time to
time) with the original parties thereto, pursuant to which, among
other matters, (i) the maturity date of the Facility was fixed at a
date falling 365 days from the date of drawdown under the Third
Amendment Agreement; and (i) the amount of the Facility was
revised from US$50 million to US$30 million.

The Facility Agreement (as amended and supplemented from time
to time) was also amended by the Third Amendment Agreement
that the Company had undertaken to procure UPE to ensure its
shares shall remain listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange and shall
not be suspended from trading thereon for any period of more than
three consecutive trading days.

A breach of such undertaking would constitute an event of default
under the Facility Agreement and the majority lenders may cancel
their commitments of the loan; and/or declare that all or part of the
loans, together with accrued interest, and all or any other amounts
accrued or outstanding be immediately due and payable.

i — S EFEZER G2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Report of the Directors

As at 16 February 2016, the Company had not requested or made
any drawdown. The available Facility was then immediately and
automatically cancelled on the expiry of the availability period.

On behalf of the Board
Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Lo Chih-Hsien
Chairman
Taipei, Taiwan
24 March 2017
*  For identification purpose only
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Executive Directors

Mr. LO Chih-Hsien (Z2%5 5% ) , aged 60, is chairman and executive
director of the Company. Mr. Lo is also a director and/or the
chairman of the board of directors of most of the wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lo joined the Group in September
1998 and is responsible for the overall strategic planning and
management of the Group. He has over 31 years of experience
in the food and beverage industry and is currently a chairman of
President Chain Store Corporation (45 — B AR 2 7)),
Ton Yi Industrial Corp. (£t —E X AR A F) and TTET Union
Corporation ( K&z B MR A F]) , the vice-chairman of Prince
Housing & Development Corp. ( K-FE:&FHEZERMDBRAF]) and a
director of ScinoPharm Taiwan, Ltd. ( & /&R H AR AR, all
of which are listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation. He
is also a director of Tait Marketing & Distribution Co., Ltd. ({&52¥
TR BB AR, acompany listed on the Taipei Exchange. He is
also the chairman and group chief strategy officer of Uni-President
Enterprises Corporation (£t — 1 &K B R 2 7) (‘UPE”),
the substantial shareholder of the Company (as defined in the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), and a director of 112 companies associated with UPE and
its subsidiaries (excluding the Group) (collectively, “UPE Group”).
Mr. Lo holds a master’s degree in business administration from the
University of California, Los Angeles, U.S.A. He is the spouse of
Mrs. Shiow-Ling Kao, who is the director of UPE.

Mr. LIU Xinhua (257% ) , aged 46, is the president of the Group
and the general manager of Uni-President Enterprises (China)
Investments Ltd. (i —>% (FE)EEFBRAA) (“Uni-President
China Investments”).
Director of the Company with effect from 25 March 2017. He has
over 23 years of experience in strategic marketing in the food and

He has been appointed as an executive

beverage industry. Mr. Liu joined the Group in July 1994 and since
then has been involved in sales and marketing for the Group. He
acted as the sales general manager for the Sichuan province of
Chengdu President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd.* (K& HZ— ¥R
B R A F]) from November 2006 until August 2008. From August
2008 to September 2014, he acted as the general manager of the
food business department of Uni-President China Investments.
Mr. Liu holds a doctoral degree in business management from
Southwest Jiaotong University ( PG 32 @ A £2) in the PRC.

#— S EFEZER G2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Directors’ Profile

Mr. CHEN Kuo-Hui (FREI/&) , aged 48, is the executive director
of the Company and the chief financial officer of the Group. Mr.
Chen joined the Group in May 2011. Mr. Chen also acts as a
director and/or supervisor of all of the Group’s wholly-owned
subsidiaries in the PRC. Mr. Chen is also the supervisor of United
Advisor Venture Management Co., Ltd. ( &N T 3£ & [2 FE R A 2 %
BEEAMRAFT) and Min Fu Management Consultancy (Shanghal)
Co., Ltd. (REEEHMB (LE)BRAE), in which the Group
holds 50% interests, and a director of Heilongjiang Wondersun
Dairy Co., Ltd. (B IETE LI ERMDBRAT]) , a company in
which the Group has an interest. Mr. Chen has worked in UPE from
November 1997 to April 2011 and has over 20 years of experience
in financial management. Mr. Chen holds a master’s degree in
business administration from University of Strathclyde in the United
Kingdom.

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. HOU Jung-Lung (£ 4[&), aged 52, was re-designated
as the non-executive director from an executive director of the
Company since 1 July 2016. Mr. Hou joined UPE Group in February
1993 and is currently a general manager of UPE. Mr. Hou has acted
as manager of a branch of Guangzhou President Enterprises Corp.
(BN —0%EBERAT), deputy general manager and head of
sales department of Zhuhai Kirin President Brewery Co., Ltd. (Zk
SEE A — 2 AR A F)) , general manager of Beijing President
Enterprises Drinks Co., Ltd. (k& —ER@mBERAF]), head of
human resources and general manager of the market planning
office of Uni-President China Investments and a president and
executive director of Uni-President China Holdings Limited. Mr. Hou
has over 24 years of experience in the food and beverage industry
and holds a master’s degree in executive business administration
from Tsinghua University in Beijing, the PRC.
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Mr. SU Tsung-Ming (#:5284) , aged 59, is the non-executive
director of the Company. Mr. Su joined the Group in August
2007. He joined UPE Group in August 2000. He is currently the
vice-president of UPE and a director of President Chain Store
Corporation (£ — & I B R A 7)) and ScinoPharm Taiwan,
Ltd. (B EMZERMD AR A E]), all of which are members of UPE
Group and are listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation.
Mr. Su is also a director of 24 members of UPE Group. He has
over 31 years of experience in banking and financial management.
Before joining UPE Group, he was the vice-president of the Taipei
branch of Citibank. Mr. Su was the financial specialist of Seibu
Department Store in Tokyo, Japan in 1988 and the senior specialist
of Nortel Networks Asia/Pacific in Tokyo in 1990. Mr. Su holds a
master of business administration degree from the University of
lowa.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. CHEN Sun-Te ([E27&2) , aged 62, was appointed as the
independent non-executive director of the Company in August
2007. Mr. Chen has over 33 years of experience in the banking
and financial industry and is currently the Chairman of Taipei Fubon
Commercial Bank. He is also an independent director of China
Telecom Corporation, China Electronics Corporation, and Lion
Travel Services Co., Ltd. and also the director of Fubon Financial
Holdings and Winstek Semiconductor Co., Ltd.. Prior to that, Mr.
Chen served as the president of Fullerton Financial Holdings Pte.
Ltd. (North Asia and Greater China regions) between 2005 and
2012, the president of Chinatrust Financial Holdings Co., Ltd. (now
known as CTBC Financial Holding Co., Ltd) in 2005, the chairman
of Chinatrust Securities Co., Ltd. between 2003 and 2005, the
country officer and country head of the corporate bank in Taiwan
of Citigroup between 2001 and 2003 and the regional head of
financial markets in Asia Pacific of Citigroup between 1998 and
2001. He gained extensive financial management experience from
various positions held with Citibank and Citigroup and has acquired
general knowledge about the food and beverage industry through
dealing with clients from that industry. Mr. Chen holds a master’s
degree in business administration from University of Missouri and
a bachelor’s degree in political science from National Chengchi
University.

i — e EFEER G A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Directors’ Profile

Mr. CHEN Johnny (FR&E %), aged 57, was appointed as the
independent non-executive director of the Company in December
2015. Mr. Chen Johnny is currently an Adjunct Associate Professor
of Department of Finance and Department of Management, Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology. Mr. Chen Johnny
joined the management of Zurich Insurance Group (“Zurich”) in
2005. He worked in Zurich from March 2005 to February 2015 in
multiple senior managerial roles in the Asia-Pacific region. His last
position in Zurich was the chairman of the life and general insurance
business in China. Prior to joining Zurich, Mr. Chen Johnny was an
executive member of the Greater-China Management Board and
the Operating Committee of PricewaterhouseCoopers (“‘PwC”), as
well as a managing partner of PwC’s Beijing office.

Mr. Chen Johnny is also an independent non-executive director of
Stella International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1836), Alibaba
Pictures Group Limited (stock code: 1060), and China Minsheng
Financial Holding Corporation Limited (stock code: 245), all of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange; and
Viva China Holdings Limited (stock code: 8032), the shares of
which are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange. From 2005 to January 2014, Mr. Chen Johnny was a
non-executive director of New China Life Insurance Company Ltd.
(stock code: 1336), the shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chen Johnny holds a Master of
Science Degree in Accounting from the University of Rhode Island
and a Bachelor Degree of Accounting from the Johnson & Wales
University and is a U.S. certified public accountant.
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Mr. FAN Ren-Da, Anthony (5B8{Z3% ) , aged 56, was appointed as
the independent non-executive director of the Company in August
2007. Mr. Fan is the chairman and managing director of AsialLink
Capital Limited and also an independent non-executive director of
Technovator International Limited (Stock Code: 1206), Raymond
Industrial Limited (Stock Code: 229), Shanghai Industrial Urban
Development Group Limited (Stock Code: 563), Renhe Commercial
Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code: 1387), Tenfu (Cayman)
Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code: 6868), Citic Resources
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1205), Guodian Technology &
Environment Group Corporation Limited (Stock Code: 1296), China
Development Bank International Investment Limited (Stock Code:
1062), Hong Kong Resources Holdings Company Limited (Stock
Code: 2882), LT Commercial Real Estate Limited (Stock Code:
112), Neo-Neon Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1868) and CGN
New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 1811), all of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Fan holds a
master’s degree in business administration from the United States.
Mr. LO Peter (}3% £), aged 61, was appointed as the
independent non-executive director of the Company in November
2007. Mr. Lo is currently a director of China Enterprise Capital
Limited. He is also the chairman and an executive director of China
Outfitters Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1146) and an independent
non-executive director of Ajisen (China) Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 538), both of which are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. He resigned as Chairman and a non-executive
director from Sino Distillery Group Limited (currently known as
China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited) (Stock Code:
0039) on 8 May 2013. Mr. Lo has over 23 years of experience in
the business fields and holds a bachelor’s degree in mathematical
economics and econometrics from the London School of
Economics and Political Science.
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Senior Management’s Profile

Senior Management

Mr. LIU Xinhua (2/37% ), aged 46, was appointed as the
president since 1 July 2016 and an executive director of the
Company with effect from 25 March 2017. Mr. Liu’s biographical
details are set out in the section headed “Directors’ Profile” of this
annual report.

Mr. CHEN Kuo-Hui (FREl/&) , aged 48, is the executive director
of the Company and the chief financial officer of the Group. Mr.
Chen’s biographical details are set out in the section headed
“Directors’ Profile” of this annual report.

Mr. ZHANG Ling (5&f%) , aged 48, joined the Group in October
1994. During the period from 1994 to 2009, Mr. Zhang was
responsible for management of marketing in different subsidiaries
of the Company, such as Nanchang President Enterprises Co., Ltd.
(AE#H—EAMRAT), Shenyang President Enterprises Co.,
Ltd. CESH— 2B A7), Wuhan President Enterprises Food
Co., Ltd. (RZH—ERMBERZAF) . In January 2010, Mr.
Zhang served as the Brand Manager of Instant Food Department of
the Group. In October 2014, Mr. Zhang was appointed as General
Manager of Instant Food Department of the Group. Mr. Zhang has
over 22 years working experience in the food industry. Mr. Zhang
graduated from Huazhong University of Science and Technology,
Hankou with a bachelor degree of engineering. He is currently
pursuing an EMBA master degree in Wuhan University.
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Mr. ZHAO Nianen (5 2 ), aged 40, joined the Group in
April 1999. He had acted as the head of marketing, the head of
operation and the head of dairy drink department of Kunshan
President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd. (BIUZE— ¥ B RAER
A]) from March 2000 to October 2006, and has been appointed as
the head of bottled water department of the Group since October
2006. He has been the head of the combined drink products
business of the Group since October 2014. He has more than 18
years of experience in the food and beverage industry and holds a
bachelor’s degree in economics from Shanghai Maritime University.

Mr. WEI Chih-Chung (#25ff), aged 48, joined the food
product business (Taiwan) of UPE and the Group in 1999 and 2003
respectively. Prior to 2010, Mr. Wei served as product manager
of food product business, combined drink products business
and juice business and as manager of the investment planning
unit. In 2010, he served in the PL (Private Label) OEM business
new business unit. In 2011, he was transferred to a subsidiary,
Uni-President (Shanghai) Private Label Marketing & Trading Co.,
Ltd., as general manager. In 2012, he was the general manager of
the trading business unit. He has been the general manager of juice
business of the Group since 2013. He has more than 23 years of
experience in the food and beverage industry. Mr. Wei graduated
from Drexel University in Pennsylvania, U.S.A. (EEIE N EEAE)
with a master’s degree in business administration.

% — e EFEZER G2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Senior Management’s Profile

Ms. CHEN Jui-Fen ([RI5 %), aged 44, joined Guangzhou
President Enterprises Corp. (EMHKE—XBR A d), a
subsidiary of the Group, in February 2009 and was responsible
for the management of marketing functions of Guangzhou
President Enterprises Corp. (BN — % AFR A 7)) and Wuhan
President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd. (REH—ERBARA
7]) , subsidiaries of the Group, prior to October 2011. She was
re-designated as the deputy general manager of the head office
of the Group’s tea business in October 2011 and was appointed
as the general manager of the head office of the Group’s tea
business in July 2013. Before joining the Group, she has engaged
in marketing in various companies such as Wyeth Nutrition, Taiwan
Branch, Ting Hsin International Group (JTE# B % &) and
YFY (5k2%4%) and has 20 years of experience in relation to the
food and fast moving consumer goods industries. In 2006, she
started to work in Mainland China when she joined Wei Chuan
Foods Corporation (BR2 R fa TR M BB A F) of Ting Hsin
International Group (TEZ#TEIEX &£ #) and has since gained 11
years of work experience in the Mainland. Ms. Chen holds both
master’s degree in nutrition and health sciences from Taipei Medical
University in Taiwan and EMBA program (Shanghai) of Taiwan’s
National Chung Hsing University.

Company Secretary

Mr. PANG Ka-Fai Angus (33X &), aged 47, is the company
secretary of the Company. Mr. Pang has previously served the
Company from February 2008 to April 2014 and rejoined the
Company since September 2014. Mr. Pang is a director of Gowise
Corporate Services Limited. He has 25 years of experience in
financial management and corporate secretarial work. He holds
a master’'s degree of Corporate Governance and a bachelor
degree of Business Administration in Accounting from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University, is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators in the United Kingdom, and is a
regulatory committee member of The Hong Kong Independent
Non-Executive Directors Association.
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Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, “Group”) is committed to ensure a high
standard of corporate governance practices and procedures and
appreciates that good corporate governance is crucial to enhancing
investors’ confidence in the Company. In the opinion of the board
(the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company, the
Company has complied with all code provisions of the corporate
governance code (the “Corporate Governance Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules (the “Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) during the year ended 31 December 2016 (the
“Year”), except for the deviation as disclosed below:

Code Provision of A.2.7 of the Corporate Governance Code
requires the Chairman of the Board to hold meetings at least
annually with the non-executive Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors) without the executive Directors present. As
Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien, the Chairman of the Board, is also an executive
Director, the Company has deviated from this code provision as it is
not applicable.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the Year, the composition of the Board was as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien (Chairman)
Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui (Chief Financial Officer)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Hou Jung-Lung (re-designated from executive director
to non-executive director with effect from 1 July 2016)
Mr. Su Tsung-Ming

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chen Sun-Te

Mr. Chen Johnny

Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony
Mr. Lo Peter

#— e EFEZER G2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The term of office of the Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) is three years. In accordance with the
Corporate Governance Code, any new Director appointed to
fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall submit
himself/herself for re-election by shareholders of the Company at
the first general meeting of the Company after the appointment.
In accordance with the articles of association of the Company, at
each annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”), one-
third of the Directors for the time being or, if their number is not
three or a multiple of three, the number nearest to, but not less
than, one-third, shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
The Directors’ remunerations are determined with reference to their
duties, responsibilities and experience, and to the prevailing market
conditions.

Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic
decisions, risk management and internal control systems, and
monitoring the performance of the senior management and
the financial performance of the Group. There are currently
four committees established under the Board, being the audit
committee (the “Audit Committee”), the nomination committee
(the “Nomination Committee”), the remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”) and the investment, strategy
and development committee (the “Investment, Strategy and
Development Committee”). Each committee has its terms of
reference and reports to the Board regularly.
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The Company does not have a chief executive officer, whose role
is instead performed by the President. The roles of the Chairman
of the Board and President of the Company are performed by
separate persons. The Chairman of the Board is responsible
for ensuring that the Directors perform their duties properly and
ensuring discussions on material matters take place on a timely
basis. The power and authority to carry out day-to-day operations
and implementation of the strategies and directions set by the
Board are delegated to the management team of the Company (the
“Management”) which is led by the President. The Management
assumes full accountability to the Board for the operation of the
Group.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board has at all times during the Year met the requirements of
the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of required number of
independent non-executive Directors which shall be at least one-
third of the Board with at least one independent non-executive
Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications,
or accounting or related financial management expertise. The
Company has received the annual confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive Directors in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Board
considers each of them to be independent under the aforesaid Rule
3.18.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has not established a corporate governance committee.

Instead, the full Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance function such as developing and reviewing the
Company’s policies, practices on corporate governance, training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, etc. During the Year, the
Board reviewed the Company’s status of compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code.

Every Board member has full access to the advice and services of
the company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”)
with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable
rules and regulations are followed and they are also entitled to have
full access to Board papers and related materials so that they are
able to make informed decisions and to discharge their duties and
responsibilities.

% — e EFEZER G2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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SUPPORT AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

The Company is responsible for arranging and funding suitable
training for the Directors. All Directors have been given
relevant guideline materials regarding the roles, the duties and
responsibilities of being a Director, the relevant laws and regulations
applicable to them, duty of disclosure of interests and business of
the Group and they have been updated on the latest development
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of
good corporate governance practices. There is a procedure agreed
by the Board to ensure the Directors, upon reasonable request, to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstance,
at the Company’s expenses. The Directors confirmed that
they have complied with code provision A.6.5 of the Corporate
Governance Code on directors’ training. During the Year, all of
the current Directors have participated in continuous professional
development by attending seminars/in-house briefing and/or
reading materials on the following topics to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills and provided a record of training to the
Company.

FrAEEIER (M)

EENER Topics on training covered
Name of Directors (Note)
BESEE (FE) Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien (Chairman) ac
REELE Mr. Hou Jung-Lung a,c
PREYE % Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui ab,c
BRI E Mr. Su Tsung-Ming a,b,c
PREEfESE A Mr. Chen Sun-Te ac
PRE LA Mr. Chen Johnny a,b
SBIESLE Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony a,b
BEESLE Mr. Lo Peter ab
B 5 - Note:

(a) corporate governance/regulatory
(b)  finance
(c) industry-specific
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BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS

Board meetings are held at regular intervals for, among other
matters, reviewing and approving the financial and operating
performance, and considering and approving the overall strategies
and policies of the Company. The Board met six times during the
year ended 31 December 2016.

The attendance of individual Board members at the Board and
Board committees meetings during the year ended 31 December
2016 are set out in the table below:

B/ BIERERA (M)
Number of meetings attended/held (Note 1)

RE BRR
BKEEE REZEE HMZEEE %RZE%
-4 a3 a3 e& 82 RRBEAE
Investment,
Strategy and
Audit ~ Nomination Remuneration Development Annual
Board Committee Committee Committee Committee General
meeting meeting meeting meeting meeting Meeting
HITEE Executive Directors
BRARAE Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien 6/6 - 33 212 5/5 N
REER & Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui 6/6 - - - - 1N
FHTEE Non-executive Directors
REEEE (H3E2) Mr. Hou Jung-Lung (Note 2) 6/6 - - - 5/5 0/1
BE#LE Mr. Su Tsung-Ming 6/6 23 - - 4/5 11
BUFHITEE Inciependient Non-executive Directors
REER Mr. Chen Sun-Te 5/6 33 - 202 35 0
BRER 7% (FiFS) Mr. Chen Johnny (Note 3) 5/6 12 2/2 - 3/4 1
BLERE (M) Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony (Note 4) 6/6 3/3 1 1N 5/5 1N
BE 2% (fis) Mr. Lo Peter (Note 5) 6/6 33 33 1 5/5 1
68 % — ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Note:

1. Attendances during the Year were made by reference to the number
of meetings held during the Directors’ respective tenures.

2. Mr. Hou Jung-Lung was re-designated from an executive Director to
a non-executive Director with effect from 1 July 2016.

3. Mr. Chen Johnny was appointed as a member of each of the Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee and Investment, Strategy and
Development Committee with effect from 1 April 2016.

4. Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony ceased to be the chairman of the
Nomination Committee and was appointed as a member of
Remuneration Committee with effect from 1 April 2016.

5. Mr. Lo Peter ceased to be a member of the Remuneration Committee
and was appointed as the chairman of the Nomination Committee
with effect from 1 April 2016.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Up to 31 March 2016, the Audit Committee comprised Mr.
Fan Ren-Da, Anthony, Mr. Chen Sun-Te, Mr. Lo Peter, who are
independent non-executive Directors and Mr. Su Tsung-Ming,
who is a non-executive Director. Following the change of Board
committees composition of the Company on 1 April 2016, Mr.
Chen Johnny, an independent non-executive Director, was
appointed as an additional member of Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee is chaired by Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on appointment and removal of
the external auditors, approving the remuneration and terms of
engagement of external auditors, reviewing financial information
and overseeing the financial reporting system and internal control
procedures. The specific written terms of reference of the Audit
Committee are available for inspection upon request at the principal
office of the Company in Hong Kong and on the websites of the
Company and of the Stock Exchange.
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The Audit Committee held three meetings during the Year to review

the annual and interim financial statements and the effectiveness

of the internal control practices of the Group. A summary of work

performed by the Audit Committee during the Year is set out as

follows:

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

reviewed with the senior management and finance-in-charge
and/or the external auditors the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group, the accuracy and fairness of
the annual and interim financial statements for the Year and
for the six months ended 30 June 2016 respectively;

met with the external auditors and reviewed their work and
findings relating to the annual audit for the Year and the
effectiveness of the audit process;

reviewed with management and finance-in-charge the
effectiveness of the risk management, internal control

systems and the internal audit function of the Group;

conducted an annual review of non-exempt continuing
connected transactions of the Group for the Year;

approved the audit plan for the year ended 31 December
2017;

reviewed the external auditors’ independence, approved the
engagement of the external auditors and recommended the
Board on the re-appointment of the external auditors; and

reviewed the Company’s progress in implementing the
corporate governance requirements as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code and terms of reference of Audit
Committee.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Up to 31 March 2016, the Nomination Committee comprised Mr.
Fan Ren-Da, Anthony and Mr. Lo Peter, who are both independent
non-executive Directors, and Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien, who is an
executive Director. Following the change of Board committees
composition of the Company on 1 April 2016, (i) Mr. Fan Ren-
Da, Anthony ceased to be the chairman of the Nomination
Committee and (i) Mr. Lo Peter and Mr. Chen Johnny, who are
both independent non-executive Directors, were appointed as
the chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of
Nomination Committee respectively. The Nomination Committee is
chaired by Mr. Lo Peter since 1 April 2016.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board, identify individuals
suitably qualified to become members of the Board, assess the
independence of independent non-executive Directors and make
recommendations to the Board on any proposed changes to
the Board, or select individual nominated for directorships and/
or appoint or re-appoint Directors. The specific written terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee are available for inspection
upon request at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong
and the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange.
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The Board from time to time considers replenishing the composition
of the Board whenever the Company needs to meet the business
demand, opportunities and challenges and to comply with the
applicable laws and regulations. The nomination procedure
basically follows the Articles of Association, which empowers the
Board from time to time and at any time to appoint any person as
a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the
Board. The Nomination Committee will base on objective criteria
with due regard to the benefits of diversity, as set out in the Board
Diversity Policy of the Company, to identify and recommend the
proposed candidate(s) to the Board for approval of appointment(s),
and where a candidate is proposed to be appointed as an
independent non-executive Director, his/her independence will be
assessed in accordance with, among others, the factors as set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, subject to any amendments
as may be made by the Stock Exchange from time to time. Where
applicable, the totality of the candidate’s education, qualifications
and experience will also be evaluated to consider whether he/
she has the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise for filling the office of
an independent non-executive Director with such qualifications or
expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held three meetings to
review the composition and structure of the Board. The Nomination
Committee have reviewed the independence of Mr. Chen Sun-
Te, Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony and Mr. Lo Peter who have served
more than nine years as an independent non-executive director
at the Company during the Year pursuant to the provision A.4.3
of the Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee also nominated and
recommended (i) the re-designation of Mr. Hou Jung-Lung from an
executive director to a non-executive director; (i) the appointment
of Mr. Liu Xinhua as the President; (i) the appointment of Mr. Chen
Kuo-Hui as an authorised representative of the Company (for the
purpose of Rule 3.05 of the Listing Rules); and (iv) the change in
composition of the Board committees, all of which were accepted
by the Board.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company continuously seeks to enhance the effectiveness
of the Board and to maintain the highest standards of corporate
governance and recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity
in the Board. The Board adopted a Board Diversity Policy to comply
with code provision A.5.6 of the Corporate Governance Code. The
Board Diversity Policy is available on the website of the Company.

The Company believes that a diversity of perspectives can be
achieved through consideration of a number of factors, including
but not limited to skills, regional and industry experience, cultural
and educational background, race, gender and other qualities. In
informing its perspective on diversity, the Company will also take
into account factors based on its own business model and specific
needs from time to time.

The composition, experience and balance of skills on the
Board are regularly reviewed to ensure that the Board retains a
core of members with long-standing knowledge of the Group
alongside new Director(s) appointed from time to time who bring
fresh perspectives and diverse experiences to the Board. The
process for the nomination of Directors is led by the Nomination
Committee, which has been made on a merit basis. The Board
will review the Board Diversity Policy on a regular basis to ensure
its continued effectiveness. The names of the current Directors
and their biographies (including their role as well as their skills and
experience) are set out on in the section headed “Directors’ Profile”
of this annual report.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Up to 31 March 2016, the Remuneration Committee comprised
two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chen Sun-Te
and Mr. Lo Peter; and one executive Director, namely Mr. Lo Chih-
Hsien. Following the change of Board committees composition
of the Company on 1 April 2016, Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony, an
independent non-executive Director, was appointed as a member
of the Remuneration Committee in replacement of Mr. Lo Peter.
The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Chen Sun-Te
throughout the Year.
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The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to
make recommendation to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure of the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management and the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and senior management. Details of the
remuneration of each of the Directors for the Year are set out in
Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements. The specific
written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available for inspection upon request at the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong and on the websites of the Company and
of the Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the Year. A
summary of work performed by the Remuneration Committee is set
out as follows:

()  reviewed and recommended to the Board on the fees of the
non-executive Directors;

(i)  reviewed the current level and remuneration structure/
package and approved the specific remuneration package of
the executive Directors; and

(i) reviewed and recommended to the Board the remuneration
for the chairmen of the four committees of the Board, namely
the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Investment, Strategy and Development
Committee.

REMUNERATION OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

During the Year, the remuneration payable to the 4 members of the
senior management (other than the Directors) of the Group ranged
from RMBO0.8 million to RMB1.7 million.

— B E R EZER B R 2 8 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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INVESTMENT, STRATEGY AND
DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

The Board also established the Investment, Strategy and
Development Committee. Following the change of Board
committee composition of the Company on 1 April 2016, Mr. Chen
Johnny, an independent non-executive Director, was appointed as
an additional member of the Investment, Strategy and Development
Committee. Since 1 April 2016, the Investment, Strategy and
Development Committee comprised Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien who is an
executive Director, Mr. Hou Jung-Lung and Mr. Su Tsung-Ming,
who are non-executive Directors, and Mr. Chen Sun-Te, Mr. Chen
Johnny, Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony and Mr. Lo Peter, who are
independent non-executive Directors. The Investment, Strategy and
Development Committee is chaired by Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien.

The primary functions of the Investment, Strategy and Development
Committee are to review the investment and development plan
and policies of the Group and to review investment proposals and
make recommendations to the Board. The specific written terms of
reference of the Investment, Strategy and Development Committee
are available for inspection upon request at the principal office of
the Company in Hong Kong.

AUDITORS’ INDEPENDENCE AND
REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is mandated to review and monitor the
independence of the external auditors of the Company to
ensure objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process
in accordance with the applicable standards. Members of the
Audit Committee were of the view that the Company’s external
auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”), is independent and
have recommended the Board to reappoint PwC as the external
auditors of the Company subject to the shareholders’ approval
at the forthcoming AGM. During the Year, the remuneration paid/
payable to all external auditors engaged by the Group for their audit
services amounted to RMB7.8 million. No significant remuneration
was paid to PwC for the provision of non-audit related service to
the Company during the Year.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS
OF LISTED ISSUERS (THE “MODEL CODE?”)

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules to regulate the Directors’ securities
transactions. All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry
by the Company, that they have fully complied with the required
standards as set out in the Model Code and its code of conduct
regarding the Directors’ securities transactions during the Year and
up to the date of the annual report.

Senior management who, because of their office in the Company,
are likely to be in possession of inside information, have also been
requested to comply with the provisions of the securities dealing
code adopted by the Company, which is no less exacting than the
Model Code when dealing in the Company’s shares.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining a sound
and effective risk management and internal control system of
the Group. The Board has not established a risk management
committee. Instead, the full Board is responsible for performing the
risk management function, including establishing and approving
the overall risk management strategies of the Group from time to
time, overseeing senior management’s implementation of those
strategies to align with the Company’s overall business objectives,
determining the Group’s risk profile, overseeing risk management
framework structure, reviewing key risks and mitigation strategies
and ensuring risk management effectiveness.

#— e EFEZER G2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.



SEMBETmERE LM THA - ER
BAE-—ExZHNREREEREF-8 M LK
77 AL S 75 BE o 38 A R ez B B E R e
MAER mB LM e RIFHE RRE
BRUEBEUREBERARENBERREEE
EEAAER  RERE DR ETALE
FaIE - B IR E B B R 1 A AL L E R ESOR
MEROER BUARREERSERAR
MEZAE AUBRROARERSBENE
i ARREE AR NEEERE
ML L BRIRS T AR E R RN ZEHERK
BRI

AEERIABREEMABEZRGE 8
WERE  REAEEEE - %t&@gﬁﬁ
RRERRER BREFEE ST
BTRBEERERO - RAFE ELEE
BRI E - BB 5t B B S B A SR
THmmT N ARABEFTEEAZER

&R EAEE R AR B A KB E R
EEMARERERGE AR AR BT
BEE 2EEARERULARERE [
REERANEFNAREFHETEEZA
BREVEEEEAMBFE-

ARARAANBEAEL-—BEREREESE
E%% ZEREBEARERZESES

CEREBEESNM EBREIN A
%Hﬁ*ﬁﬂﬁi,uééﬁﬂﬁéﬁmw
MEHEERS REAKERMLEXIE
AR UEHRERERENEEZANER
ZESLEFERM -REANEEREKNE
MBS B R IRHABEMIFRBE ZRE - I
EEMIETEHGRAEELERRRUZE
e NEBAKRE 2 XBRIZ

JJ:% \Aiﬁm

Corporate Governance Report

A bottom-up and top-down approach is utilised to ensure a holistic
risk management process. The bottom-up approach is supported
by key business units to identify and prioritise risks while the top-
down approach reviews and assesses if risks are comprehensively
identified, prioritised, and properly addressed by key business units
to accomplish the Group’s objectives. The management team is
regularly monitoring emerging risks for continuous risk assessment
purpose and for building the risk-management based internal audit
plan and periodically assess the adequacy and effectiveness of
risk management and internal controls for ongoing risk assurance
purposes. This enhances the effectiveness of the Group’s risk and
control framework.

The Group’s risk management and internal control system is
designed to reduce risks, safeguard the Group’s assets, prevent
and detect fraud and protect shareholders’ investment as well
as to ensure that proper accounting records are maintained and
applicable legislation and regulations are complied with. During the
Year, through discussions with the management, the internal audit
team and external auditors and with reference to a report submitted
by the internal audit team, the Board has conducted assessments
and reviews of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control system in various perspectives, including,
among others, financial control, operational and compliance
controls and risk management. The risk management and internal
control systems are reviewed by the Board annually and each

review covers a whole financial year.

The internal audit unit of the Company, which is subordinated to
the Board, formulates the internal audit plan of the Group based
on the strategic objectives analysis, business flow analysis, risk
assessment and performance evaluation and the self-inspection
mechanism with comprehensive risk management functions
under the authority of the Board and the guidance of the Audit
Committee. It regularly reports to the Audit Committee and the
Board for its audit findings and recommendations on internal
control. The system is designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss, and
to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in the Group’s
operational systems and in the achievement of the Group’s
business objectives.
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During the Year, the internal audit unit of the Company continuously
optimised job responsibilities and functions of different departments
according to the annual audit plan approved by the Board. Such
audit work covered food safety, financial, operation, statutory
compliance and risk management of the Group at all levels and
functions, taking into account of the manpower cost-effectiveness.
To be cost-effective and to ensure the quality of the audit and
the completion of the audit as scheduled, the internal audit was
also carried out with the help of computer systems. During the
Year, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and material internal controls system and is of
the opinion that the resources for and qualifications of staff of
the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function are
adequate and sufficient. Based on information furnished to it and
on its own observations, the Board is satisfied with the present
risk management and internal control systems of the Group and
considers them effective and adequate. During the Year and up
to the date of this annual report, nothing has been found which
requires substantial improvement.

The Group has also adopted an internal policy for certain
employees who, because of their office in the Company, may
from time to time encounter inside information (as defined in the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong)).

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company is committed to ensure that the Group complies
with disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules and other
applicable laws and regulations. The Company communicates with
the shareholders of the Company mainly in the following ways:
(i) the holding of the AGM and extraordinary general meeting(s)
(the “EGM”), if any, which may be convened for specific purpose
and provide opportunities for the shareholders of the Company
to communicate directly with the Board; (ii) the publication of
announcements, annual reports, interim reports and/or circulars as
required under the Listing Rules and, if appropriate, press releases
of the Company providing updated information of the Group;
and (i) the availability of latest information of the Group at the
Company’s website.

#— e EFEZER G2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity

for constructive communication between the shareholders of the

Company and the Board. During the Year, the AGM was held on
20 May 2016. Members of the Board, namely Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien

(Chairman),

Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui, Mr. Su Tsung-Ming, Mr. Chen

Johnny, Mr. Fan Ren-Da Anthony and Mr. Lo Peter, were present

and available to answer questions raised by the shareholders of

the Company at the AGM. The Company’s external auditors and

Company Secretary also attended the 2016 AGM.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

(1)

(2)

Procedures for shareholders to convene an EGM

According to the Articles of Association, any two or more
members of the Company or any one member of the
Company which is a recognised clearing house (or its
nominee(s)) may request for an EGM to be convened upon
depositing at the principal office of the Company in Hong
Kong written requisition specifying the objects of the meeting
and signed by the requisitionist(s), provided that as at the
date of deposit of the requisition, such requisitionist(s) hold
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
which carries the right of voting at a general meeting of the
Company.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit, the Board fails
to proceed to convene the EGM, the requisitionist(s) or any
of them representing more than one-half of the total voting
rights of all of them, may themselves convene an EGM, but
any meeting so convened shall not be held after three months
from the date of the original deposit and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the
Board’s failure to convene an EGM shall be reimbursed to
them by the Company.

Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders’ enquiries about their shareholdings can
be directed to the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited. Other shareholders’ enquiries can be directed to the
Company Secretarial Office by post to the principal office of
the Company in Hong Kong or by fax to +852 2893 1150.
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(3) Procedures for putting forward proposal at general
meetings

There are no provisions allowing shareholders of the
Company to put forward proposals at the general meetings
under the Memorandum of Association (the “Memorandum”)
and Articles of Association or the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands. If shareholders of the Company wish to
do so, they may request to convene an EGM as stipulated
above and specify the proposals in such written requisition.
Pursuant to Article 116 of the Articles of Association, no
person shall, unless recommended by the Board, be eligible
for election to the office of director at any general meeting
unless during the period, which shall be at least seven days,
commencing no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the
notice of the meeting appointed for such election and ending
no later than seven days prior to the date of such meeting,
there has been given to the Company Secretary notice in
writing by a member of the Company (not being the person to
be proposed), entitled to attend and vote at the meeting for
which such notice is given, of his intention to propose such
person for election and also notice in writing signed by the
person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, the Company had not amended its constitutional
documents.

ACCOUNTABILITY

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for overseeing the
preparation of financial statements for each financial period which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and
of the results and cash flow for that period. A statement from
the auditors about their reporting responsibilities is set out in the
section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” of the annual
report. In preparing the financial statements for the Year, the
Directors have selected suitable accounting policies and applied
them consistently and have made prudent and reasonable
judgements and estimates and have prepared the financial
statements on a going concern basis.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The role of the Company Secretary is currently performed by Mr.
Pang Ka Fai, Angus (“Mr. Pang”). Mr. Pang is serving as an external
service provider to the Company and the primary contact person
of the Company with Mr. Pang is Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui, the executive
Director and the chief financial officer of the Company. According
to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Pang has taken no less than
15 hours of relevant professional training during the financial year
ended 31 December 2016.
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Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. (“Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) attach great importance to safeguarding and
balancing the interests of stakeholders. In the face of the changing
and challenging business environment, the Group pursues the
objective and strategy of “sustainable development” in achieving
growth, while actively fulfills its social corporate responsibilities by
ensuring its business operation creates social, human and natural
capital in areas of product safety, energy saving and environmental
protection, disaster relief, community charity, product quality and
employees caring.

It is the responsibility of the Board of the Company to assess
the environmental, social and governance risks, formulate the
environmental, social and governance strategy, ensure the
establishment and maintenance of an effective internal control
system on environmental, social and governance aspects as well
as perform regular analysis and independent assessment on the
adequacy and effectiveness of the said system through the internal
audit function.

The Group generates revenue and conducts business in China,
hence the Environmental, Social and Governance Report contains
information and data of the Group that originates in China, but
excludes data of its associates and joint ventures.

ENVIRONMENT

The Group engages in the manufacturing of instant noodles and
beverages, which is closely linked to the usage of natural resources
and environmental protection. The Group demonstrated its
commitment to environmental protection through the continuous
upgrade of production techniques and product quality, introduction
of technology on energy saving, waste reduction, clean production
and pollution treatment enhancement, and recycling of water and
other materials. In 2016, the Group invested a total of RMB7.3
million in energy saving and production of clean energy.
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EMISSION CONTROL

Emission of wastewater, gas and solid waste from operation by
factories of the Group is in compliance with national standards
and requirements of the local environmental authorities in the PRC.
In addition, the Group formulates and carries out daily inspection
of pollution treatment facilities as well as monthly, quarterly and
annual maintenance to ensure emission treatment equipment
is under normal operation, thereby reducing the environmental
impact of pollutants. In pursuit of energy saving and low carbon
operation, the Group cuts pollutant emissions through replacing
coal-fired boilers, cooperating on photovoltaic projects as well as
upgrading and renovating wastewater treatment facilities. In terms
of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes, the Group adopts the
management strategy for waste from operation at its factories,
which focuses on the legal transportation and disposal, as well as
reduction and recycle of waste. The “Working Standards on Scrap
Materials” and “Regulations on Safety Administration of Hazardous
Chemicals” are also in place for waste management.

2016 FEAEBMBEMELELLMEMT  The below table sets out the total emission from the operation of
*: the Group in 2016:

B Emission 2016 2015
REK (B &) Wastewater (million tonnes) 5.6 6.1
— & bfix (F88) Carbon dioxide (thousand tonnes) 598.4 620.3
fvBEFaE (M) Chemical oxygen demand (tonnes) 354.0 384.4
RE/H (W) Nitrogen oxide (tonnes) 208.7 300.2
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The Group strictly complies with relevant national environmental
laws and regulations. To reduce damages to the environment, it
also reviews improvement measures on an ongoing basis and
ensures systematic management and optimization. The major
enviromental laws and regulations that the Group is subject to
include:

“Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China”

“Law of the People’s Republic of China on
the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution”

“Law on Water Pollution Prevention and
Control of the People’s Republic of China”

“Law of the People’s Republic of China
on Appraising of Environment Impacts”

“Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and
Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste”

“Regulations on the Safety Administration of Dangerous Chemicals”

“Energy Conservation Law of the People’s Republic of China”

“Regulations on the Administration of the Charging and Use of
Pollutant Discharge Fees”

“Emission Standard of Atmospheric Pollutants from Boiler”

“Comprehensive Sewage Drainage Standards”
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USE OF RESOURCES

The raw material for the manufacture of beverages is primarily
polyester chips for the making of bottles, while the raw material of
instant noodles comprises mainly polypropylene, polyethylene and
food packaging paper used as packaging materials.

Through the procurement mechanism, supply chain management
and priority to green raw materials in purchasing, the “green
procurement” policy implemented by the Group encourages
suppliers to reduce wastage and pollution. The Group regularly
inspects and reviews energy consumption to prevent leakage.
To meet the government’s target of energy saving and emission
reduction, the Group reports and evaluates new technology and
progress in energy saving and emission reduction. Apart from that,
the Group also sets out targets for energy efficiency evaluation
and exercises strict control on energy consumption to improve and
enhance energy management. In addition, it invites the employees
to submit energy saving renovation plans, cut energy consumption,
conducts continuous energy management training and energy
conservation quiz that are designed to deepen their knowledge on
energy saving policy and raise green awareness, thereby promoting
more efficient use of resources within the Group.

BEREHA Use of resources 2016 2015
K(EEW) Water (million tonnes) 10.3 11.1
B (KT EE) Electricity (GWH) 362.6 396.7
KAR (BEMLFK) Natural gas (million cubic metre) 43.3 53.9
B CFFmE) Coal (thousand tonnes) 17.8 29.4
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The Group implements the wastewater recycle and reuse policy
by constructing wastewater recycling facilities and reclaimed water
recycle tanks that collect reusable water from bottle washing and
other production procedures. The Group works in line with the
local government plans and puts the treated effluent under deep
treatment in the reclaimed water tank before it is discharged for
municipal greening. Upon treatment, the recycle rate can be as
high as 20% and the annual recycle capacity exceeds 2.0 million
tonnes.

ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

The Group sets up pollutant collection and treatment facilities
along production and operation process at the factories, thereby
ensuring sufficient treatment is available and pollutant emission
is in compliance with the local requirements. It also assesses
the feasibility of green facilities from time to time and adopts
effective green initiatives and plans, including carbon emission,
pollution treatment, sustainable use of resources and ecological
conservation, in effectuating and contributing to sustainable social
and environmental development.

BIODIVERSITY IMPACT MANAGEMENT

The Group has conducted various assessments on the environment
of the industrial sites and relevant laws at the beginning of the
planning stage of each production site. The sites chosen for the
production bases are within the areas permitted by the local
governments and pollution treatment measures are implemented
to ensure the operation will not exceed the local environmental
capacity and no harm will be done to biodiversity, so as to minimize
the effect and impact to the local biodiversity.

% — e EFEZER G2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group strives to build an efficient, effective and highly-
disciplined team. Not only does it aim at creating an excellent
working environment with active and positive atmosphere, it also
makes efforts to establish a diversified communication channel
and a career platform for employees to realise their full potential.
The Group recruits talents who meet its strategic needs through
career events at campuses, open recruitment and agency on a fair
and equitable basis. Adhering to the recruitment and employment
principle of “both ability and integrity, and meritocracy”, the Group
sets up a competitive compensation and bonus system where
employees will be rewarded with basic salary, incentives, welfare
commodities and supplemental medical treatment based on their
positions and abilities. It also establishes operation standards in
respect of performance evaluation and promotion management to
offer internal promotion and career development to its employees.

The Group protects everyone’s right to work. Regardless of gender,
ethnicity, religious belief, age, disability, sexuality, nationality, political
orientation, race, whether she/he is a veteran, and all staff members
receive equal treatment at work in terms of job opportunity,
remuneration, promotion, disciplinary treatment, dismissal and
retirement. The employment contract that each employee signs
with the Group clearly defines rights, responsibilities and obligations
of employees and employers, including remuneration, working
hours, employee benefits, leaves etc. Every employee is entitled
to the termination of an employment relationship with the Group’s
company related to the employment. The setting up, amendment,
cancellation and termination of the relevant employment contract
are strictly subject to the relevant laws and regulations.

The Group strictly complies with relevant national laws and
regulations, including the “Labour Law of the People’s Republic
of China” and the “Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic
of China”, while it takes initiatives to improve and continuously
enhance the level of management.
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HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group recognizes the importance of workplace safety and
upholds the management principle of safe production. It has also
established a set of standards for safe operation which match
with the job nature. The Group implements occupational safety
management system, clearly defines the safe production duties of
all positions, performs identification on sources of risks and risk
assessment while formulates the risk control measures in relation to
occupational health and safety from time to time. In order to ensure
employees’ health and safety, it conducts regular occupational
hazard inspection at workplace and offers body checks for
employees to ensure their health and safety. It also maintains strict
compliance with laws and regulations such as “Production Safety
Law”, “General Storage Rules of Dangerous Chemicals in Common
Use” and “Laws on Safety of Special Equipment of the People’s
Republic of China”.

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group encourages staff members to participate in on-job
trainings and provides subsidies to eligible employees. Based on
job nature, the Group offers trainings of different types and levels
to newly recruits, junior supervisors, senior supervisors and key
personnel, and specialized trainings for management trainees, so
as to enhance their business skills and management level. In 2016,
our staff spent approximately 15,000 hours on attending trainings.

LABOUR STANDARD

The Group has set up a well-established mechanism and states in
the “Staff Manual” that the minimum age of employees is 18 years.
The selection, employment, training, compensation, promotion
and deployment of staff of the Group is not biased against any
particular race, skin color, religion or gender, so as to ensure equal
opportunities. The Group obeys and follows the labour laws and
regulations as it adheres to a fair and equitable employment policy
that forbids child and forced labor.

#— e EFEZER G2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Employees’ rest time is well respected by the Group, and
employees enjoy paid holidays in accordance with the laws.
To maintain the physical and mental balance of employees,
computerized attendance systems are put in place to effectively
manage their working hours and rest dates. To prevent forced
overtime work, any necessary arrangements of overtime must
be agreed by employees voluntarily. Overtime and overtime pay
are in line with the local laws and regulations. During the working
hours, employees are allowed to move freely within the factory or
office areas except for certain controlled areas. The employees are
not required to reside in the factory quarters, nor does the Group
require the employees’ identity or work documents to be kept by
the employer. The Group strictly observes the provisions in “Labour
Law of the People’s Republic of China” and “Labour Contract Law
of the People’s Republic of China”.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group adheres to the principle of “food safety as the first
priority (RFAEZ 2 BE —E%) " all the time, with its raw materials
and formula included under its food safety monitoring and
management system. Thus, choosing good suppliers and supply
chain management mechanism is of great significance to promote
a smooth transition in the course of upstream and downstream
cooperation, so as to ensure that consumers have no food safety
risks, increase operational efficiency and achieve a win-win situation

for both upstream and downstream.

In order to avoid issues such as uneven product quality and lack of
unified standard for materials in use throughout the supply chain,
the Group implements “unified tender evaluation mechanism ( £%
—HEFHE) " for selecting suppliers, that is to evaluate well-known
enterprises in the industry based on the principles of fair, justice,
openness and credibility through procedures such as visiting the
manufacturers’ factories, and to inspect the suppliers’ goods and
materials by the Group’s internal department or a third-party testing
organization, so as to select the shortlisted suppliers. Review
assessments are being conducted from time to time every year in
order to ensure that the suppliers comply with the management
measures formulated by the Group.
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PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

The Group put food safety as its priority and provides safe,
healthy and delicious food to consumers. To enhance food safety
management, it has set up the food safety committee and food
safety center as it puts in efforts in the construction of the food
safety protection system, formulation of food safety policy and
further development of risk assessment, alert and monitoring with
an aim of ensuring food safety. The Group is also committed to for
managing the quality assurance system as well as establishing and
implementing the quality policy for maintaining product quality.

In mass production process, all materials must go through sampling
tests before warehousing to prevent inappropriate materials from
being used in production. All finished products must go through the
scanning and inspection by specialists or metal detection devices
to ensure there is no metal scrap or sharp objects remaining.
The packaging for all inspected products is carried out under the
supervision of trained staff with the adoption of sealed records for
shipments so as to prevent any placing of dangerous items into the
packages during delivery.

In addition to strict compliance with relevant national requirements,
the Group also established internal control standards, for instances,
the “Product Specification Standards” and “Food Product Safety
Specification Standards” which stipulate the compliance in relation
to product quality and safety. The Group also has a “Product
Recall Procedure” in place which deals with products delivered
to customers that are unsafe or potentially unsafe or may harm
the Group’s image. At the same time, it observes closely the
national food laws and regulations and other food safety standards,
including the “Food Safety Law”, “Food Safety National Standards-
General Rules for Labelling of Prepackaged Food” and “Standards
on Nutrition Labelling of Prepackaged Foods”.

#—EFEZER G2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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The Group keeps a close business relationship with its distributor
customers and highly protects their privacy and commercial secrets.
The Group has provided reasonable packaging and displayed
detailed product information for its products, including product
details, packaging materials, ingredients and instructions. The
Group’s marketing activities for its products are conducted by sub-
contractors according to the Group’s privacy protection policies
and operation strategies and in accordance with “Contract Law of
the People’s Republic of China”, “Anti-Unfair Competition Law of
the People’s Republic of China” and “Criminal Law of the People’s
Republic of China”.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group has established standards for relationships with suppliers
and government authorities. It also set up ethical standards and
code of conduct for dealing with business partners, suppliers and
customers, which require its employees to uphold professional
ethics. The internal audit unit and internal control system are
responsible for reinforcing the efforts in anti-corruption and bribery
monitoring within the Group. Furthermore, the reporting mechanism
and the incentive and disciplinary committee have been set up to
improve management and promote compliance, so as to prevent
the risk of corruption in all aspects of operation and management.

The Group strictly observes the provisions in “Anti-Unfair
Competition Law of the People’s Republic of China” and “Criminal
Law of the People’s Republic of China”.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

As it pursues business development, the Group also fulfils its
responsibility as a member of the community by proactively
participating in social community events in China and taking
actions to contribute to society. The Group has joined a variety of
campaigns which involved community commitment, subsidies to
school construction, support to charity donation, blood donation,
afforestation and forest conservation as well as visits to the
disadvantaged.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
UNI-PRESIDENT CHINA HOLDINGS LTD.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Uni-President China
Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set
out on pages 101 to 236, which comprise:

the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2016;

° the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended;
and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BRI KA AT B BT - Bl PR R E T
Mt : +852 2289 8888 » fHE : +852 2810 9888 * www.pwchk.com

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

° Revenue Recognition: Sales of goods

° Deferred income tax assets

% — % FEZER AR 2 F Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Key Audit Matter
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RMNETNMEEARETSE

Revenue Recognition: Sales of goods

Wz iB 3 B mHE

Refer to Note 2.25 (a) and Note 5 to the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.
E2H EfBEGEMBmEMT2.250) %
FH5Es o

During the year ended 31 December 2016,
the Group has recognised revenue from sales
of goods amounted to RMB20,986 million.
B E2016F12A31HIEFE - EHEERT
7o fHE WA G AR %20,986B & 7T

Revenue is recognised when the amount
and the related costs are reliably measured,
and the risks and rewards of the underlying
products have been transferred to the
customers.

EIHEWA AR RN 525t 2 - B
MmN FEFERBRMBME SR EEE TR
F AR HE A

We focused on this area due to the huge
volume of revenue transactions generated
from sales of numerous kinds of products to
a large number of customers, including direct
customers and distributors in many different
locations.

mY EEERENEREEXZRALR
RABEBRZHNEFIRHEIEER  BRESMH
AT R [ B B % A4S 85 7 o B8 ok AP
R mIHE WA ERIERBEETEE-
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We understood, evaluated and validated management’s controls
in respect of the Group’s sales transactions from customer order’s
approval, goods delivery, sales recording, reconciliation of cash
receipts and customer’s records through to subsequent settlement
of trade receivables. In addition, we tested the general control
environment of the Group's information technology systems and
the automatic controls that were related to revenue recording.
BAMITUERFARR STETRIFREERS 2 AEES
BEINHEXIHTESH AmEL WARSE KRETFE
BHRE BEEMEREKEINEEZ TBBIE W HEER
Rtz —MEHRFETAS WA EERIEE RRAER
S A=k

We conducted testing of revenue recorded covering different
locations and customers, using sampling techniques, by examining
the relevant supporting documents including customer orders,
goods delivery notes and customer’s receipt notes. In addition,
we confirmed customers’ balances and transactions on a sample
basis, by considering the amount, nature and characteristics of
those customers.
BMEARBARN A STRAMERTRAER 2 WA TR
BETAR B EEERAHEXHNETIIE LEER
BEREERCHERFETAS I HMBEBEEEFE HE
MEHZZE UBEAAHRNEERFUGHEZ B LE
WHRIBH SRS N D HEITHE ©

Furthermore, we tested sales transactions that took place shortly
before and after the balance sheet date, by reconciling recognised
revenue with the goods delivery notes and customers’ receipt
notes, to assess whether revenue was recognised in the correct
reporting periods.

N BT EEEERBAGCREHARANEER ZHETA
BB ARRENEE BEEEWHTE AT E AR A

EREEE R -

Based on the work performed, we found the Group’s revenue
from sales of goods being tested were recognised in a manner
consistent with the Group’s revenue recognition accounting policy.
BREBFIPMATOET TE BHMRE EXEEREERAZR
FI R E Y ATER 2 BT R — e
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMNESONEEERETSE

Deferred income tax assets

EEFEHEE

Refer to Note 2.22 and Note 12 to the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.
F2M BESRBEGEEMBEHRENT2.22 %K
iE12e

As at 31 December 2016, deferred income
tax assets of approximately RMB214
million were recognised for tax losses that
can be carried forward, to the extent that
realisation of the related tax benefits through
the availability of future taxable profits is
probable. On the other hand, the Group did
not recognise deferred income tax assets of
approximately RMB73 million in respect of
tax losses that can be carried forward against
future taxable income.

20165128318 BEEBEREARKEHE
REFEERNEMTIATSEE  $H8RKH
MR RREBENZ MG ERERELMEHE
EBEARARE214BEIT - BN HR XK
REEEAEENANTEBE BE5E
AERBELEFREHEENSHIORARK
7T3E&BIT e

Significant judgements are required in
determining the recognition of deferred
income tax assets, considering whether future
taxable profit will be available against which
the accumulative tax losses can be utilised.
FEFERT ST A E MV RIS M B2 H
HBERIKRKREERESTHNERATFTE
FLARRIEIN RSt B A5 48 o

We focused on this area due to the inherent
complexity and judgements on the forecast
of the availability and timing of future taxable
profits, including the key assumption of
revenue growth rates and gross margin.
ZRINZGA ATV ABEM W HZH
iy R RIRENR ISR AT ERIERA
R FER EhaERAEREREMNEX
SHREHR WL IESEREFFE-

As part of our risk assessment in this area, we compared the
current year actual results with the prior year forecast to consider,
with hindsight, whether key assumptions included in that forecast
had been subject to management bias.
ERBEBTHN—HMD BB AFEEREEEUNFEZ
BAFER - LG BR AP 2 ARREEEFEEREERR -

We then evaluated and challenged management’s profit forecasts
for the next five years of individual entities that have accumulated
tax losses. Our assessment focused on certain key assumptions,
such as revenue growth rates and gross margin, by comparing
them to these entities’ historical operating results and future
operating plans, together with economic and industry forecasts.
We also considered the potential impact of reasonably possible
downside changes in these key assumptions.
BAFELREREEEHERANEERENER FRARIMENR
RAFRMEAZAEE ERMNFEPERBIZLEZR
RIEF OIS REZRERNE  FZRBLEREBFRGNE
SRR ARRESEFE] WS KB RITEZ TR - S5 BA
i P EEREAARESN TRBEH AR EEMBRNE
TR BT

The existence and amounts of tax losses, together with their expiry
dates, and the income tax rates applicable to the entities have
been verified by examining the tax returns submitted by the relevant
entities and reviewing the correspondences with the tax authorities.
BPBBBERS TAREE SHMEARETETEHEE AR
NRENBERENTE ROERL BN FRARZQEE
FRE T F B -

Based on our work performed we found that management’s
judgement and estimation for the recognition of deferred tax assets
were supported by the evidences that we gathered.
BERMFAATOET TIE BARR EEEHHELMEHRE
ERRZHE LA EBEREBBE -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BEARAE

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

% — % FEZER AR 2 F Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
Annual Report 2016 £ #

9r



38 M % BED

Independent Auditor’s Report

_E
pwec

ERB(EEENERL) ETEANBER
FoRPIERTEXHALE  RETTEXRESR
REJE - BTN

o BEBIANEYE B0 BUAF SkEE SR T 8 BUAR
BEMBHRRFEERFERRANRR
Rt RMITER R ARE LR
AR EBRFTRINEE OB RE R
BB ROER RN EUEFAI a5 K B
AoE BEER ERRL 2R
RAERE S 2 £ - Bt R BE 3 30 R BRRE
B B K8 RR R At 10 L B = R
AE 3% IR [A #5 5R T B By BB N8 SRRt

B LB o

o  HERERFEMORIESG - URE
ENRFRERF - EENYIFYE S£HE
MEREH AR ERER -

e HEEEMEAEHAERRNREER
R SR AFT MERRENSIE -

s HEERARKELZLSHERNRE
HEL & - RIBPAERMNERE
BERAFHERZHABRABEHENE
ATHEEMN KMAEHYH BEEE
MFERERNIELEARE - MRK
MABRGEFEERTEEN BAEBERE
RBMRETREFERAEIZGAY
BHEATOEBERE - REABEOKE
T RIRMPEEERFFERERR -
B EREERZBE RS B LA
REHNESERE - AWM RRBEKIF
MEREEY BEEETRIBERLE-

o S w2
iy o S
As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise

professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.
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° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the

consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,

and whether the consolidated financial statements represent

the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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HEARBYREMBRENETBEBEAE AR  The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent

b e auditor’s report is Dou Wang, Angel.
EERKEETTMELM PricewaterhouseCoopers
FESI A Certified Public Accountants
£ 2017F3H24H Hong Kong, 24 March 2017
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
2016512 A31H As at 31 December 2016

2016 2015
B 5t ARBTRT ARETT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BE ASSETS
FRBEE Non-current assets
(s A Land use rights 6 2,221,526 2,214,488
e L Property, plant and equipment 7 11,097,233 11,454,886
"EMHE Investment properties 8 365,384 349,576
BVEE Intangible assets 9 29,645 33,885
EREREARNIRE Investments accounted for using
the equity method 10 730,474 1,621,725
AL ESRERE Available-for-sale financial assets 11 225,528 227,024
EEFTSTHAE Deferred income tax assets 12 349,727 328,137
H U FRI8 —3EBDEAEES  Other receivables — non-current
portion 16 11,280 12,111
15,030,797 16,241,832
REEE Current assets
"8 Inventories 14 1,214,527 1,367,717
JEWE 5 BRI Trade receivables 15 542,934 529,198
ENRE -ZER Prepayments, deposits and
H A i Y KR other receivables 16 1,453,968 548,343
We RIRTTHER Cash and bank balances 17 2,463,201 2,919,329
5,674,630 5,364,587
BEE Total assets 20,705,427 21,606,419

#— %P EZER AR 2 F Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
2016512 A31H As at 31 December 2016

2016 2015
k=2 ARBTRT ARBTT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
£ EQUITY
ARERER/EABEREDR Equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company
HQL'EM Share capital 18 39,764 39,764
P 1) /fﬂ{ga% Share premium account 18 4,829,899 4,829,899
Egﬁ%ﬁ Other reserves 19 2,236,765 2,274,569
REBF Retained earnings 19 4,933,683 4,458,171
mEmE Total equity 12,040,111 11,602,403
EE LIABILITIES
?FME%% N Non-current liabilities
%gﬁﬁfﬁﬁg{ﬁ Deferred income tax liability 12 191,802 197,350
L . Borrowings 22 500,000 2,665,000
H A RTA—FEBIAE D Other payables — non-current
portion 21 430,879 439,149
1,122,681 3,301,499
k0] %fﬁ . Current liabilities
ERTE %Ejﬂ . Trade payables 20 1,138,154 1,229,015
% ﬁgﬁﬁ FRIA K e 2 A Other payables and accruals 21 4,044,333 3,836,107
15 5 Borrowings 22 2,100,169 1,589,316
j-'a_/Hﬂ Fjﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁa Current income tax liabilities 259,979 45,941
TEEmIA Derivative financial instruments - 2,138
7,542,635 6,702,517
wnes Total liabilities 8,665,316 10,004,016
HEREEAE Total equity and liabilities 20,705,427 21,606,419

F108E 2368 < M B AR A M HwEKRZ

— 5 -

The notes on pages 108 to 236 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

F101 2286 B &6 P EHERER2017F3AH
AR EESH A WA TIALTRERESE

EEE-

The consolidated financial statements on page 101 to page 236
were approved by the Board of Directors on 24 March 2017 and
were signed on its behalf.

BEX B E g
LO Chih-Hsien CHEN Kuo-Hui
HITEFE HITEF

Executive Director Executive Director
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Consolidated Income Statement
EH ZE2016512 31 H IE % Z For the year ended 31 December 2016

2016 2015
B 5 ARBTRT ARBTT
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
I £ Revenue 5 20,985,532 22,101,871
& A Cost of goods sold 23 (13,757,732)  (13,961,138)
EX Gross profit 7,227,800 8,140,733
HMFE— F5E Other gains — net 24 298,193 16,672
H At A Other income 25 409,172 342,518
Hkx Other expenses 23 (123,762) (132,320)
HERMGHEMRS Selling and marketing expenses 23 (5,849,868) (6,320,528)
TBAX Administrative expenses 23 (999,024) (1,015,577)
R RF Operating profit 962,511 1,031,498
BE WA Finance income 107,898 135,955
BhE AR Finance costs (95,584) (109,637)
BE KA —FE Finance income - net 28 12,314 26,318
EREARZ EB(HIRE Share of profit of investments
izl accounted for using
the equity method 10 93,147 112,945
RRFTSBLAISE R Profit before income tax 1,067,972 1,170,761
FrisFiF = Income tax expense 29 (460,643) (336,256)
FERADTERZFTEA Profit for the year and
PEfRER attributable to equity holders
of the Company 607,329 834,505
FEAQARAEREERA Earnings per share for profit
EiEERz2SREF attributable to equity holders of
(LERAREYIE) the Company during the year
(expressed in RMB per share)
—BERREE - Basic and diluted 30 14.06 centss  19.32 centsH

F108E236 B 2 B ALGE VR EK 2

— 55

The notes on pages 108 to 236 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
H ZE2016%12 H31H IF & For the year ended 31 December 2016

2016 2015
k=2 ARBTRT ARBTT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FEEEA Profit for the year 607,329 834,505
Hih 2w Other comprehensive income:
AEH DR Bm s B Items that may be reclassified to
profit or loss
At ESMEEZAFE  Fair value losses on
B3 — B EF R available-for-sale financial assets,
net of tax 19 (1,496) (11,717)
FEEHMEEKE - Other comprehensive income
FRELERE for the year, net of tax (1,496) (11,717)
EERAQATESZZEA Total comprehensive income
EhzzERRHEE for the year and attributable
to equity holders of
the Company 605,833 822,788

£108F 236 H 2 MiFH B NGFEAMB|MEK L The notes on pages 108 to 236 are an integral part of these
— & e consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

EH ZE2016512 31 H IF % Z For the year ended 31 December 2016

28 %

AAREREE AEN
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
R R ERE Hite ke REEF ait
Share Share Other Retained
capital premium reserves earnings Total
R2015F1 B1B 2 &8 Balance at 1 January 2015 39,764 4,829,899 2,213,148 3,753,927 10,836,738
2EKE Comprehensive income
FEEA Profit for the year - - - 834,505 834,505
HErEla Other comprehensive income
-AHEESREEY ~ Fair value gains on available-for-sale
AEENG-BREFE financial assets, net of tax - - (11,717) - (11,717)
Htt2EANELE Total other comprehensive income - - (11,717) - (11,717)
FEZEHKGAE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - (11,717) 834,505 822,788
BREAETZRS Transaction with owners
BREETHE Appropriation to statutory reserves - - 130,261 (130,261) -
HUEEBEZRE Dividends relating to 2014 - - (57,123) - (57,123)
R2015F12A31A 2 &6 Balance at 31 December 2015 39,764 4,829,899 2,274,569 4,458,171 11,602,403
R2016F1 818 2 &8 Balance at 1 January 2016 39,764 4,829,899 2,274,569 4,458,171 11,602,403
2EKER Comprehensive income
FE&EF Profit for the year - - - 607,329 607,329
Hit2EE Other comprehensive income
-t HESHEEL — Fair value losses on available-for-sale
ATEBE-BRIFE financial assets, net of tax - - (1,496) - (1,496)
Hitt2EKELHE Total other comprehensive income - - (1,496) - (1,496)
FEZ2EKEAE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - (1,496) 607,329 605,833
BREAETZRS Transaction with owners
BREETERE Appropriation to statutory reserves - = 131,817 (131,817) =
H015F B 2R E Dividends relating to 2015 - - (168,125) - (168,125)
M2016F128318 2 &8 Balance at 31 December 2016 39,764 4,829,899 2,236,765 4,933,683 12,040,111

F108E236H < B AFE M BHREKRZ
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consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

H ZE2016%12 H31H IF & For the year ended 31 December 2016

2016 2015
Bt &E AR®TR ARBTET
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
EEITHCEESRE Cash flows from operating
activities
BEEACES Cash generated from operations 31 2,559,582 3,982,545
ENFMERAX Interest expenses paid (146,541) (147,744)
[RENRIECE Income tax paid (269,995) (363,369)
BERYELEZFHES Net cash generated from
operating activities 2,143,046 3,471,432
RETHZHESRE Cash flows from investing
activities
WEE—KW B A A Acquisition of a subsidiary,
HBREERRS net of cash acquired 33 (28,654) 16,120
REELEMBLENTZ Investments in joint ventures
wE and associates 10 - (24,243)
HER—KBE QA2 Proceeds from disposal of investment
& 7 1B RIE in an associate 10(a) 1,291,324 -
T RFEM L FEREFKE  Payment and prepayment for
land use rights (63,874) (99,357)
BEME BELXRE Purchases of property,
plant and equipment (944,163) (1,193,338)
HEWME - BWEREHEZ Proceeds from disposal of property,
1S 3R plant and equipment 31 7,156 247,964
BEREWME Purchases of investment properties (34,070) -
BEBFEE Purchases of intangible assets (15,111) (20,919)
FEEBBE=@A 2 Movements in time deposits with
EHERZES maturity more than 3 months 55,430 (1,117,693)
BERAFEBEBEZRLIEZ Purchase of financial assets at fair
S REE value through profit or loss - (43,900)
HE—XRIERAFEFEBEIBZ  Proceeds from disposal of financial
AR SREE 2 FTSFIE  assets at fair value through
profit or loss - 130,766
BeEhERRZRKE Dividends received from joint ventures 10 1,000 2,500
BH—xELAaUEZ RS  Dividends received from an associate 10 3,199 3,199
BEFEBME (FTA)Z Net cash received/(used) in investing
FIR® activities 272,237 (2,098,901)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
EH ZE2016512 31 H IE % Z For the year ended 31 December 2016

2016 2015
B 5E AR¥TR AR®KTT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
AMEITBH2HEERE Cash flows from financing
activities
RITEEERE Proceeds from bank borrowings 12,801,142 11,835,641
BERITEER Repayments of bank borrowings (14,456,387)  (13,495,775)
PTES R I AEREHRAE Proceeds from derivative financial
instruments 188 149
MARNFIRHFEA Dividends paid to equity holders of
ST B the Company (168,125) (57,123)
BEEBAZERE Net cash used in financing activities (1,823,182) (1,717,108)
HeERBESSEYEM Net increase/(decrease) in cash
CR2) FH5 and cash equivalents 592,101 (344,577)
FHzRekBeEEY Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of the year 1,473,317 1,804,022
RekBeEZEM Exchange gain on cash and
NG cash equivalents 11,421 13,872
FR7BeRBEEEEY Cash and cash equivalents
at end of the year 17 2,076,839 1,473,317

55108%236 8 < Mf sE A A<
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consolidated financial statements.

The notes on pages 108 to 236 are an integral part of these
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1

GENERAL INFORMATION

Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman lIslands on 4 July 2007 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands. The address of the Company’s
registered office is P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally engaged in
the manufacturing and sale of beverages and instant noodles
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) (the “PRC
Beverages and Instant Noodles Businesses”).

The Company completed its global initial public offering
and its shares were listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on
17 December 2007 (the “Listing”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of Renminbi (‘RMB’000”), unless otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

#— e EFEZER G2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1

g—i

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (the
“HKFRS”). They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
available-for-sale financial assets, and financial assets
and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments)
at fair value through profit or loss, which are carried at
fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgment in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
Note 4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
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Basis of preparation (Continued)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

@  New and amended standards adopted by the Group
in 2016

The following new amendments of HKFRSs are effective
for the first time for the financial year beginning on 1
January 2016 and relevant to the Group’s operations:

o Annual improvements 2014 include changes
from the 2012 - 2014 cycle of the annual
improvements project that are effective for relevant
transactions executed on or after 1 January 2016:

- Amendment to HKFRS 5 ‘Non-current
assets held for sale and discontinued
operations’ clarifies that when an asset (or
disposal group) is reclassified from ‘held for
sale’ to ‘held for distribution’, or vice versa,
this does not constitute a change to a plan
of sale or distribution, and does not have to
be accounted for as such. This means that
the asset (or disposal group) does not need
to be reinstated in the financial statements
as if it had never been classified as ‘held for
sale’ or ‘held for distribution’ simply because
the manner of disposal has changed. It also
explains that the guidance on changes in a
plan of sale should be applied to an asset
(or disposal group) which ceases to be held
for distribution but is not classified as ‘held
for sale’.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

@

(Continued)

New and amended standards adopted by the Group
in 2016 (Continuea)

Amendment to HKFRS 7 ‘Financial
instruments: Disclosures’ clarifies the
additional disclosure required by the
amendments to HKFRS 7, ‘Disclosure —
offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities” is not specifically required for all
interim periods, unless required by HKAS
34.

Amendment to HKAS 19, ‘Employee
benefits’ clarifies when determining
the discount rate for post-employment
benefit obligations, it is the currency that
the liabilities are denominated in that is
important, not the country where they arise.
The assessment of whether there is a deep
market in high-quality corporate bonds is
based on corporate bonds in that currency,
not corporate bonds in a particular country.
Similarly, where there is no deep market
in high-quality corporate bonds in that
currency, government bonds in the relevant
currency should be used.
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2 EESTTEERE(H& 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
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Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)

(@  New and amended standards adopted by the Group
in 2016 (Continued)

- Amendment to HKAS 34, ‘Interim financial
reporting’ clarifies what is meant by the
reference in the standard to ‘information
disclosed elsewhere in the interim financial
report’. It also amends HKAS 34 to
require a cross-reference from the interim
financial statements to the location of that
information.

The adoption of the above new amendments of
HKFRSs starting from 1 January 2016 did not give
rise to any significant impact on the Group’s results of
operations and financial position for the year ended 31
December 2016.

The following new amendments of HKFRSs are
effective for the first time for the financial year beginning
on 1 January 2016 and not relevant to the Group’s
operations (although they may affect the accounting for
future transactions and events):

° Amendment to HKFRS 14 ‘Regulatory Deferral
Accounts’ describes regulatory deferral account
balances as amounts of expense or income that
would not be recognised as assets or liabilities in
accordance with other standards, but that qualify
to be deferred in accordance with HKFRS14
because the amount is included, or is expected to
be included, by the rate regulator in establishing
the price(s) that an entity can charge to customers
for rate-regulated goods or services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

@
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(Continued)

New and amended standards adopted by the Group
in 2016 (Continueq)

Amendment to HKFRS 11 ‘Accounting for
acquisitions of interests in joint operations’
requires an investor to apply the principles of
business combination accounting when it acquires
an interest in a joint operation that constitutes a
‘business’. The amendment is applicable to both
the acquisition of the initial interest and a further
interest in a joint operation. The previously held
interest is not remeasured when the acquisition of
an additional interest in the same joint operation
with joint control maintained.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
‘Clarification of acceptable methods of
depreciation and amortization’ clarify when a
method of depreciation or amortisation based on
revenue may be appropriate. The amendment to
HKAS 16 clarifies that depreciation of an item of
property, plant and equipment based on revenue
generated by using the asset is not appropriate.

113
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
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Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

@

(Continued)

New and amended standards adopted by the Group
in 2016 (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 ‘Investment entities: applying the
consolidation exception’ clarify the application of
the consolidation exception for investment entities
and their subsidiaries.

Amendments to HKAS 1 ‘Disclosure initiative’
clarify guidance in HKAS 1 on materiality and
aggregation, the presentation of subtotals,
the structure of financial statements and the

disclosure of accounting policies.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41
‘Agriculture: bearer plants’ change the reporting
for bearer plants, such as grape vines, rubber
trees and oil palms. Bearer plants should be
accounted for in the same way as property,
plant and equipment because their operation is
similar to that of manufacturing. The amendments
include them in the scope of HKAS 16 rather than
HKAS 41.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(Continued)

(b)  New standards and amendments issued but are

not effective for the financial year beginning on 1

January 2016 and have not been early adopted by

the Group

A number of new standards and amendments to

existing standards have been issued but are not yet

effective for the financial year beginning on 1 January

2016, and have not been early adopted by the Group in

preparing these consolidated financial statements:

° Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 ‘Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
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its Associate or Joint Venture’, originally intended
to be effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2016. The effective date has now
been deferred/removed.

Amendments to HKAS 7 ‘Statement of cash
flows’ and amendments to HKAS 12, ‘Income
taxes’ are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2017.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
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Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

®)

(Continued)

New standards and amendments issued but are
not effective for the financial year beginning on 1
January 2016 and have not been early adopted by
the Group (Continued)

HKFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with
Customers’, effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018.

HKFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’, effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018.

HKFRS 16 ‘Leases’, effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

The Group is yet to assess the full impact of these new

amendments and standards, and intends to adopt the

amendments no later than the respective effective dates

of the amendments.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated. When
necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have
been adjusted to conform with the Group’s accounting
policies.

(@  Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method of
accounting to account for business combinations.
The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the
Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date. The Group recognises
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or
at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of
the recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net
assets.

% — S EFEZER AR 2 F Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)
(@  Business combinations (Continued)

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date

through profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit
or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity
is not remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is

accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest measured is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in the income statement

(Note 2.9).
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
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22 MEBATE (&) 2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
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2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)
(b)  Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control or significant
influence, any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the
initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3 Associated companies

An associated company is an entity over which the
Group has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associated
companies are accounted for using the equity method
of accounting. Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying amount
is increased or decreased to recognise the investor's
share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date
of acquisition. The Group’s investment in associated
companies includes goodwill identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associated company
is reduced but significant influence is retained, only
a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to the consolidated income statement where
appropriate.

The Group’s share of associated companies’ post-
acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the income
statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements
in other comprehensive income is recognised in
other comprehensive income with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment.
When the Group’s share of losses in an associated
company equal or exceed its interest in the associated
company, including any other unsecured receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it
has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associated company.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3

2.4
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Associated companies (Continued)

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment
in the associated company is impaired. If this is the
case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment
as the difference between the recoverable amount of
the associated company and its carrying value and
recognises the amount adjacent to ‘Share of profit of
investments accounted for using equity method’ in the
income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and its
associated companies are recognised in the Group’s
financial statements only to the extent of unrelated
investor’s interests in the associated companies.
Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associated
companies have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in investments in
associated companies are recognised in the income
statement.

Joint arrangements

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint
arrangements as at 1 January 2012. Under HKFRS
11 investments in joint arrangements are classified as
either joint operations or joint ventures depending on
the contractual rights and obligations each investor. The
Group has assessed the nature of its joint arrangements
and determined them to be joint ventures. Joint
ventures are accounted for using the equity method.

121
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

24

2.5

Joint arrangements (Continued)

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint
ventures are initially recognised at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the group’s share of the post-
acquisition profits or losses and movements in other
comprehensive income. When the Group’s share of
losses in a joint venture equals or exceeds its interests
in the joint ventures (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the joint ventures), the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint
ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of the joint ventures have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the executive directors
that makes strategic decisions.
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2 EESTTHERE (& 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

26 HhEBmE 2.6 Foreign currency translation
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(@) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (“the functional currency”). The functional
currency of majority of the Group’s entities is Renminbi
(“RMB”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in RMB, which is the Company’s functional
and the Group’s presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions of each of the Group’s
entities are translated into the functional currency using
the applicable exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions or valuation where items are re-
measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the income statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the income statement within ‘finance
income or cost’. All other foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in the income statement within
‘other gains - net’.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets such as equities classified as available-for-
sale are included in the fair value reserves in other
comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
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2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary

economy) that have a functional currency different

from the presentation currency are translated into the

presentation currency as follows:

(i

(i)

Assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

Income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of
the transactions); and

All resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.
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2 EESTTHERE (& 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

27 NE-BMERSEHE 2.7 Property, plant and equipment
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Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition
of the items.

Construction-in-progress (“CIP”) represents buildings,
plant and machinery under construction or pending
installation and is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Cost includes the costs of
construction and acquisition and capitalised borrowing
costs. No provision for depreciation is made on CIP until
such time as the relevant assets are completed and
ready for intended use. When the assets concerned are
available for use, the costs are transferred to property,
plant and equipment and depreciated in accordance
with the policy as stated below.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the income statements during the financial
period in which they are incurred.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate the cost less impairment loss of each asset
to its residual value over its estimated useful life, as

follows:

Buildings 20 years
Machinery and factory equipment 10 years
Vehicle, other equipment and fixtures 3-5 years

Leasehold improvements 5 years or shorter

of lease terms

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
2.10).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within ‘other gains — net’, in the income
statements.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.8

2.9

% — % FEZER AR 2 F Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Investment properties

Investment properties are defined as properties (land
or a building — or part of a building — or both) held (by
the owner or by the lessee under a finance lease) to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both, rather
than for: (a) use in the production of supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes; or (b) sale in the
ordinary course of business.

Investment properties are initially recognised at cost
and subsequently carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation is calculated using a straight-line method
to allocate the depreciable amounts over the estimated
useful lives of 40 years. The residual values and
useful lives of investment properties are reviewed, and
adjusted as appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

Intangible assets
(@ Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates and represents the excess of
the consideration transferred over the Group’s interest
in net fair value of the net identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities of the acquiree and the fair
value of the non-controlling interest in the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated to each
of the cash-generating units (“CGUs”), or groups of
CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination. Each unit or group of units to which
the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level
within the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes. Goodwill is monitored
at the operating segment level.

127
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.9

Intangible assets (Continued)
(@ Gooadwill (Continued)

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of
goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which
is the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs
to sell. Any impairment is recognised immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed.

(b) Computer software

Acquired computer software is capitalised on the basis
of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software. These costs are amortised over the
estimated useful life of 2 — 5 years.

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example,
goodwill or intangible assets not ready to use — are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.
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2.11.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables and available-for-sale. The classification
depends on the purposes for which the financial
assets were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

@  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are financial assets held for trading. A financial asset
is classified in this category if acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives
are also categorised as held for trading unless they
are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets if expected to be settled
within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified as non-
current.

(b)  Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included in
current assets, except for maturities greater than 12
months after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The Group’s loans
and receivables comprise ‘trade receivables’, ‘other
receivables’, ‘pledged bank deposits’ and ‘cash and
bank balances’ in the balance sheet (also refer to Notes
2.16 and 2.17).
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Annual Report 2016 F i ,I 2 9



)

B 75 R AR MY RE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 EESTTHERE (&

211 EMEE (8)

130

2.11.1 748 (#&)
© FAHLNELHEE

AHLESREERWIETE U
BRSNS E DB AEMEMER
MIFTET A -FRIFEEEARH
BEMRRI2EAAAHEZER
B BRIMFEENHEIFRDEE
7 o

211.2BZRTE

EHBARHENEREEAR
5 AR - MAKEAZEASLH
ERBEEZR MBYLIFRATE
BBBERCRCEREERET
FRAFEMNX HRATER - ZA
FEEBERLE EREEY
FPRAFEER KFRARER
RAXE - ERREWBRE R
ENENEDIHIEDEE
MAKEE K EAENARR
MERERE RN cREENR
R -AHREESREERRA
FEEGERNKIEREEHR
‘I DFETIRR - B EARA
RERN SRR BHRATIR -

[BAFEEEEDREZERE
EIBZAVEESMELZF
SREBERELHEERERZ
[EAfh (B5E) /MiE—F8]I AL
FI) o 5 7N 62 (B JE FE ST YW ERBROR 2 42
Mg BAVEBEBERCERZSE
BMEEZRBEWMARBG R AR
REREMBAZ—EED -

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

2.11.1 Classification (Continued)
(c)  Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. They are
included in non-current assets unless management
intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months
of the end of the reporting period.

2.11.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at
fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried
at fair value through profit or loss is initially recognised
at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the
income statement. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial
assets and financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans
and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of the “financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss’ category are presented in the income statement
within ‘Other (losses)/gains — net’ in the period in which
they arise. Dividend income from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised in the income
statement as part of other income when the Group’s
right to receive payments is established.
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211 eREE (&) 2.11 Financial assets (Continued)
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2.11.2 Recognition and measurement (Continued)

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary
securities classified as available-for-sale are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold
or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in equity are included in the income
statement as ‘Other gains-net’.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in the income statement as part of ‘other
income’ when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

2.12 Impairment of financial assets

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.12 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that

correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivable category, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the
loss is recognised in the income statement. If a loan or
held-to-maturity investment has a variable interest rate,
the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss
is the current effective interest rate determined under
the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may
measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair

value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised (such as an improvement in the
debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the previously
recognised impairment loss is recognised in the income

statement.
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2.12 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
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(b) Assets classified as available for sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired.

For debt securities, if any such evidence exists the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in profit or loss — is removed from equity and
recognised in profit or loss. If, in a subsequent period,
the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available
for sale increases and the increase can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss is
reversed through the consolidated income statement.

For equity investments, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost
is also evidence that the assets are impaired. If any
such evidence exists the cumulative loss — measured
as the difference between the acquisition cost and
the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss
— is removed from equity and recognised in profit or
loss. Impairment losses recognised in the consolidated
income statement on equity instruments are not
reversed through the consolidated income statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.13 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently re-measured at their fair value.
The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss
depends on whether the derivative is designed as a
hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of item being
hedged. Derivative instruments held by the Group do
not qualify for hedge accounting and are accounted for
at fair value through profit or loss. Changes in fair value
of these derivative instruments that do not qualify for
hedge accounting are recognised immediately in the

consolidated income statement.

2.14 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable
in the normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the

counterparty.

2.15 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work
in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based
on normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing
costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less applicable

variable selling expenses.
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Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and
other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.

2.17 Cash and bank balances

In the consolidated statement of cash flow, cash and
cash equivalents include cash at bank and on hand and
deposits held at call with banks. Time deposits with
maturity more than three months and pledged bank
deposits are excluded from cash and cash equivalents.

2.18 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.19 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.19 Trade payables (Continued)

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

2.20 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.
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2.21 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

2.22 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

(@) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date in the countries where the
Company and its subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.22 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b) Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the financial statements. However, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of
the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.

Qutside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements, except
for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the
group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally the
group is unable to control the reversal of the temporary
difference for associates. Only where there is an
agreement in place that gives the group the ability to
control the reversal of the temporary difference not
recognised.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.22 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b) Deferred income tax (Continued)

Outside basis differences (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements only to the extent that it is probable the
temporary difference will reverse in the future and there
is sufficient taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.

(c) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
income tax assets against current income tax liabilities
and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income taxed levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to settle the balances
on a net basis.

2.23 Employee benefits

(@) Pension obligations (defined contribution plan)

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
which the Group pays contributions into a separate
fund. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations
to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits
relating to employee service in the current and prior
periods. The contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.23 Employee benefits (Continued)

(a) Pension obligations (defined contribution plan)
(Continued)

The Group has participated in defined contribution
plans administered by the relevant authorities in the
PRC, Taiwan and Hong Kong for its employees. The
Group is required to pay monthly contributions to these
plans at certain percentages of the relevant portion of
the payroll of the employees to fund the benefits. The
relevant authorities undertake to assume the retirement
benefit obligations payable to the existing and future
retired employees of the Group under these plans and
the Group has no further obligation for post-retirement
benefits beyond the contributions made.

2.24 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.
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Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

2.25 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and represents
amounts receivable for goods supplied, stated net of
discounts returns and value added taxes. The Group
recognises revenue when the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured; when it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity; and
when specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group’s activities, as described below. The Group
bases its estimates of return on historical results, taking
into consideration the type of customer, the type of
transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

(a) Sales of goods

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised when
the risk and reward of the goods has been transferred
to the customer, which is usually at the date when a
group entity has delivered products to the customer,
the customer has accepted the products, and there is
no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s
acceptance of the products.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.25 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(b) Consultation service income

Consultation service income is recognised in the period

when the services are rendered.

(c) Operating lease income (as a lessor)

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease
unless another systematic basis is more representative
of the time pattern in which use benefit derived from the

leased asset is diminished.

(d) Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method. When a loan and receivable is impaired, the
Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable
amount, being the estimated future cash flow
discounted at the original effective interest rate of the
instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as
interest income. Interest income on impaired loan and
receivables are recognised using the original effective

interest rate.

(e) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive

payment is established.
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Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the income statement over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to land use rights and
property, plant and equipment are included in non-
current liabilities as deferred government grants and
are credited to the income statement on a straight-line
basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

2.27 Operating leases

(a) The Group is the lessee

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged in the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

All land in Mainland China is state-owned and no
individual land ownership right exists. The Group made
upfront payments to obtain operating leases of land
use rights. The upfront payments of the land use rights
are recorded as assets and amortised over the lease
periods varying from 20 to 70 years on a straight-line
basis.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.27 Operating leases (Continued)

(b) The Group is the lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease
unless another systematic basis is more representative
of the time pattern in which use benefit derived from the
leased asset is diminished. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

2.28 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed
in the financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is
probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from
past events and whose existence will be confirmed only
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain events not wholly within the control of the
Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually
certain, an asset is recognised.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

2.29 Dividend distribution

3.1

% — % FEZER AR 2 F Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders.

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, price
risk, and cash flow and fair value interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management program focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(@) Market risk
0 Foreign exchange risk

Most of the Group entities’ functional currency is RMB
since majority of the revenues of these entities are
derived from operations in Mainland China. Foreign
exchange risk arises from the future borrowings from
overseas companies and recognised assets or liabilities,
such as trade receivables (Note 15), cash and bank
balances (Note 17) and borrowings (Note 22), part of
which are denominated in United States dollar (“USD”)
and Hong Kong dollar (*HKD”).

As at 31 December 2016, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against USD and HKD with all
other variables held constant, the post-tax profit for
the year ended 31 December 2016 would have been
approximately RMB 3,979,000 lower/higher (2015:
RMB11,180,000 higher/lower), mainly as a result of
foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of USD
and HKD denominated borrowings and cash and bank
balances.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(@) Market risk (Continued)
(i) Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk
because of certain investments held by the Group are
classified on the balance sheet either as available-for-
sale (Note 11). The Group has not hedged its price risk
arising from investments in equity securities financial
assets.

For the Group’s equity investments that are classified
either as available-for-sale or at fair value through
profit or loss and are publicly traded, the fair value is
determined with reference to quoted market prices.

As at 31 December 2016, if the market prices of the
securities classified as available-for-sale had increased/
decreased by 10% with all other variables held
constant, the carrying amounts of the Group’s publicly
traded available-for-sale financial assets and total equity
would be approximately RMB 1.4 million (2015: RMB
1.5 million) higher/lower than the current value. If the
market prices of securities classified as at fair value
through profit or loss had increased/decreased by
10% with all other variables held constant, the carrying
amounts of the Group’s publicly traded financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss and post-tax profit for
the year would be nil (2015: nil) higher/lower than the
current value.

For the Group’s equity investments that are not
publicly traded, the fair value is determined with
reference to valuations based on a combination of
income and market approaches. The market approach
takes reference to certain multiples of publicly traded
companies.
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BHRIFTE  RITGFAREEF
KFTFHIEI00BEEEL  KEE
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(ERBOIFERFBWRAZE) -

31 HBEKREZE (&) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@) Market risk (Continued)
(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Except for cash and bank balances (Note 17) and
borrowings (Note 22) with interest charges, the Group
have no other significant interest-bearing assets and
liabilities.

The Group’s interest-rate risk arises from bank deposits
and borrowings. Bank deposits and borrowings at
variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest-
rate risk, and if at fixed rates expose the Group to fair
value interest-rate risk. The Group has not hedged its
cash flow and fair value interest rate risk. The interest
rates and terms of bank deposits and borrowings are
disclosed in Note 17 and Note 22 respectively.

As at 31 December 2016, if interest rates on bank
deposits and borrowings had been 100 basis points
higher/lower with all other variables held constant,
the post-tax profit for the year would have been
approximately RMB 15,619,001 lower/higher (2015:
RMB 16,282,606 lower/higher), mainly as a result of
higher/lower interest expenses on borrowings which
would offset interest income on bank deposits.

% — % FEZER AR 2 F Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Annual Report 2016 F & ,I 47



e MR EmAR M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 BEBRRER (&)

3.1

148

BsEEEE ()
(b) EEmEE

AEBYESEETHEER
@ o SR B M ISR PSIC B IRTT
TR -REMBREFEY BRE
5 B R Ko B A 8 U R TR ) B T (B
RAKEEREESHEES
& RKEERR-

P2016F12831H 2 £ R1TTF
REBITRESDNEREERIT AR
WRAEERRREN S %
B TRETNERSHEDHRTT

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit
risk. The carrying amounts of pledged bank deposits,
cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and
other receivables included in the consolidated financial
statements represent the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk in relation to its financial assets.

As at 31 December 2016, these bank deposits and
cash at bank were deposited in reputable financial
institutions which are considered with low credit risk,
the table below shows bank deposits and cash at bank

GEREIBITHESE S balances by counterparties:
2016 2015
ARMT T AR®EF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
RHH Counterparties
—POK A NERTT* - Big 4 PRC domestic banks* 304,467 367,549
—SNEIRTT — Foreign owned banks 1,304,939 1,654,606
—HEAFERIT — Other domestic commercial banks 853,738 897,123
2,463,144 2,919,278
* MAFEIBEARITEERELIRE * Big 4 PRC domestic banks comprise Industrial and

ROBBERAT  FELER
FRHERAT  FERTRE
ERARRTERRRGTROE
RAR

o REB MR RS S ER - T)
BTRITREBEIBOIER - UE
REAEBEBERATNERELRBE
HE R -

Commercial Bank of China Limited, Agricultural Bank
of China Limited, Bank of China Limited and China
Construction Bank Corporation.

There were also financial guarantees provided by the
Group, which were the guarantees given to the banks
and financial institutions to secure borrowings and
finance leases of an associate of the Group.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1

fg—it

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

The Group did not have significant exposure to credit
risk before collateral held or other credit enhancements
as at 31 December 2016 (The Group did not have
significant exposure to credit risk before collateral held
or other credit enhancements as at 31 December
2015).

Management does not expect any losses from non-
performance of these counterparties.

Majority of the Group’s sales are settled in cash or in
bills provided by its customers on delivery of goods.
Credit sales are made only to selected customers with
good credit history. The Group has policies in place to
ensure that trade receivables are followed up on a timely
basis.

(c¢) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and cash equivalents, the availability of
fund through adequate amounts of committed credit
facilities and the ability to close out market positions.
The Group’s objective is to maintain adequate
committed credit facilities to ensure sufficient and
flexible funding is available to the Group.

%P E#% R F R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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3 BHHEKRERE(H) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

3.1 BBEREZE (&) 3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) mEBELEE (&) (c)  Liquidity risk (Continued)

TRRASEZEZBRAEES
ZEERANGEEREZEANIIHA
ZHTHEZFERNEBIHNE
BINEE - RAFMRBESEAAH

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities
that will be settled on a net basis into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at the
balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date.

150

FURBE RS- The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.
AEE Group PR-EF -Z@mE —ERE st
Less than Between 1 Between 2
1year and2years and 5 years Total
ARETL  AREBTT ARETT AR®ETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R2016F12A31R As at 31 December 2016
BE Borrowings 2,100,169 = 500,000 2,600,169
EEFMBRT Interest payments on borrowings 35,065 19,500 12,822 67,387
ENESEFREMNZE  Trade and bils payables 1,138,154 = = 1,138,154
HivENZBRESER  Other payables and accruals,
(TREELBAR) (excluding non-financial liabilities) 2,004,108 - - 2,004,108
Hiy REEAFUE Other long term payables - 430,879 - 430,879
5,277,496 450,379 512,822 6,240,697
R2015%12A31A As at 31 December 2015
fFE Borrowings 1,589,316 2,165,000 500,000 4,254,316
EEFMBRT Interest payments on borrowings 123,459 58,302 32,322 214,083
TESRmIA Derivative financial instruments 2,138 - - 2,138
ENEFEFLENZE  Trade and bils payables 1,229,015 - - 1,229,015
HivENZBRESER  Other payables and accruals,
(TeEFeRER) (excluding non-financial liabilities) 1,851,930 - - 1,851,930
HiyREENFUR Other long term payables - 439,149 - 439,149
4,795,858 2,662,451 532,322 7,990,631

i —EFEZER G2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1

3.2

% — % FEZER AR 2 F Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c¢) Liquidity risk (Continued)

Interests payments on borrowings are calculated based
on borrowings held as at the balance sheet dates
without taking into account of future issues. Floating-
rate interest is estimated using the current interest rate
as at the balance sheet dates.

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital.
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3 MKERERE (&) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)
3.2 EXEKRER (&) 3.2 Capital risk management (Continued)
AEEBMNERBEBEEAGRELL The Group's strategy is to maintain a gearing ratio
R M7 E R50% © R2016%F & below 50%. The gearing ratios at 31 December 2016
20151231 HMERBEL X and 2015 are as follows:
LUNNE
2016 2015
AR%T ARMETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
#iEE (Mi22) Total borrowings (Note 22) 2,600,169 4,254,316
B IRE KT RS Less: cash and time deposits
(M5E17) (Note 17) (2,463,201) (2,915,109)
BIEF5R Net debt 136,968 1,339,207
B Total equity 12,040,111 11,602,403
BENR Total capital 12,177,079 12,941,610
BARBEEE Gearing ratio 1.12% 10.35%
R2016F12A31H  EXAE L The decrease of gearing ratio as at 31 December 2016
R T R2016F BB EEA was due to the repayment of borrowings in 2016.
2 o

/I 62 % — %P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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3 HMEBERERE (&) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)
3.3 AFEME 3.3 Fair value estimation
TRAGBBEZED TIZAFESE The table below analyses financial instruments carried at
ZEMITAE - ZEAEREMOT: fair value by valuation method. The different levels have

been defined as follows:

e HREBEEXBEELR e Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
MHEOME (KREFHE) identical assets or liabilities (level 1).
(B1B) -

e BRIFIEMBREMHRE e Inputs other than quoted prices included within
I ZEBEXBEZAEE level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
2 Hpve A 0] B EE (H either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that
BlanfE &) sk (BDR B8 is, derived from prices) (level 2).

E®) (F28) -

o EENABBWIEMKEAEK e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
MIHZEIE 2@ A (B IER] B on observable market data (that is, unobservable
=EA) (F3E) - inputs) (level 3).

% — % BB PR A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ,] 68
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3 HMEERBERE (&) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.3 NY¥EME (&) 3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
TRETRAEESHMEENR2016 The following table presents the Group’s financial assets
FK2015F12A31HFIE 2 A F that are measured at fair value at 31 December 2016
(= and 2015.

20165 R2015%F
12H831H 12H31H
31 December 31 December
2016 2015
AREBT T AREEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
EE Assets
At EeREE Available-for-sale financial assets
(MFEE11) (Note 11)
—E1E — Level 1 13,863 15,359
—%3E — Level 3 211,665 211,665
225,528 227,024
=L Liabilities
PTESRMITA Derivative financial instruments
—E2E - Level 2 - 2,138

/I 64 i —EFEZER G2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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3.3

DNFEMLE (&)

REZ=2016F 128318 LFE -
ArESRMTIAAFEMEAAF
EERARTEELER  BER
FEZEAEBNRERmRE
cRMEEMDE-

3.3.1 #FFHKEELFE
(E1E)

AEBFIBRETZRREER
BRXMEREMRNDZKE - EH
EHRAFEDBRERGERZ
mEHREMEE -

3.3.2 AiEER M E L FE
(%#2F)

F2EEZITET ABEERIIME

BR - REEMINESHENAE

BWS MM R ERMGT AT

@ R EERTEHE2EINAET
EREARE

R2015%12 A31H 2 = HASNE A
HNEREEEARSBAHA2IEEE
T (BERHARE136BET)
ZEH-

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, there are no
transfers among levels of the fair value hierarchy used
in measuring the fair value of financial instruments, and
also no changes in the classification of financial assets
as a result of a change in the purpose or use of those
assets.

3.3.1 Fair value measurements using quoted prices
(Level 1)

The Group’s investments in level 1 mainly comprise
investments in shares which are listed on the Main
Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. The fair
values of the listed securities are determined based on
the quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.

3.3.2 Valuation techniques used to derive fair values
(Level 2)

Level 2 trading derivatives comprise forward foreign
exchange contracts. These forward foreign exchange
contracts have been fair valued using forward exchange
rates that are quoted in an active market. The effects
of discounting are generally insignificant for Level 2
derivatives.

The forward foreign exchange contracts as at 31
December 2015 comprised contracts with notional
principal amounts totalling USD21 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB136 million).

— ¥ EER AR 2 F Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. »] 65
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3 WBERER (&) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)
3.3 AFEME (&) 3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
3.3.3 EHEAT BB A EiTE 3.3.3 Fair value measurements using significant
NFE (E3E) unobservable inputs (Level 3)
TR2MNEHZE20165F12A31H K The following table presents the changes in level 3
2015F 12 A31H I FE K FE3[E instruments for the year ended 31 December 2016 and
TEZH- 31 December 2015.
2016 2015
ARET ARBEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BRI 45 84 Opening balance 211,665 180,733
E—TFE Further capital injection - 51,665
NFEEMEF Fair value gains - (20,000)
HE Disposal - (733)
gk st eh (M5E11) Closing balance (Note 11) 211,665 211,665
/I 56 % — %P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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3 B¥BRERERE (&)

3.3

DNPEGEE (&)

3.3.3 BAEAT BT HAHE
AFE (F3E) (&)

RAEERIFEAFEENRAER
EmME ASEATHEEESRE
HAE WEBEARSEEAEZERDN
MRERBRZ - RMHIREMS -
REBZ G WEENRTISE - WS
FRAMBRESRES LA
HEESREEN N TE - BEZ
FE ERZEREARRHED
wmAMEEREBANAREME
BAER ATEEBMEZEE
ARAMEAREREZHEE
i R2016F 1283180« &
BRFTABIE R BT F14% (2015
F14% )  DIRZEREREN
mERE MHO®R AEERE
ARAEBRTEANRR LETE A
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NEEFBUAFRE QAR
SHE WA T DA B 2 7 TR B e M
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PEEEREMBEREZ AR
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7T,/ INH A R#15,462,0007T ©

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

3.3.3 Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3) (Continued)

For the Group’s equity investments that are not publicly
traded, the Group uses its judgment to select a variety
of methods and make assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at each balance
sheet date. In connection with the investments in
shares, the Group adopts a combination of income and
market approaches. The income approach adopts a
discounted cash flow method to assess the fair value
of the available-for-sale financial assets. Under this
methodology, fair value is determined by discounting
the projected cash flow of the investee company to
present worth based on profit and cash flows forecast
and other relevant information provided by the investee
company. The discount rate used for the investment
as at 31 December 2016 was 14% (2015: 14%) per
annum which was determined by the risk-free rate,
market return, estimated beta of the investee company
and firm specific risk factors. The market approach
adopts various sales/income multiples to assess the fair
value of the available-for-sale financial assets. Under
this methodology, fair value is determined by multiplying
various sales/income of the investee company to
multiple with regard to the risks and nature of the
business. In estimating the multiples, reference has
been made to the operating results of companies with
similar business nature, having their operating activities
in the PRC and whose ownership interests are publicly
traded.

As at 31 December 2016, if the discount rate and
the multiples used was 10% higher/lower from
management’s estimates (i.e. 15.40%/12.60%), the
carrying amounts of the available-for-sale financial
assets would be approximately RMB 11,965,000 lower/
RMB 15,462,000 higher than the current value.

% — % FEZER AR 2 F Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be

reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are discussed below.

(a)  Fair value of available-for-sale financial assets

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market, such as equity interest
classified as available-for-sale financial assets (Note
11) is determined by using valuation techniques (Note
3.3). The Group uses its judgment to select a variety
of methods and to make assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at each balance
sheet date. The effect of the changes in one or more of
the inputs has been disclosed in Note 3.3 above.

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 to
determine when an available-for-sale financial asset
is impaired. This determination requires significant
judgment. In making this judgment, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration and extent
to which the fair value of an investment is less than its
cost; and the financial health of and short-term business
outlook for the investee company, including factors
such as industry and sector performance, changes in
technology and operational and financing cash flow.

i —EFEZER G2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Annual Report 2016 %



B R AR MG

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 BRSTHEERME (&)

4.1

ERETEERRR (&)

(@ FTHUELHEELTFE

(&

WMRREAFEEREXNAES
BREHBERAZEEBFEEN
RNEE® ST E20167F B 75 3
FNEEBEAR16,983,000
7T (20154 : AR 35,487,000
To) c A REER R ERE ] H®
TESREERRNETATE
AEREREERRA -

(b) FFE#HRELIEH

AEEIEFRTEBRAE
B o FEHETE PTG 2 BB A 1R
BEXHE - REX 5 MRS R
MRETRGETH SN EER-
AEEBEFARREEAMNE
SMRIE - ARLTREIR S B R E EE
REE - WREEEZREBBLE
REEYCEARZ ZBIR - &
FEZRREYEBERANMBL
EHREEMEHREERAG-

ERETERUEZRENTEER
ZEEMBHRBEES THR
RERERRERRAI MG RKE
ARBUE A - AR 88 AT A0
MEZERIBEAEBRE-

HMEFRERENERELRE
RRAE)ER /BRERE
B EFF10% @ Bl A &£ B & %
m/oCRPD)EEHBEBEEAR
#21,352,0007C (20154 : # N
JSORD)VEERBEEAR
19,062,0007T ) °

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.1

% — % FEZER AR 2 F Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(@) Fair value of available-for-sale financial assets
(Continued)

If all of the declines in fair value below cost were
considered significant or prolonged, the Group would
suffer a loss of approximately RMB16,983,000 (2015:
RMB35,487,000) in its 2016 financial statements, being
the transfer of the accumulated fair value adjustments
on the impaired available-for-sale financial assets
recognised in equity to the income statement.

(b) Income taxes and deferred income tax assets

The Group is mainly subject to income taxes in the
PRC. Significant judgment is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities
in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain
temporary differences and tax losses are recognised as
management considers it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilized.

Were the actual final outcome (on the judgment areas)
of expected cash flows is favourable/unfavourable by
10% from management’s estimates, the Group would
need to increase/(decrease) the deferred tax assets by
RMB21,352,000 (2015: RMB19,062,000).
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(c) Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment

Property, plant and equipment is reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have
been determined based on value-in-use calculations or
market valuations. These calculations require the use of
judgments and estimates.

Management judgment is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an
event has occurred that may indicate that the related
assets values may not be recoverable; (i) whether the
carrying value of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, being the higher of fair value less
costs to sell or net present value of future cash flows
which are estimated based upon the continued use
of the asset in the business; and (i) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow
projections and whether these cash flow projections
are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing
the assumptions selected by management in assessing
impairment, including the discount rates or the growth
rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could
materially affect the net present value in the impairment
test and as a result affect the Group’s financial position
and results of operations. If there is a significant adverse
change in the projected performance and resulting
future cash flow projections, it may be necessary to take
an impairment charge to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the executive directors. The executive directors review the
Group’s internal reporting in order to assess performance
and allocate resources. Management has determined the
operating segments based on these reports.

The executive directors consider the business from a
product perspective as over 90% of the Group’s sales
and business activities are conducted in the PRC. From a
product perspective, management assesses the performance
of beverages, instant noodles and others. The executive
directors assess the performance of operating segments
based on segment profit or loss. Other information provided,
except as noted below, to the executive directors is measured
in a manner consistent with that in the financial statements.

The majority of the Group’s sales are through distributors and
no revenues from transactions with a single external customer
account for 10% or more of the Group’s revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(CONTINUED)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The segment information for the year ended 31 December

ZHEBERMT 2016 and 2015 is as follows:
2016
&R HEE Hitr AAE r5E
Instant
Beverages noodles Others Unallocated Group
ARETR ARBTR AR®Tn AR%®Trn AR%¥Tx
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AHEE Segment results
Wezs Revenue 12,180,682 8,221,083 583,767 - 20,985,532
AEEF (BE) Segment profit/(loss) 890,826 315,824 52,776 (296,915) 962,511
BERA-FE Finance income - net - - = 12,314 12,314
PAEREARZ Share of profit of investments
LI E & A accounted for using the equity method 81,925 - - 11,222 93,147
BR A5 T A& 71 Profit before income tax 1,067,972
BRI Income tax expense (460,643)
FERA Profit for the year 607,329
Wi R A AT 5 At Other segment items included
AHEE in the income statement
TEREHR Depreciation and amortisation 974,597 300,621 72,559 84,993 1,432,770
THEEREE Segment assets and liabilities
BE Assets 10,578,788 4,118,180 580,072 4,688,013 19,974,953
iR EANRRERE Investments accounted for using the
equity method 559,788 - - 170,686 730,474
BEE Total assets 20,705,427
BfE Liabilities 3,144,661 1,670,412 324526 3,525,717 8,665,316
BERE Total liabilities 8,665,316
EXZH Capital expenditure 854,603 143,512 55,877 72,004 1,125,996
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)
2015
ERRt AR Hith APE A&E
Instant
Beverages noodles Others  Unallocated Group
ARETT ARETE ARBTT AR%®Trt ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
PBEE Segment results
Léas Revenue 14,061,115 7,567,422 483,334 - 22,101,871
PEEF,/ (EE) Segment profit/(loss) 1,105,171 174,092 47358 (295,123) 1,031,498
BERA-FH Finance income - net - - - 26,318 26,318
PAREREABE 2 JEI51R2E  Share of profit/(loss) of investments
w2/ (EB8) accounted for using the equity method 114,724 - - (1,779) 112,945
BRETEEANR R Profit before income tax 1,170,761
FEHRX Income tax expense (336,256)
iﬁ;)\é*u Profit for the year 834505
WERAFHIE A Other segment items included
AHEE in the income statement
MEREE Depreciation and amortisation 1,000,285 279,440 44,633 78,750 1,403,108
AHEEREE Segment assets and liabilities
BAE Assets 11,801,888 4,189,231 448,205 3,045,370 19,984,694
RiEREANRREE Investments accounted for using the
equity method 1,461,263 - - 160,462 1,621,725
BEE Total assets 21,606,419
afg Liabilities 3,143511 1,543,692 194,503 5,122,220 10,004,016
BEE Total liabilities 10,004,016
BERXH Capital expenditure 1,100,616 185,784 74,825 39,614 1,400,839
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WmkoRBER (&)

BEARDEANZEETEREH
BREMGHEE AHHEESREE
ReRRITERARREM R NEH
T AR

BRARDEARNzAEFEBRREELT
EHaE EMMEHAaEREE-

EAXHEBRREAELERE WX
BEERE HENEURETLEE-

NATRABERZIFERBDEEMRBLT

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Assets grouped under unallocated category consisted
primarily of deferred income tax assets, available-for-sale
financial assets, cash and banks, and investment properties
and related land use rights.

Liabilities grouped under unallocated category comprised
primarily of deferred income tax liabilities, current income tax
liabilities and borrowings.

Capital expenditure comprised additions to land use rights,
property, plant and equipment, investment properties and
intangible assets.

The total of non-current assets located in different countries is
as follows :

2016 2015
AR%T AREBFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEMBEE (TBE The total of non-current assets
TE T A REL other than financial instruments and
FRGERE) B8 deferred income tax assets
— - PRC 14,372,869 15,596,383
—BINEI R - Overseas countries 71,393 78,177
SRIT A Financial instruments 236,808 239,135
IRIEFTISHIE B Deferred income tax assets 349,727 328,137
15,030,797 16,241,832

i —EFEZER G2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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+ i {E A HE 6 LAND USE RIGHTS
REERTHEAECERERN T The Group’s interests in land use rights represent prepaid
HE A CEHERE  LRmFE operating lease payments for land use rights and their net
ST book amounts are analysed as follows:
2016 2015
AR®T ARBETFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
M1A1H At 1 January 2,214,488 2,150,679
= Additions 63,874 99,357
Ui — XM B A7) (Mf3E33)  Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 33) = 21,470
5 (P 3E23) Amortisation (Note 23) (56,836) (57,018)
M12A31H At 31 December 2,221,526 2,214,488
(DN Cost 2,534,501 2,470,627
ENag 37 Accumulated amortisation (312,975) (256,139)
ERTF R Net book amount 2,221,526 2,214,488
AEBE B LMERESGRSP All of the Group’s land use rights are located in the PRC and
BEREEHAT: are with the lease periods as follows:
2016 2015
AR T AR¥ETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
EHESEARE In the PRC, held on:
50%F PA =2 R #H B Original lease period of over 50 years 10,309 10,533
104 £50%F 2 JR 7 B Original lease period of
between 10 and 50 years 2,211,217 2,203,955
FRIRM F5E Closing net book amount 2,221,526 2,214,488
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6 TifEARE(ER)

AEEz L ERERHECALREGE
mARAHEKRA]  [IHERTISHEE
P R [T BT

LAND USE RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Amortisation charges of the Group’s land use rights have
been charged to ‘cost of sales’ , ‘selling and marketing
expenses’ and ‘administrative expenses’ in the consolidated
income statement as follows:

2016 2015

AR®EF AREFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

555 AR Cost of sales 28,307 26,306
HERMSHERE Selling and marketing expenses 4,571 3,333
THAX Administrative expenses 23,958 27,379
56,836 57,018

N2016%F 128318 A AR
19,012,0007T &9 + #h { FA k& It K B 715
THFRAEES AEBEEHBABE

%o

As at 31 December 2016, land use rights certificates for land
use rights amounting to RMB 19,012,000 have not been
obtained and the Group is in the progress of applying for
these certificates.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

EHIA Hf
BT RERIERE REREE HEXE ERIR &it
Vehicles,
Machinery other
and factory equipment Leasehold  Construction
Buildings equipment and fixtures  improvements in progress Total
AREFT ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
20145128318 At 31 December 2014
B Cost 4,957,614 6,798,028 3,176,830 9,152 1,601,406 16,543,030
ZitE Accumulated depreciation (936,621) (2,296,148) (1,659,077) (9152 - (4,900,998)
2iRERE Accumulated impaiment provision - (379) - - - (379)
FEE Net book amount 4,020,993 4,501,501 1,617,753 - 1,601,406 11,641,663
HE15512A31B L EE Year ended 31 December 2015
FNERFE Opening net book amount 4,020,093 4,501,501 1,517,753 - 1,601,406 11,641,653
HE Additions 84,446 76,740 117,194 - 927,403 1,205,783
- R BAE (F5k33) Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 33) 21,963 26976 4,371 - - 53,310
THEEA Transfer upon completion 1,060,461 482,600 100,300 - (1,643,361) -
HE Disposals (3905) 4519) (3,490) - - (8.397)
ERERENE (Was) Transfers to investment properties (Note 8) (125,802) - - - - (125,802)
& (H3E23) Depreciation (Note 23) (239,566) (555,204) (516917) - - (1,311,777)
BEAE (K9) Reversal of provision (Note 23) - 116 - - - 116
ERETFE Closing net book amount 4,822,100 458,127 1219211 - 885,448 11,454,886
20155125318 At 31 December 2015
A Cost 5,966,603 7,346,679 3,311,966 9,152 885,448 17,519,848
ZitHE Accumulated depreciation (1,144,503) (2,818289) (2,092,755) 9,152 - (6,064,699)
ZitRERE Accumulated impairment provision - (269) - - - (263)
FAE Net book amount 4,822,100 4528,127 1,219.211 - 885,448 11,454,886
HZ2016512A31ALEE Year ended 31 December 2016
FNERFE Opening net book amount 4,822,100 4,528,127 1,219,211 - 885,448 11,454,886
AE Additions 9,403 81,785 205,983 - 715,770 1,012,941
THEEA Transfer upon completion 304,343 298,605 148,475 - (751,423) -
& Disposals (329) (18,408) (13,536) - - (82,273)
& (H523) Depreciation (Note 23) (281,438) (587,367) (469,516) = = (1,338,321)
FRERFE Closing net book amount 4,854,079 4,302,742 1,090,617 - 849,795 11,007,233
#2016%125318 At 31 December 2016
s Cost 6,279,923 7,670,129 3,257,551 9,152 849,795 18,066,550
ZitHE Accumulated depreciation (1,425,844) (3,367,124 (2,166,934) (9,152) = (6,969,054)
ZitHERE Accumulated impairment provision - (263) - - - (263)
FHE Net book amount 4,854,079 4,302,742 1,090,617 - 849,795 11,097,233
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7 MER -BEEFRE (&

FEERACAGRABERMBAOT:

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

Depreciation expenses have been charged to the
consolidated income statement as follows:

2016 2015

AR¥T T ARBEF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

SHE A Cost of goods sold 915,862 871,223
HERMSHEMX Selling and marketing expenses 257,512 316,908
THAX Administrative expenses 164,947 123,646
1,338,321 1,311,777

AEEZBFR2HURTE-

R2016% K2015512 A31 B I 4 i ##
ERWE BEREE-

REBFHEZHSZBRALAR
¥25,100,0007 (2015 : AR
23,500,0007T) BFF AREEE XK
[E WAl (HizE25) ©

FR AEEEREEREENEBER
AN ANR#33,725,0007C (20155 : AR
#£110,183,00070 ) BT E K o g B K
ADNEE—REEQONEFHFERNE
2.80% (20154 :2.63% ) BT E A -

The Group’s buildings are all located in the PRC.

There are no pledge of property, plant and equipment as at
31 December 2016 and 2015.

Rental income amounting to approximately RMB25.1 million
(2015: RMB23.5 million) derived from lease of buildings
is included in ‘other income’ in the consolidated income
statement (Note 25).

During the year, the Group has capitalised borrowing costs
amounting to RMB 33,725,000 (2015: RMB 110,183,000)
on qualifying assets. Borrowing costs were capitalised at the
weighted average rate of its general borrowings of 2.80%
(2015: 2.63%) per annum.
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REW= 8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
2016 2015
AR®T AR FTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
M1A1H At 1 January 349,576 242,439
nNE Addition 34,070 -
HEEE BERR Transfer from property, plant and
(FF7E7) equipment (Note 7) - 125,802
e (FsE23) Depreciation (Note 23) (18,262) (18,665)
M12HA31H At 31 December 365,384 349,576
MR12 A31 H BRI AR Cost as at 31 December 488,722 454 652
REtinE Accumulated depreciation (123,338) (105,076)
M12 831 H W BRENF 28 Net book amount as at 31 December 365,384 349,576
BEMEMR B I&E mIE Kk The investment properties are located in Shanghai, Jiang Su,
BRE  WENRHABAE40FMS0FMH L Sichuan and Guangdong Province and erected on land with
# E o lease periods of 40 and 50 years.
REEGEMEZNECDTALREIE Depreciation of the Group’s investment properties has been
) [HMmpxZ] - charged to ‘other expenses’ in the consolidated income
statements.
2016 2015
AR¥T ARBEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
Ha WA Rental income 89,579 103,797
REELEHSWAZYEZ  Direct operating expenses from property
BELERX that generated rental income (14,166) (13,591)
75,413 90,206
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8 REWE (&) 8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

REYEZERELAFESFHINNAT The carrying amounts and fair values of the investment
properties are set out as follows:

2016 2015
AR¥T ARBEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BRMEE Carrying amount 365,384 349,576
NEE Fair value 438,496 449,528
720164 %2015 12 431 A 2 A 1A The fair values as at 31 December 2016 and 2015 were
ThE 1 B {F DA E KT ] B 5 o A BUE determined by management’s self-assessment using
(ZE3fE) REEEIT 2RI RIER discounted cash flow projection based on significant
EETHMET unobservable inputs (Level 3).
EREANATERGARE (E3E)#E Information about fair value measurements using significant
TZzRAFEFENERISINNT unobservable inputs (Level 3) is set out below:
FABERARE

Unobservable inputs
7A20165F12831H

AES ATE HE BRI =
Fair value at
Description 31 December 2016 Rental value  Discount rate
(AR®T ) (AR®¥F )
(RMB’000) (RMB’000)

5 A

98,451 & %13,714 per annum 10%
Plant A
=B

99,047 8 %15,522 per annum 10%
Plant B
& % C

97,224 # %13,068 per annum 10%
Plant C
5 D

12,793 & %11,359 per annum 10%
Plant D
/N

96,911 6,167 109
Office building e peranntm o
JE &

34,070 & - Per annum 10%
Shops
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REWE (&) 8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)
Tl B 5 A BB
Unobservable inputs
R2015F12A31H 2
S NEE HME ALER &
Fair value at
Description 31 December 2015 Rental value Discount rate
(AREBFT) (AR®BFT)
(RMB’000) (RMB’000)

\Dl A

Fi 95,313 413,276 per annum 10%
Plant A

1A B

B 99,695 & 15,935 per annum 10%
Plant B

\D C

_ 142,849 419,729 per annum 10%
Plant C

\Dl D

Fi 13,144 410,681 per annum 10%
Plant D

/N

98,527 6,964 109

Office building 76,964 per annum o
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9 EEEE 9 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
B Ig
Computer
software
ARBFIT
RMB’000
A2015F1A1H At 1 January 2015
%N Cost 57,192
e Accumulated amortisation (28,578)
BRmEER Net book amount 28,614
H£2015F12A318 1L E Year ended 31 December 2015
FHIRME S5 Opening net book amount 28,614
NE Additions 20,919
B3y (Mf3E23) Amortisation (Note 23) (15,648)
FEREEEEZR Closing net book amount 33,885
720155128311 At 31 December 2015
(BN Cost 78,111
2 = by Accumulated amortisation (44,226)
AEm S5 Net book amount 33,885
B 22015128318 L& E Year ended 31 December 2015
F Y EE Opening net book amount 33,885
NE Additions 15,111
By (M3E23) Amortisation (Note 23) (19,351)
FREE FE Closing net book amount 29,645
#2016F12A31H At 31 December 2016
B AR Cost 93,222
s Accumulated amortisation (63,577)
AR F 5B Net book amount 29,645
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BELEE (&) 9 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)
BB 2 HEHEDRNG A TITHRF The amortisation of computer software has been charged
XIRIHEEERTHEERSZ] & to ‘administrative expenses’ and ‘selling and marketing
o Rl AR 127,000t X AR expenses’ at the amounts of approximately RMB9,127,000
#10,224,0007T (2015F : AR ¥ and RMB 10,224,000 (2015: RMB7,718,000 and RMB
7,718,0007T & A K %7,930,0007T) ° 7,930,000), respectively.
REBEANERNRE 10 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD
EEEAGBRBERNEENT The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:
2016 2015
AR®T ARBETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
B N B 2 HEZS(a) Interests in associates (a) 278,968 1,199,333
REBREZERD) Interests in joint ventures (b) 451,506 422,392
M12HA31H At 31 December 730,474 1,621,725
ERERMERNEBEMT - The amounts recognised in the income statement are as
follows:
2016 2015
AR T ARBETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEAG B & R R Al (a) Share of profits of associates (a) 63,033 94,126
B & & 1 E R FFEE (D) Share of net of profits of
joint ventures (b) 30,114 18,819
HZE12A31BIELFE For the year ended 31 December 93,147 112,945
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10 HEZZEARNEKRE (F) 10 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)

(@) REEQITZES (@) Interests in associates

REBERR 2R 2 ZFEBWNT The movements in interests in associates are as follows:

2016 2015

AR®E T ARBEFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

M1A1H At 1 January 1,199,333 1,108,406

&G 5 A Share of profits 63,033 94,126

B E QA Disposal of associates (980,199) -

BB Dividends received (3,199) (3,199

®12831H At 31 December 278,968 1,199,333
M2016%12A31H  REE ~ B The particulars of the associates of the Group as at 31
ENRIFBIT 2 LAERIET December 2016, all of which equity method is used to

R account for, are set out as follows:
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INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING

THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)

REtE Nal 2w (&) (@) Interests in associates (Continued)
EMRLER
ARAER wHRAH BREXR/BRA AEEELRE FEEH
Paid-up
Country/place and capital Equity interest
Company name date of incorporation /Share capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
2016 2015

tHAFE:

Listed:

EAIL T REFRA FEER AR 16.79% 16.30%  REBER AT BERRE
B BERLF 20016A26H 392,600,007 DR AHSERIEE
(TZ@HME]) RHE

(Yantai North Andre Juice Yantai, PRC, RMB 392,600,000 The production and sales
Co., Ltd.”) (“Andre Juice”) 26 June 2001 of concentrated apple

juice, pear juice, apple
essence, forage etc.
products.

FETAR:

Unlisted:

SEBFRROEBART  PEILR AR - 4783%  AERBERH
([5EBRA]) 2005610/ 28H 991,833,7767C

(Jinmailang Beverage Beijing, PRC, RMB 991,833,776 Manufacturing and sale of
Corporate Limited”) 28 October 2005 beverages
(“Jinmailang Corporate”)

(Note)
* AN BB ARARIEEERNH * The English name represents the best effort by

PXAWEEST -

GBS

MR2016F5H9H « A% @&
% = J7Consistent Returns
Pte. Ltd. B AREBE AR
1,291,324,0007C A% & HE =77
HEREBRNSELRRE I
47.83% R ([HEFE])
VR EERHRE - LEFE
M2016F9A5H Tk ° A It -
A& FIE B RS BB
#3% & A R %980,199,0007TE
2IAREEREERIRAN
RA MZRXHHF[AEAR
#311,125,0007¢ (FizE24) o

management of the Company in translating the Chinese
name.

Note: On 9 May 2016, the Group entered into a share transfer
agreement with Consistent Returns Pte. Ltd., a third
party, in respect of the sale of the Group’s entire 47.83%
shareholding in Jinmailang Beverage to the third party, at
a consideration of RMB 1,291,324,000 (the “Disposal”).
The Disposal was completed on 5 September 2016. The
carrying value of the investment in Jinmailang Beverage
amounted to RMB980,199,000 at the date of Disposal
has been presented as the cost of the Group hold on
the settlement date and the gain from this transaction
was RMB 311,125,000 (Note 24).
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10 REBEARNKRE (

(@) MEBEXRzER (&

AEBEEBERRATEE A
BEREEZHHEERBEZNT

=) 10 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)

) (@) Interests in associates (Continued)

and results in aggregate is as follows:

A summary of the financial information of the Group’s
shares of the associated companies’ assets, liabilities

2016 2015
AREBT T ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REEEBGER Summary of balance sheet

ERBEE Non-current assets 153,920 1,427,966
MENE E Current assets 209,060 412,682
BEE Total assets 362,980 1,840,648
EREEE Non-current liabilities 129 93,087
mENBE Current liabilities 83,883 548,228
FEN=V Total liabilities 84,012 641,315
FEE Net assets 278,968 1,199,333

BEHFEEWARE Summary of comprehensive income
Wz Revenue 675,394 1,368,498
L 2ERE 7 B Bi1&m A Post-tax profits from operations 63,033 94,126
Hab2EKA Other comprehensive income = -
ZEUWA4REE Total comprehensive income 63,033 94,126
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10 RERZEARNEKRE (&) 10 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING

(b)

THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)

AEEREZER (b) Interests in joint ventures
REBELEZERZEHUT The movements in interests in joint ventures are as
follows:

2016 2015

AR¥F T AR®EF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

M1ATA At 1 January 422,392 437,302

NE Additions - 24,243

HEA-EHBRAR Transfer to a subsidiary (Note 33)

(MI5E33) - (55,472)
FE (% A1) 58 Share of net of profits 30,114 18,819
2R E Dividend received (1,000) (2,500)
®12A31H At 31 December 451,506 422,392
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10 REBEARNKRE (&)

(b)

178

REELE R

(%)

N2016F12A31H  AEB 2 &
B (HIFELETIH AR ET

10

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)

(b) Interests in joint ventures (Continued)

The particulars of the joint ventures of the Group as at

31 December 2016, all of which are unlisted and equity

BR)FFBEMT method is used to account for, are set out as follows:
TAMARLER,
AEER WHRAH BrREX AEEEERE TEEH
Country/place and Paid-up Equity interest
Company name date of incorporation capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
2016 2015

ENIXERERAZE B M AR #1,000,0007 50% 50% ~ REEEREERS
REEBERAA 2008%7A18H
([EReIxREER])

(United Advisor Venture Suzhou, PRC, RMB1,000,000 Investment management
Management Co., Ltd.") 18 July 2008 and advisory services
(“United Advisor Venture
Management”)

EMEFHHIEERDR PEEM 19,060,000% 7T 42% 2% EEERESHBEKR-
([EHER]) 2009%7A24H e S v

(Guilin Ziquan Beverage Guilin, PRC, USD 19,060,000 Production of various
Industries Co., Ltd. *) 24 July 2009 types of beverage
(“Guilin Ziguan”) including fruit,

vegetable, tea and
coffee etc.

Greater China F&B il 10,700% 7T 50% 50% REEE
Capital Partners Ltd. 20084 H16H
(“Greater China F&B")

Cayman Islands, UsD10,700 Investment management
16 April 2008

RERIG—CEBERAA HENE AR 50% 50% AEREZBED
([RERI]) 20117 A29R 232,000,000

(Wuhan Zijiang President Wuhan, PRC, RMB232,000,000 Production of various
Enterprises Co., Ltd.”) 29 July 2011 types of plastic
("Wuhan Zijiang”) products
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INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)

RegthEsER (&) (b) Interests in joint ventures (Continued)
ERRLER
NRER HEHR B BREX AEBELRE TEER
Country/place and Paid-up Equity interest
Company name date of incorporation capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
2016 2015
SMS Capital Co., Ltd. HEHS 500,000% 7T 50% 50% REER
("SMSCC") 2012411 A28H
Cayman Islands, USD500,000 Investment management
28 November 2012
SMS Investment HEHS 500,000 7T 50% 50% REER
Management Co., Ltd. 2013F1H2H USD500,000 Investment management
(“SMS Investment Cayman Islands,
Management”) 2 January 2013
ERAMBERELE R EIEM AR 39.74% 3974% REER
([ERRM]) 20094 A138 516,500,0007C
(China F&B Venture Suzhou, PRC, RMB516,500,000 Investment management
Investments®)(“China 13 April 2009
F&B’)
EERRHHIXERAR HEHES 19,000,000% ¢ 35% 3B%  EERHEERH
([EEZ%]) 2013%F7A230
(Ziquan Beverage industries  Yichang, PRC, USD19,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
CO., LTD.Y 23 July 2013 beverages
SMS Consumer Fund LP.  FISEE 14,720,000% 7 23.44% 2344%  REER
(“SMSfund”) 2012%12A18H
Cayman Islands, USD14,720,000 Investment management
18 December 2012
* EXEBIOARREEER A * The English name represents the best effort by

PXAWEEST

B 2 (b5 AR R B 75 B R
BRUAKREEEATE-

management of the Company in translating the Chinese

name.

No individual financial information of joint ventures was
considered material impact to the Group.

% — % FEZER AR 2 F Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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10 HEZZEARNEKRE (F) 10 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)

(b) REegEbFzER (&) (b) Interests in joint ventures (Continued)

T
.

SEELEELESTHEER A summary of the financial information of the Group’s
P54

RXEZYBERBENT

share of the joint ventures’ assets, liabilities and results
in aggregate is as follows:

2016 2015
AREBT T AREEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
REEEBGER Summary of balance sheet
mE Current
RehkBEeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 135,487 129,887
HEtrne&E Other current assets
(TEERE:®) (excluding cash) 81,660 86,752
ME)VE EMRRE Total current assets 217,147 216,639
HEREaE Other current liabilities 75,112 62,022
nEBERRE Total current liabilities 75,112 62,022
ERH Non-current
BE Assets 328,802 316,707
SRBEE Financial liabilities 17,500 47,003
HEHiBaE Other liabilities 1,831 1,929
ERE B EEE Total non-current liabilities 19,331 48,932
FEE Net assets 451,506 422,392

/I 80 % — %P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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10 RERZAERNKRE (&) 10 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)

b) REELEER (E) (b) Interests in joint ventures (Continued)

2016 2015
AR¥T ARBTIT
RMB’000 RMB’000

REHFAWARE Summary of comprehensive income
WA Revenue 351,216 383,165
e R #E Depreciation and amortization (12,438) (26,893)
FEBA Interest income 368 1,565
R Interest expenses (2,789) (2,082)
REEBZ RN Profits from operations 36,131 26,232
Frefimx Income tax expenses (6,017) (7,413)
WEEE ZBTBIE T Post-tax profits from operations 30,114 18,819
Htir & e Other comprehensive income = -
e mAEEE Total comprehensive profits 30,114 18,819

% — % BB PR A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. »] 8»]
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11 AItEEEMEE 11 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS
2016 2015
ARMT T AR®EF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
M1A1H At 1 January 227,024 192,809
INE Additions - 51,665
e Disposals - (733)
SFAHMEEWKZE 2 AFE  Net fair value changes taken to other
g5 (f:E19) comprehensive income (Note 19)
—BHREMT — Haisheng Juice (1,496) 3,283
—STEIILE - Wondersun Dairy - (20,000)
®12A31H At 31 December 225,528 227,024
HE2015F12A31B IEFEEAREZ A The additions to the available-for-sale financial assets
HEEsREERRERTE LI E# during the year ended 31 December 2015 included RMB
— & )T & AR®51,665,0007T ° 51,665,000 of further capital injection to Wondersun Dairy.
AEBZAIHHESREENRTE The available-for-sale financial assets of the Group are stated
SRR - W BIELA T &8 at fair value and include the following:
2016 2015
ARMT T AREEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
B Fm&EH Listed securities
HHERT BB Haisheng Juice — Hong Kong 13,863 15,359
JE B S Unlisted securities
FTEILILE Wondersun Dairy 211,665 211,665
225,528 227,024
B EmEHFZTE Market value of listed securities 13,863 15,359

/I 82 % — %P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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11 AIHEHEESREE (&

tHRSZAFERBEREEA 2™
BRE M EE -

BR2016F12A31H AEEFAH B
FRIZERBERAR ([EBFHRT])
37,800,000/ (20154 : 37,800,000
f&) 88 RARER2.99% (2015
F:209%) ZERENAFERE
FARANTHERE-

AEEFAREIATELIERNE
RAA (T2 ILFLE])9% (201545 ¢
9% ) MR HE - STIEIFLERIELTHE
BINEE  B2006FEREEILXEMD
HERHE TEIIEFLTREZ
RFEIZERRAERTEHE (K&
BR)EEEBHZMEMERE -

BRIABTTAHEZ L& 50 B A
HESREEAAARKEE.

11 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL

ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The fair values of the listed securities are determined based
on the quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.

The Group holds 37,800,000 shares (2015: 37,800,000
shares) in China Haisheng Juice Holdings Co., Ltd.
(“Haisheng Juice”) representing 2.99% (2015: 2.99%) of the
shareholding of Haisheng Juice as at 31 December 2016.
The fair value of the investment is the market quoted price of
Haisheng Juice.

The Group holds 9% (2015: 9%) equity interests in B EE)T
LrEIUAERMBRAR (Heillongjiang Wondersun Dairy
Joint Stock Co., Ltd.") (“Wondersun Dairy”), an unlisted PRC
domestic enterprise engaged in the manufacturing and sale of
dairy products since 2006. The fair value of the unlisted equity
interests in Wondersun Dairy is determined with reference to
a valuation based on a combination of income approach and
market approach (Note 3.3).

Other than the listed securities which are denominated in
HKD, the remaining available-for-sale financial assets are
denominated in RMB.

% — % BB PR A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. /] 88
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12 IRIEREBH

RIEMSREENBEEMSHREED
W

12 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

The analysis of deferred income tax assets and deferred
income tax liabilities is as follow:

2016 2015
ARET T AR®EF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
EEFTSHEE Deferred income tax assets
— #1218 A Ak E 2 — Deferred income tax assets to be
BEFSTEE recovered within 12 months 177,491 144,996
— g 121E A& e 2 — Deferred income tax assets to be
RIEFTEHEE recovered after more than
12 months 172,236 183,141
349,727 328,137
BEESHAR Deferred income tax liabilities
—#BR12E ARNEE 2 — Deferred income tax liabilities to be
BEFSHAR settled within 12 months 6,097 5,165
— B RBB12E A% &E 2 - Deferred income tax liabilities to be
RIEFTEHEaE settled after more than 12 months 185,705 192,185
191,802 197,350
BEFSHERE  F8 Deferred income tax assets, net 157,925 130,787

184
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12 IREMREH (&) 12 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)
RILFEHRE 22T - The movements in the deferred income tax accounts are as
follows:
2016 2015
AR®T AR®EF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
®1A1H At 1 January 130,787 133,036
RErB 18R A (F1K%)  Credited/(charged) to the consolidated
(Mf5E28) income statement (Note 28) 27,138 (4,899)
U iE — kKB A E) (Ki7E33)  Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 33) - (2,350)
REMEER ST A Credited to other comprehensive
(M5E19) income (Note 19) - 5,000
M®12831H At 31 December 157,925 130,787
FNELEMBSHEERAEGBENES (K The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
FrRE—FEREE S ) T during the year, without taking into consideration the
offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as
follows:
REMESHEE Deferred income tax assets
e
SREE
BEHERR RERE EitEX ATENTE HEFBEIE EEEREZE @it
Downward
adjustment
in fair value
of available-
Impairment for-sale
provision of Depreciation Accrued financial Taxloss  Asset basis
assets of equipment expenses assets benefit difference Total

ARETR  ARETE  ARETR  ARETT ARBTT  ARETT ARETR
RMB'OOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMB'OO0  RMBO00  RMB'000  RMB'00O

#2015%1A1H At 1 January 2015 4,804 4,100 109,237 1,672 183,893 18,175 321,881
REABER (B) /FA (Charged)/credited to the consolidated

income statements (837) (983) (3,656) - 6,732 - 1,256
REMZERENR Credited to other comprehensive income - - - 5,000 - - 5,000
20158124318 At 31 December 2015 3,967 3,117 105,581 6,672 190,625 18,175 328,137
REABRRIA/ (HK) Credited/(charged) to the consolidated

income statements 1,238 2,008 13,624 - 22,895 (18,175) 21,590
2016%12831 B At 31 December 2016 5,205 5,125 119,205 6,672 213,520 - 349,727
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12 RSB (&) 12 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)
EIEFTSHEE Deferred income tax liabilities
BB ALENEG RENEFRE GEHFERL @
Accelerated Capitalization
Withholding Fair value  depreciation  of borrowing
tax gains  of equipment costs Total
ARBFT AREFT AR®FT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
®201551/31R At 1 January 2015 17,251 135,603 35,991 - 188,845
WE-RME LA Acquisition of a subsidiary - 2,350 - - 2,350
RiEEERE (Credited)/charged to the
(3tA) /e consolidated income statements - (4,107) (11,900) 22,162 6,155
#2015%F12 4318 At 31 December 2015 17,251 133,846 24,091 22,162 197,350
N SRR EnE (Credited)/charged to the
(tA),/ consolidated income statements - (3,987) (3,447) 1,886 (5,548)
#2016%F12431H At 31 December 2016 17,251 129,859 20,644 24,048 191,802

RIEFSTHEEEEREBBARKRE
AU RMNER AN BN R EE 2
TIEE S T AR - R E B I KR 362016
F12H31A A B A 5 B 18 B R B UL
A2 BIEE 18 4 A R #334,183,0007T
(20154 : A R#262,899,0007T ) # R
EIEFTIS T & E X AR 73,159,000
(20154 : AR ¥65,725,0007T) ° 1R &
FEIFTER G HIEBEERRKA
FRE® -

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carried forward to the extent that the realisation of the related
tax benefit through the future taxable profits is probable.
The Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets of
approximately RMB 73,159,000 (2015: RMB 65,725,000)
in respect of tax losses amounting to approximately RMB
334,183,000 (2015: RMB 262,899,000) as at 31 December
2016 that can be carried forward against future taxable
income. Tax losses will expire in the future five years
according to PRC income tax rules.

/I 86 % — %P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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13 BEHEIsNWEMITE 13 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
BATEEB
AHE  BREE
e SREE SREE st
Available- Financial

for-sale assets at fair
financial value through

Receivables assets  profit or loss Total
BABERBRMRMWEE Assets as per consolidated
balance sheet
#2016512A31H As at 31 December 2016
RHHESHEE Available-for-sale financial assets
(BiaE11) (Note 11) - 225,528 - 225,528
[EUE 58 (FEE15) Trade receivables (Note 15) 542,934 = = 542,934
Be R EMmEYRGER Deposits and other receivables
(TREERAR) (excluding prepayments) 1,188,585 - - 1,188,585
RBe RBITEH (H317)  Cash and bank balances
(Note 17) 2,463,201 - - 2,463,201
M@t Total 4,194,720 225,528 - 4,420,248
#2015F12A31H As at 31 December 2015
HPESHEE Available-for-sale financial assets
(Ki5E11) (Note 11) - 227,024 - 227,024
e E 5B (Fiz15) Trade receivables (Note 15) 529,198 - - 529,198
Re REMERER Deposits and other receivables
(TREENAR) (excluding prepayments) 193,406 - - 193,406
R4 RRITHER (M517)  Cash and bank balances
(Note 17) 2,919,329 - - 2,919,329
@t Total 3,641,933 227,024 - 3,868,957
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13 BREJHESHWERTE (&) 13 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(CONTINUED)
BRAVEER
BEEke HAERSHEMRE
tREE FENSRAR st
Liabilities ~ Other financial
at fair value liabilities
through measured at
profit or loss  amortised cost Total
GEEEBBRATHER Liabilities as per consolidated
balance Sheet
20165124318 As at 31 December 2016
FENE SEX (H1520) Trade payables (Note 20) - 1,138,154 1,138,154
HttENTERETER Other payables and accruals
(TREFLBERE) (excluding non-financial liabilities) - 2,004,108 2,004,108
&8 (Ma22) Borrowings (Note 22) - 2,600,169 2,600,169
Hith R FUR (B E21) Other long-term payables (Note 21) - 430,879 430,879
st Total - 6,173,310 6,173,310
2015124318 As at 31 December 2015
FENE S ER (K1:20) Trade payables (Note 20) - 1,229,015 1,229,015
HtENFERETER Other payables and accruals
(TREFLBER) (excluding non-financial liabilities) - 1,851,930 1,851,930
TEEMIA Derivative financial instruments 2,138 - 2,138
& (fizte2) Borrowings (Note 22) - 4,254,316 4,254,316
EfRHAEMATE (Hi21) Other long-term payables (Note 21) - 439,149 439,149
@t Total 2,138 7,774,410 7,776,548
/I 88 iﬁ—ﬁ:‘%ql B #% % %5 FR 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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14 & 14 INVENTORIES
2016 2015
AR®T T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R Raw materials 384,137 400,530
T2 m Work in progress 68,349 69,439
B & Finished goods 582,183 691,104
25 Consumables 179,858 206,644
1,214,527 1,367,717
MRS 5 S AT A H B R K CH R The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and
T Z2HEERANABAREA3,796BE T included in cost of sales and other expenses amounted
(20154 : ARM13,9002F ETT) ° to approximately RMB 13,796 million (2015: RMB 13,992
million).
REZE2016F12A31 8 IEF E M The Group recognised the inventory provision of
HFEZHAESRFEMS A& approximately RMB 3,821,000 (2015: reversed the inventory
HRIFEBRENHN R ARES,821,000 provision of approximately RMB 1,134,000) (Note 23) for the
T (2015F R GFERB AR year ended 31 December 2016 in respect of the write-down
1,134,0007%) (F17¥23) -ZEHEE of inventories to their net realisable values. These amounts
FABEERZ[HEENA] o have been included in ‘cost of sales’ in the income statement.
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15 BREZRN 15 TRADE RECEIVABLES
2016 2015
ARE T ARBEFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B E=FE HEN Trade receivables from independent
third parties 505,932 494,288
Ve IR L] Less: provision for impairment (10,086) (8,573)
JEUCBIE = Z 5K Trade receivables from independent
F1E third parties, net 495,846 485,715
FEU BAR 5 B B AR K Trade receivables from related parties
(BI5E34(0)) (Note 34(b)) 47,088 43,483
JEWE 5 8RR 1A Trade receivables, net 542,934 529,198
AEBBERTFEFORKEIKRZE The credit terms granted to customers by the Group are
FAE (20155 : 60K 290K ) - JEW & usually 60 to 90 days (2015: 60 to 90 days). The ageing
SEFHERS O T analysis of trade receivables is as follows:
2016 2015
AR®B T ARBEFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEWE SR 1858 Trade receivables, gross
—90K AR — Within 90 days 511,148 495,146
—91E180K - 91 to 180 days 38,986 38,348
—1812365K — 181 to 365 days 1,437 1,356
——FMNE - Over one year 1,449 2,921
553,020 537,771
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15 BWEZ K™ (&)

AEEBWE SERHRZBREEATS
EHEHE:

15 TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

2016 2015
AR®T ARBEFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000

JEWE S IRF 58 Trade receivables, gross
—AR¥E - RMB 547,913 532,422
—%7T - UsD 1,706 2,166
BT - HKD 3,401 3,183
553,020 537,771

REER BREZEFEEEEZEN
(=X

4+
o

_H
juni]

H2016F 128318 HARBI10EE
JL (20154 : ARM105.0H& L) 2 &
WESEFEE @ Mt REELZ
BEcBENAARE1018E T (2015
F:ARM86EET) @A EASLE
BRARZFIEGHAEFHTIHRE &

“HRIBRIRBEERRRBTEOERS
G REAALEEFPEBHUER
B 5 B o 1t S5 B UK AR SR A BR i 9 AT 40
T

The carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate their
fair values as at the balance sheet dates.

As at 31 December 2016, trade receivables of approximately
RMB110 million (2015: RMB105.9 million) were overdue and
the amount of provision for impairment was approximately
RMB10.1 million (2015: RMB8.6 million). The impairment is
firstly assessed individually for individual significant or long
ageing balances, and the remaining balances are grouped for
collective assessment according to their ageing and historical
default rates as these customers are of similar credit risk
characteristics. The ageing of these receivables is as follows:

2016 2015
AR¥T ARBEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000

EWE SRR 1B FF Trade receivables, gross
— 90K AR — Within 90 days 68,156 65,724
—91F180K — 91 to 180 days 38,986 38,348
—181E365K — 181 to 365 days 1,437 1,356
——F N E — Over one year 1,449 551
110,028 105,979
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15 BRE SRR (&) 15

AEBER YR 2 [TTHAX] FH#ER
PR E 5 R 2 R E R o RE R
ZEmT:

TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The Group recognises provision for impairment of trade
receivables in ‘administrative expenses’ in the income
statements. The movements in provision for impairment are

as follows:

2016 2015
AR®EF AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
®1A18 At 1 January 8,573 10,207

FEWE ZRFORE Provision/(reversal) for impairment of
B (BE) (KMi3E23) trade receivables (Note 23) 3,118 (1,634)
5 T A U Bl U AR R Receivables written off as uncollectible (1,605) -
®12A318 At 31 December 10,086 8,573

RBESAH AEEAAZZRESER
[ e 4 L it FE U B 5 B R 2 BRI B © AR
SEYESHTMNERMESER-

The maximum exposure of the Group to credit risk at the
reporting date is the carrying value of trade receivables as
mentioned above. The Group does not hold any collateral as
security.
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16 ANRE REREMEKK

16 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

b= RECEIVABLES
2016 2015
AR®T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
© B A = PR GRIE Financial asset receivables 1,000,000 -
HAth B A 3R IB K R R IE Other prepayment and receivable
—TEfTIEE R HMHIE — Prepaid value added tax and
other taxes 228,316 298,844
—ENREBE-TBNT - Prepayments — advance payments
g R 2 $IE to suppliers 49,761 48,520
— FE UK BE B 75 SRR - Amounts due from related parties
(MI5E34(0)) (Note 34(b)) 34,743 47,428
—HihFERIE N EUWFIE  — Other prepayments and receivables 152,428 165,662
465,248 560,454
W FERNARER & Less: non-current portion (11,280) (12,111)
BN ERE69> Current portion 1,453,968 548,343

R2016F 1273 REB U KRS Hit A
R¥A00BTHEHRBRITIRHNEHME
E-ZEeRMEERN=FEA LXF
M EA51%E6.11%rF B oA KT B
B R201741 A B B 05 2 78 SUREL o 1R
2016F12A31H ZERE/R AR
RBEeEEY (WiE17) -

REEH MEBRMNFIE REREM
YRR EAREE RENVKR
BEREANGEHZQAFERE-

In December 2016, the Group purchased financial assets
provided by a bank with principal amounts totalled RMB10
billion. The financial assets have a term of three months and
interest bearing at 4.51% to 6.11% per annum. The principal
and interest had been fully received upon maturity in January
2017. The investments were regarded as cash and cash
equivalent as at 31 December 2016 (Note 17).

All the prepayments, deposits and other receivables are
dominated in RMB. Their carrying amounts approximate their
fair values as at the balance sheet dates.
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17 BERBITEER

17 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

2016 2015
ARE T ARBEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
T EFERE Cash at bank and on hand 2,463,201 2,919,329
RITRFREReERSZEY 2 HE A reconciliation of cash at bank and on hand to cash
N equivalent is as follow:
2016 2015
AR®BT R ARBETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
RITRFERE Cash at bank and on hand 2,463,201 2,919,329
& FE ERWKIE Add: Financial asset receivable (Note 16)
(KFsE16) 1,000,000 -
B T HE Less: Time deposits (1,386,362) (1,441,792)
R EIRITFER Restricted bank deposits - (4,220)
BehBEeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 2,076,839 1,473,317
MR2016F12A31H A EBEFRIRTT As at 31 December 2016, the effective weighted average
B 17 R E B hi#E 5 F T & K4.55E rate on deposits of the Group placed with banks was 4.55%
(2015% : 3.18&F) » (2015: 3.18%) per annum.
R2016F12H31H * A& B A E B K As at 31 December 2016, the Group had time deposits of
B AN R#1,386,362,0007T (20154 : A RMB1,386,362,000 (2015: RMB1,441,792,000) which had
R #1,441,792,0007T) ' REIBFEH A= terms with original maturity over three months and within one
AR EE—FR- year.
2016512 A31H - B AEZ R HIRT17 As at 31 December 2016, there were no restricted bank
FIEARBLASEEREGEREREEZ deposits (2015: RMB4,220,000) pledged as security for the
I (20154 : AR ¥4,220,0007T) ° issue of letter of credit facilities and bills of the Group.
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RERBITHEER (F)

MR2016F12A31H e NE L EE
YA N B EHE

17

CASH AND BANK BALANCES
(CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2016, cash and cash equivalents were
denominated in the following currencies:

2016 2015

ARET AREEF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

— AR - RMB 1,983,882 893,372
—%7T -UsD 82,052 573,456
— BT - HKD 6,701 2,480
—H - Others 4,204 4,009
2,076,839 1,473,317

R2015F12A31H  THFEHR UL TE
A

As at 31 December 2015, time deposits were denominated in
the following currencies:

2016 2015

AR®T T ARETIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

— AR - RMB 1,385,500 1,402,037
-7 - UsD = 38,962
—H — Others 862 793
1,386,362 1,441,792

ARBEMAFSARERTE AR
RBZ 8% - BARE LB BING FOE
R B R AR S R B B R M 2 S EE
B 5 B K AR B P AR R o

RMB is currently not a freely convertible currency in the
international market. The conversion of RMB into foreign
currency and remittance of RMB out of the PRC are subject
to the rules and regulations of exchange controls promulgated
by the PRC authorities.
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18 BRA K IR0 5%E ik

(@)

196

B A & B 19 7R B BR

18 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

ACCOUNT

(a) Share capital and share premium account

EE
Authorised
EEREE R BRAHE
Number of Share capital
ordinary shares Share capital equivalent to
T ARBFT
HKD'000 RMB’000
R20165F1 A1HE At 1 January 2016 till
2016F12A31H 31 December 2016 50,000,000,000 500,000 440,240
BRTRAR
Issued and fully paid
LG E B& BAfie  ROBER G
Share Share
Number of Share capital premium
shares capital  equivalent to account Total

TET  ARETT  ARETT  ARETR
HKD'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

R2016E1A1BE
20164128318

At 1 January 2016 til
31 December 2016

4,319,334,000 43,193 39,764 4,829,899 4,869,663

i —EFEZER G2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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18 BARKMDIGER (&

(b)

BT E

AR FBER2007F11 A23H
AR EMABZERRMN —BERER
Rt E ([Zar &) - BEZE
B TEITZBRNDBETEE
##352,681,0008% + Bl A 2 & 1
2007128178 (BIARQ A H
RERZAT ETER) TETiRH 2
HH10% & EBETERLE
Rz —BEBHENREAH
ZRFEFEHBB20% BEFBEHE
HifE ) e R B B AR B HA R T
TEIR—FHRBERTEBRBT
FER - ZAEBHEENESR
2017912 816H »

B ZE2016F12HA31 8 HE R IE
ZetEE BB E -

18 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM
ACCOUNT (CONTINUED)

(b)

% — % FEZER AR 2 F Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Share option scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) pursuant to a written resolution passed on
23 November 2007. The total number of shares which
may be issued under the Scheme must not exceed
352,681,000 shares, representing approximately 10%
of the total number of shares issued by the Company
as at 17 December 2007 (ie. the listing date of the
Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange). The
general vesting period for the options granted under the
Scheme is limited to 20% at each anniversary of grant
date and should be a period to commence not less than
one year and not to exceed 10 years from the date of
the grate of the option. The Scheme will remain in force
until 16 December 2017.

Up to 31 December 2016, no share options have been
granted under the Scheme.
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19 HitRERRERF 19 OTHER RESERVES AND RETAINED
EARNINGS
#BABH  ATVERE EERE BHEEA B3
Contribution Fair value Statutory Retained

surplus reserves reserves earnings Total

ARETT  ARETR  ARBTR ARETT  ARETR

RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000

B2015F1 A1A 2 8% Balance at 1 January 2015 1,369,547 (12,201) 855,802 3,753,927 5,967,075

ERHEM Profit for the year - - - 834,505 834,505
NN ESREELATERSR Fair value losses on available-for-sale

financial assets

—28 (M&11) - gross (Note 11) - (16,717) - - (16,717)

—TIE (fitst12) - tax (Note 12) - 5,000 - - 5,000

BREETRE Appropriation to statutory reserves - - 130,261 (130,261) -

EXM014E 2R E Dividends relating to 2014, paid (57,123) - - - (57,123)

R2015F 128310 2 &8 Balance at 31 December 2015 1,312,424 (23,918) 986,063 4,458,171 6,732,740

R Profit for the year - - - 607,329 607,329
R ESREE ATERE Fair value losses on available-for-sale

GER) financial assets (Note 11) - (1,496) - - (1,496)

BREEERE Appropriation to statutory reserves - - 131,817 (131,817) -

BEXM2015E 2 RS Dividends relating to 2015, paid (168,125) - - - (168,125)

R2016F126310 2 &8 Balance at 31 December 2016 1,144,299 (25,414) 1,117,880 4,933,683 7,170,448
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19 HitbEERERERR (&)

(@

(c)

BB

ARAFNBARBEEIRARF
Bty B2 AIASA RS A
BB LT T2 BAMER
ZEE RIS R 0 & 8
B

%R %xﬁ%féﬁﬁfé
ABERA] 2k T AR R HE
BA-

E8
=

Fr

D ERE

AEERAFEREREIHREE
ERMEEQAFEED-

EEME

BDA R A R B SR R B R
AR EHESFAEAEDN D
& B A B B9ORTE B 5 K P e
WE s AFR (ERE T UEF
EMRFERR) PRE—EMNE
ERE - PTRRERBIIHEE B
HY 1 48 5%

19 OTHER RESERVES AND RETAINED
EARNINGS (CONTINUED)

(@)

#— %P EEZER AR 2 T Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Contribution surplus

Contribution surplus of the Company mainly represent
the net balance of contributions from and distributions
to the equity holder of the Company prior to the
listing of shares of the Company pursuant to the
reorganisation for the purpose of the Listing.

According to the law and regulation of the Cayman
Islands, such contribution surplus is distributable to the
equity holders of the Company.

Fair value reserves

Fair value reserves of the Group comprise of changes in
fair value of available-for-sale financial assets.

Statutory reserves

The PRC laws and regulations require companies
registered in the PRC to provide for certain statutory
reserves, which are to be appropriated from the net
profit as reported in their respective statutory financial
statements after offsetting accumulated losses from
prior years, before profit distributions to equity holder.
All statutory reserves are created for specific purposes.
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19 HibRERRERR (&)

()

EERE (&)

ERINBBELCENMANELRXE
MARZEF BB AR - EETE
FEBRREMNDIKE - BRAE
i AF R Z10%RIEEATERH A
Be BEEAEESKIBETIION
NAZFEMEARE0% R LE = bESN
HEARAEZEEFTEMRR
FENAS B BR R AROS A AR T

19 OTHER RESERVES AND RETAINED
EARNINGS (CONTINUED)

(c) Statutory reserves (Continued)

PRC subsidiaries incorporated as wholly-foreign
owned enterprises and domestic companies are
required to appropriate 10% of statutory net profits to
statutory surplus reserves, upon distribution of their
post-tax profits of the current year, until the statutory
surplus reserve is not less than 50% of its registered
capital. In addition, at the discretion of the respective

BRHREAKFBEREERBAE
T NERPINGEREBEEMAK
VOFERBAR EEEEEF
B BIRTE T # AR 10 E E BB &

i M BEAOE TE 4

AEBBRABSREARBMA
AMER BARRMNEELER

EMAREAR-
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boards of directors, these companies may allocate
a portion of their post-tax profits to the staff welfare
and bonus reserve and discretionary surplus reserve.
PRC subsidiaries incorporated as sino-foreign equity
joint venture companies may allocate a portion of their
statutory post-tax profits to the statutory reserves at the
discretion of the respective boards of directors.

The statutory surplus reserves shall only be used to
make up losses of the companies, to expand the
companies’ production operations, or to increase the
capital of the companies.

i —EFEZER G2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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20 ENEZER 20 TRADE PAYABLES
2016 2015
AR®T T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
JETE SR Trade payables
—BIE=F - to independent third parties 869,243 986,342
— @A (M43E34(0)) - to related parties (Note 34(b)) 268,911 242,673
1,138,154 1,229,015
HEBETAEBE ZERHBEF R0 The credit terms granted by suppliers to the Group are usually
KEASK - ENE HERERZER DT 30 to 45 days. The ageing analysis of trade payables is as
D follows:
2016 2015
AR®T T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
JERTE SRR Trade payables
—30K AR — Within 30 days 914,159 971,428
—31290K — 31-90 days 176,412 187,948
—912180K - 91-180 days 16,236 43,782
—181E365K — 181 to 365 days 21,323 16,848
——FMNUE — Over 1 year 10,024 9,009
1,138,154 1,229,015
BREZERAREBIUAARBEE- All the trade and bills payables are denominated in RMB.
FEZEMEREREEB 2 AFE Their carrying amounts approximate their fair values as at the
- balance sheet dates.

% — % BB R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. 20/]
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21 HttENREREFER 21 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
2016 2015
AR¥T T ARBEFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EEIEN R Advance receipts from customers 1,574,355 1,506,546
REREERY Accruals for promotion and
K FEET & A advertising expenses 1,035,496 901,767
B IEREF Salary and welfare payables 425,433 421,799
HEBLEPZ MRS Deposits from suppliers and customers 384,991 367,044
R E RN RE Payables for purchase of equipment 291,537 466,196
W B e 1 5k 18 (M9 5E33) Acquisition payables (Note 33) - 28,654
Hth RSB RERE R Other payables and accruals 763,400 583,250
4,475,212 4,275,256
A IEBNEREL Less: non-current portion (430,879) (439,149)
BIEAER 5 Current portion 4,044,333 3,836,107
HEmENFIBEREFERAUARE All the other payables and accruals are dominated in RMB.
FrE-HECREAEBEERNEER ZA Their carrying amounts approximate their fair values as at the
FEMAS - balance sheet dates.

202 % — ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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22 &8 22 BORROWINGS

2016 2015
AR®T AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’000

JERNEA Non-current
RITEE BER Bank borrowings, unsecured - 665,000
NS Notes payable 2,000,000 3,000,000
2,000,000 3,665,000
R T RIRRVEA A Less: current portion of notes payable (1,500,000) (1,000,000)
Fak Total 500,000 2,665,000

B &R Current

RHRTEE  EEE Short-term bank borrowings, unsecured 600,169 589,316
mn: EEIEREE S Add: current portion of notes payable 1,500,000 1,000,000
2,100,169 1,589,316
EE4% Total borrowings 2,600,169 4,254,316

AEENERNEBEBERAOT

- X2 eBWAARBI0ETLZIEE
ZEBRAMB=% WKN201656H
SHERM - ZEZRBER20165 2
HEE-

- AX&eBEAARBI0EITLZI.6E
ZEABH=F WHR2017F1A8
23HEM - ZERBREN2017F
1AE28EE-

- A&sEAARESEITLZ35E
EEAB=F  WiER2017F8A
288 f@m &

- AeeBAARBSEITLZI.9E
EHAHAT  WHER2019F8A°
28H W ©

The Group's notes payables comprised

3.5% notes with principle value of RMB1 billion and

three years term expiring 3 June 2016. The notes had

been fully repaid in 2016.

3.6% notes with principle value of RMB1 billion and
three years term expiring 23 January 2017. The notes

had been fully repaid in January 2017.

3.5% notes with principle value of RMBO0.5 billion and

three years term expiring 28 August 2017, and

3.9% notes with principle value of RMBO0.5 billion and

five years term expiring 28 August 2019.

% — > % BB PR A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. 208
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22 BB (& 22 BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
REBEE ZERBNT: The Group’s borrowings were repayable as follows:
2016 2015
AR®ET R AREBFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
—F LR Less than 1 year 2,100,169 1,589,316
—ZEMF Between 1 and 2 years - 2,165,000
MERF Between 2 and 5 years 500,000 500,000
BEERT Total borrowings 2,600,169 4,254,316
BEEEFEEAERLEERAZATE The carrying amounts of the borrowings approximate their fair
BaE - values as at the balance sheet dates.
AEBEBBEZREMBER T EEEE: The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings were

denominated in the following currencies:

2016 2015
AR T T AREF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR #& RMB 2,600,169 3,864,700
ET usb - 389,616
2,600,169 4,254,316

204 % — ¥ P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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22 58 (#&) 22 BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
REHEERB 2 INEER N EHT) The weighted average effective interest rates at the respective
wm balance sheet dates were set out as follows:
2016 2015
AR®T T ARBEFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
IRITHEE  EEE Bank borrowing, unsecured
—AR% - RMB 3.92% 4.05%
—%7T - UsD - 1.00%
e R IE Notes payable
—AR% - RMB 3.65% 3.60%
AEEBEE THARREICBITEES The Group have the following undrawn bank borrowing
g : facilities:
2016 2015
AR®T ARBETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
REBAE: At floating rate:
—F R E H — Expiring within one year 5,069,688 5,821,669
—F LA EEIH - Expiring beyond one year 1,744,440 1,547,000
6,814,128 7,368,669

% — > % BB PR A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. 205
Annual Report 2016 £ 3§



e MR EmARME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

23 BHEE S ZHEX

FEASHERA HERTSHERR
TRAX REMFASZZETNT :

23 EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of goods sold, selling and
marketing expenses, administrative expenses and other

206

expenses are analysed as follows:

2016 2015
AR%T ARBEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
FRRERMEL - B R Raw materials, packaging materials,
SEMEEBNE G consumables and
purchased commodity used 11,696,352 12,167,255
KamFEEE Changes in inventories of finished goods 85,723 (173,073)
INBEERY Manufacturing outsourcing expenses 7,793 1,860
RERESER Promotion and advertising expenses 2,251,242 2,417,906
BETRAMMAS Employee benefit expenses, including
BREEEHM (M5E26) directors’ emoluments (Note 26) 3,176,774 38,164,748
EHER Transportation expenses 865,816 957,360
T b fE AR SE (PIE6) Amortisation of land use rights (Note 6) 56,836 57,018
Y- BELEETE Depreciation of property,
(FFE7) plant and equipment (Note 7) 1,338,321 1,311,777
REMEE (M) Depreciation of investment properties
(Note 8) 18,262 18,665
mpEERE (M) Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 9) 19,351 15,648
BFLL2HE Operating lease in respect of buildings 157,962 165,596
WTERRE  MEB R City construction tax, property tax and
BB ER other tax surcharges 276,449 285,182
BEWE- BER Reversal of provision for impairment of
R E RS (M7 property, plant and equipment (Note 7) - (116)
FEUWE Z R 2 RE Provision/(reversal) for impairment of
Bt (BE) (KisE15) trade receivables (Note 15) 3,118 (1,634)
GFEMRETZEFEZ Provision/(reversal) of provision of
BE (BERD) inventories to net realisable value
(FFsE14) (Note 14) 3,821 (1,134)
ZERT & Auditors’ remunerations
— 2R — Audit services 7,872 7,283
HAh Others 764,694 1,035,222
HBET Total 20,730,386 21,429,563

Annual Report 2016 %
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24 HAF G- FE

24 OTHER GAINS - NET

2016 2015
ARBT T AR¥ETFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
HEWE BWEREEZ Losses on disposal of property,
E51E - FEE plant and equipment, net (25,117) (3,197)
BERAFEEREBERIES Derivative financial instruments
MEEBITA fair value through profit or loss
—REBEE — Unrealised losses - (2,138)
X6 0 RS (MT5E33) Gains on business combinations
(Note 33) - 4,111
HEBEQRIRE ZFIE Gains on disposal of the investment
(MF5E10(a)) in associate (Note 10(a)) 311,125 -
Hh Others 12,185 17,896
298,193 16,672
25 HAltA 25 OTHER INCOME
2016 2015
AR T ARBETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
HEME BER Rental income from lease of property,
BEARILEEYZE 2 plant and equipment and
Ha A investment properties 114,718 127,261
=L PN Subsidy income 110,270 72,672
AR WA (HI5E34(a)) Consultation service income (Note 34(a)) 68,587 66,160
SHE R Sales of raw materials 54,441 34,486
BBy (FTaE) Government grants (Note) 43,284 38,621
Hit Others 17,872 3,318
409,172 342,518
B 5 Note:

T 6 BY MR A 3 B A B 2% {8+ 75 BT W ER Y
B E &  (E R RSB E RS EM
TR R A R B RATE R RN @ 3 - ZH
R 478 B B A R 1 - TRR PN R AR EAR Y
AH-AHSEERGFARERZ [HMk
A RFER

The income from government grants represented immediate financial
support subsidy received from various local governments in the PRC
as rewards to the Group’s subsidiaries for their contributions to the
economy and development of the regions in which the subsidiaries
are located. Such government grants were unconditional and with no
future commitment to be fulfilled. They were recognised within ‘other
income’ in the consolidated income statements.

% — % FEZER AR 2 F Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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26 EIRAPEX BEEEEHMHM 26 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES,

INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

2016 2015
AR®ET R ARBETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
TERE® Wages and salaries 2,551,304 2,539,209
BN REMTEETR Pension and other social welfare

(EREMERETED) (defined contribution plan) 351,210 372,175
ETBEEREREF Staff quarters and housing benefit 102,736 102,617
EH 48 51 Other benefits 171,524 150,747
3,176,774 3,164,748

(@ EEZeFMAL (@) Five highest paid individuals

208

HZE2016F 128318 LFE 2
AEBAEESTMATRE=
H (2015 WMB)ESF H&FB
E R M 5E36(a)FT 25 2 2 i
REE-RFRNEZNTFEHBRE
(2015F =& )BmEFMALTZ

The five individuals whose emoluments are the
highest in the Group for the year ended 31 December
2016 included three (2015: two) directors, whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in
Note 36(a). The emoluments payable to the remaining
two (2015: three) individuals during the year are as

FES AT follows:
2016 2015

EARF 4 EFEER - Basic salaries, housing allowances,

bR R EWH = other allowances and benefits

(ARMFT) in kind (RMB’000) 5,822 4,180
FE In the band of:
1,000,001t HKD1,000,001 to HKD2,000,000

2,000,000/ 7t (& (equivalent to RMB860,001 to

BAR 860,001 7.2 RMB1,720,000)

A FR#1,720,0007T ) 4 3

% — %P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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BEWA—FE 27 FINANCE INCOME - NET

2016 2015
AR®T T ARBEFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BEWA—RE MIRTTEE Z Finance income — interest income
A 2 U A on cash and banks 107,898 135,955
B & K AR Finance cost
—EEZFEMZ — Interest expenses on borrowings (141,770) (155,910)
—EEAE (BER)FE — Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) 12,461 (63,910)
—REEREEZ - Less: amounts capitalized
BEAR{b &5 on qualifying assets 33,725 110,183
(95,584) (109,637)
BE WA —F5E Finance income — net 12,314 26,318
EBHRAX 28 INCOME TAX EXPENSE
2016 2015
AR®T T AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BVHAFR 1S 8 Current income tax
—~BEFERHMZAEFIE  ~ Current Income tax on profit
for the year 467,781 319,357
EIERSH (H3E12) Deferred income tax (Note 12) (27,138) 4,899
PEIMEARRE ZTEMB  Withholding tax on dividends
a PRC subsidiary 20,000 12,000
460,643 336,256
% — > % BB PR 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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28 FAEHmAx (&)

(a)

(b)

210

MBI A R EPTER ([T
BBl

RAREE - £ B R L H B E
NEIBIR25% (20154 1 25% ) HY
REREMDERSH-

1B 4% B BCEB - B B AR R AN g R 4
£ M 1) B Bi[2011]585% [BF 7
FABEBASAFAEHBEAN
WHEKE R @A NAIHE
W BRFEBE M ET
EEREEXBEHARBEESR
B15%BEME - AEEBLH F
B BT /B8~ B A 7 5B 5 B I K AT
BMRAFEEEZA Lilt15%E
BRI E

HAB 1G5

ARRREBEASEHE R ANEERH
EHRESEMALARHRRBERA
A EHit KRR ERLEANFS
BEMEH-

ERERBBTM AN EB
NARIAREWREITRES R A
17%%16.5% (2015F 1 17% &
16.5% ) BN FT 15 -

#— e EFEZER G2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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28 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

PRC corporate income tax (“CIT”)

Subsidiaries established in the PRC are subject to CIT
at rate of 25% (2015: 25%) during the year.

According to the Caishui (2011) No. 58 “The notice on
the tax policies of further implementation of the western
region development strategy issued by the Ministry of
Finance, the State Administration of Taxation and the
General Administration of Customs” ( Bf %4 [2011]585%% 7
PR A B e 50 A 5 3 B A B S SR R B R A ) |
companies set up in the western region and falling into
certain encouraged industry catalogue promulgated by
the PRC government will be entitled to a preferential
tax rate of 15%. Some of the Group’s subsidiaries in
the PRC set up in the western development region are
entitled to the above mentioned preferential tax rate of
15% during the year.

Other income tax

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law of Cayman Islands and, accordingly, is
exempted from payment of Cayman Islands income tax.

Subsidiaries incorporated in Taiwan and Hong Kong are
subject to income tax at the prevailing rates of 17% and
16.5% (2015: 17% and 16.5%), respectively.
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28 FiE¥imx (&)

HAAREHR (&)

RNEEKRATE AR F EiEZ G
HRARAHEERAN ZEAERR
25% (20154 : 25% ) 51 E 2 B im

HMEEEWT:

28 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

(b) Other income tax (Continued)

The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise
using the statutory tax rate in the PRC of 25% (2015:

25%) applicable to profits of the consolidated entities as

follows:

2016 2015
AR¥T ARMBF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
bR TSR AT & A Profit before income tax 1,067,972 1,170,761
T B TE B Tax calculated at the statutory tax rate
SFHE IR in the PRC 266,993 292,690
THEB2HMBLE:  Tax effects of:
EBEGETHEAF Preferential tax rates on the profits
a2 BB & of certain subsidiaries (8,814) (20,500)
FRERTARER Utilisation of previously unrecognized
MIEEE tax losses (1,415) (2,114)
RIERIEEMEH Tax losses and temporary differences
BEHMIEEER for which no deferred income tax
TR EE asset was recognised 35,664 32,835
BARBUA Income not subject to tax (23,286) (28,236)
AAMBEHAZ Expenses not deductible
for tax purpose 32,751 49,581
HEREZ Income tax charge from disposal
T8’ X of an associate 138,750 -
—E R E B AT Withholding tax on dividends from
MR 2 TR a PRC subsidiary 20,000 12,000
PSR f 2 Income tax expense 460,643 336,256

% — % FEZER AR 2 F Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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28 FBBiMZ (&) 28 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)
(b) HAPESR (&) (b) Other income tax (Continued)
ERHEM2ERETD 2 EH The income tax charge relating to components of other
FAZaT comprehensive income is as follows:
2016 2015
BEA  BUEXM BRBi% BHA  BEXA Bz
Before tax  Tax charge After tax Before tax ~ Tax charge After tax

ARBTR ARBTRT AR®TR ARETIT ARBTT ARETI
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

Eth2Eba Other comprehensive income:
—AHHELRBE - Net fair value losses from available-
ATEFEE for-sale financial assets (1,496) - (1,496) (16,717) 5,000 (11,717)
EFTRTG %L (Hi3E12) Deferred income tax (Note 12) - 5,000
29 BREAER 29 EARNINGS PER SHARE
EHIK Basic
WRERBANDIZFERRAERT Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
ABAEIMLGFBRBEEITEBRINEF attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted
BHETE - average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.
2016 2015
NRAERER A AFEESF Profit attributable to equity holders
(AR®FT) of the Company (RMB’000) 607,329 834,505
BT R IR T8 Weighted average number of ordinary
(FA&) shares in issue (thousands) 4,319,334 4,319,334
FBRERZF Basic earnings per share
(BRARKE) (RMB per share) 14.06 cents®®  19.32 cents®
HRARRTEEBETEESLBR WE Diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings per
R sATETRERAF - share as there are no potential dilutive ordinary shares of the
Company.

2/] 2 % — %P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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g =1 30 DIVIDENDS
2016 2015
AR¥ETR AREBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EBIRTRERE Proposed final dividend of
BREBRARK2.8125 RMB2.812 cents
(20154 : AR™3.864%) (2015: RMB3.864 cents)
per ordinary share 121,466 166,901

20164 K 20154 + AR AIB#E E2015
FR2014F12A31HILFEERKESD
B A AR 168,125,0007T (F A R
3.892% ) &k A R #57,123,0007T (3 &
AR#E1.3225) o

R2017F5 1908 RIT 2 BERF RE
F¥ERREEE20165F12A831H IEF
EZzBREBRARK28120 (AHERE
A AR #121,466,0007T) ° It 5 B 7% 3k
KARERBUILEREMNRS -

The dividends paid by the Company in 2016 and 2015 for
the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 amounted
to RMB168,125,000 (RMB3.892 cents per share) and
RMB57,123,000 (RMB1.322 cents per share), respectively.

A dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2016
of RMB2.812 cents per share, amounting to a total dividend
of RMB121,466,000, is to be proposed at the annual
general meeting to be held on 19 May 2017. These financial
statements do not reflect this dividend payable.

% — % BB R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. 2/] 8
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31 EEELE 2B S 31 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
2016 2015
AR¥T ARBEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
B P15 56 A g 71 Profit before income tax 1,067,972 1,170,761
PRI FIEEDL Z AR Adjustments for:
—AEmEARZ - Share of profit of investments
JEAE & 5 F accounted for using equity
(MF5E10) method (Note 10) (93,147) (112,945)
— b FAAAEEE S (MI7E6) - Amortisation of land use rights
(Note 6) 56,836 57,018
—ME - -BEREXBINE - Depreciation of property, plant and
(HM33E7) equipment (Note 7) 1,338,321 1,311,777
—REMENE (M:E8) — Depreciation of investment
properties (Note 8) 18,262 18,665
—mIEE#HE (M) — Amortisation of intangible assets
(Note 9) 19,351 15,648
—HEWME HE R — Losses on disposal of property, plant
R EE (P 5E24) and equipment (Note 24) 25,117 3,197
—WE BB MR ERE — Reversal of provision for impairment
BERLE (WH:ET7) of property, plant and equipment
(Note 7) - (116)
—FEMREAIRFEEY  — Provision/(reversal) of inventories to
B (BmE) net realisable value (Note 14)
(MI5E14) 3,821 (1,134)
—EINE ZERFURE R, - Provision/(reversal) for impairment of
(#EE) (K5E15) trade receivables (Note 15) 3,118 (1,634)
—F B = (K5E27) — Interest expenses (Note 27) 108,045 95,579
—[EN (F18) &8 — Foreign exchange (gains)/losses
(MF3E27) (Note 27) (12,461) 14,058
—TEEMTEAEAFE — Fair value (gains)/losses on
(FM13) &8 derivative financial instruments (188) 1,082
—HERBE QATIREWZ - Gains on disposal of investment in
(HI5E24) associate (Note 24) (311,125) -
—EBA G — Gain from business combination - 4,111)
2,223,922 2,568,745
BiEE B : Changes in working capital:
—BEBRITFR — Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank
w (i) deposits 4,220 (4,220)
—FEUE SRR SR N - Increase in trade receivables (16,854) (37,782)
—FERRE ek — Increase in prepayments, deposits
JE UK 3R T8 38 0 and other receivables 90,626 408,976
—H i IEBNEAfE L ZRTER 2> — Decrease in other non-current
receivables 831 40,172
—FERL (M) - Decrease/(increase) in inventories 149,369 (231,311)
—ENESER — (Decrease)/(increase) in trade
Crd) 7 (3&n) payables (90,861) 169,460
—HiENMZIENESTER - Increase in other payables and
=l accruals 206,599 867,341
— E b JEBD AR FE (< R IE — (Decrease)/increase in other non-
(R ),/ current payables (8,270) 201,164
BEEACES Cash generated from operations 2,559,582 3,982,545

2/] 4 % — %P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEELSES (H)

RESRERT LEVE BELR

31 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
(CONTINUED)

In the statements of cash flows, proceeds from disposal of

W2 RERRE: property, plant and equipment comprise:
2016 2015
AR¥T T ARBEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BRmEFE (FEE7) Net book amount (Note 7) 32,273 8,397
HEME  HER&EN Losses on disposal of property,

&8 (FiE24) plant and equipment (Note 24) (25,117) (3,197)
Hib W ERFKI8 Other receivables from buyer = 242,764
HEME BEEEEZ Proceeds from disposal of property,

FriS 58 plant and equipment 7,156 247,964

i

(@) EAREIE

AEEABEYE BELRENE

32 COMMITMENTS
(a)

Capital commitments

The Group’s capital commitments in respect of

RAEPEMT property, plant and equipment are as follows:
2016 2015
ARETR ARBETFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BET AR EE Contracted but not provided for 360,040 446,947
% — % BB R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. 2/] 5
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32 A (&)

(b)

210

REHEERAE
EEEEBEMBA -

AEERBETAIBEENAE =
HABT ETARENEEEE
BE T AEEZARAKRNREES
BES:E INE

32 COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

Operating lease commitments

The Group is the lessee:

The Group leases buildings under non-cancellable lease
agreements. The Group’s future aggregate minimum

lease payments under these non-cancellable operating

leases are as follows:

2016 2015
ARET R ARBFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
THB—F Not later than 1 year 35,260 23,932
BB —FERNEBAF Later than 1 year and not later than
5 years 46,255 44,996
iR T F Later than 5 years 118,889 100,635
200,404 169,563
AEFERBLEEAN - The Group is the lessor:

AEBRETAHENEEHE
HETHEREYE BE &K
o %EFHEOBETRMFRNER
N REEREEHERZET
REBRKE RS FERE B
mr

The Group leases out investment properties, plant

and equipment under non-cancellable operating lease

agreements. The leases have various terms and renewal

rights. The future aggregate minimum rental receipts

under these non-cancellable operating leases are as

follows:

2016 2015

AR¥ET T ARBFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

TBiE—F Not later than 1 year 84,570 79,296
BE—FETBBEAF Later than 1 year and not later than

5 years 156,255 98,799

Bl F Later than 5 years 30,966 47,031

271,791 225,126

% — %P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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33 ¥(KE6t

(a)

W s

M2015FE12A318  REE AR
&R EARKSS8,410,400L B H
AEABHWBESSTSRE T
BRAR ([BaHEF]) 250%08K
o ERBERIAERRERFBZ
S0%RE - EaGMKARNEH
ZEEMBAR c ERIKEEIE -
A5 E FEER AT IE N AR BREL Ko 5
EHTSZMEE  BTEHAER
RIS LB R B A

TREARESHENDNHKE
AR EEENMAZABR
WERMZAFE

33 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

(a)

g—i

Acquisition

On 31 December 2015, the Group acquired 50%
equity interests in  Tongli Beverage Industries Co.,
Ltd. (“Yantai Tongli”) from the joint venture partner for a
cash consideration of RMB58,410,400. Together with
the original 50% equity interests held by the Group
prior to the acquisition, Yantai Tongli become a 100%
wholly owned subsidiary of the Group. The Group is
expected to increase its presence in the beverage and
instant noodles markets, and to reduce costs through

economies of scale, through the acquisition.

The following table summarises the consideration paid
for Yantai Tongli, the fair value of assets acquired and
liabilities assumed at the acquisition date.

%P E#% R F R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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33 ¥BE6t (&)

(a)

218

33 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED)

Wi =R (@) Acquisition
ARMETF T
RMB’000
RE: Consideration:
201512 H31H At 31 December 2015
- - Cash 58,410
BRE Total consideration 58,410
Frus g ml st B & B K Recognised amounts of identifiable assets
FiEEABCBRERE: acquired and liabilities assumed:
RehkBEeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 45,876
T Mo AR (KEE6) Land use right (Note 6) 21,470
VI BB KR (R Property, plant and equipment (Note 7) 53,310
FE Inventories 5,966
FEUE 5 BR 3k & EoAth JE W 5K Trade and other receivables 2,628
FE & 5 BR 3 B EL M JE < 3R IE Trade and other payables (8,907)
RERIEBE (KiEE12) Deferred tax liabilities (Note 12) (2,350)
AR EEFEERS Total identifiable net assets 117,993
PR RIS Rl & ZE 2 AT A Fair value of identifiable net assets acquired
A R RE 2 55 over consideration payable @,111)
AKEBEBRENEEHRET Original shares held by the Group under
a2 BH (KHEE10(b)) investment in joint ventures (Note 10(b)) (55,472)
58,410

#— %P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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33 EHKSH (&)
(b) WIEBEFGRSFH

33

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED)

(b) Net cash proceeds from the acquisition

2016 2015

ARBTRT ARETT

RMB’000 RMB’000

ERNRENRE Cash consideration paid (28,654) (29,756)

FTWBEEE 2B S K Cash and cash equivalents

B4 EEY in the subsidiary acquired _ 45.876
KEWEEENIES Net cash (outflow) inflow from

GRE)RATE the acquisition (28,654) 16,120

B &t

U B8 KB A A AN A R #550,0007T B A &
ZE2015F12A3THILEENGEED
KHPITHAIE TR

BRESGANP2015F1A1B D EE
AR ZEBmRBEREZ K= A
R #22,195,895,0007T & & F| A R ¥
838,424,0007T °

34 EBHARS

KEEZHEERAR A —ERS
ERAG ([Hi—1%])  DRaEE
EXGMAER AR ETZ AR AR
EEREGE—DEZHBRARIRASE
ZEEPERBENTIEAE@E T -

34

Note :

Acquisition-related costs of RMB 50,000 have been charged
to administrative expenses in the consolidated income
statement for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Had Yantai Tongli been consolidated from 1 January 2015,
the consolidated income statement would show pro-
forma revenue of RMB 22,195,895,000 and profit of RMB
838,424,000.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The ultimate holding company of the Group is £t — & % & 17
BB F (Uni-President Enterprises Corporation®) (“UPE”), a
company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation.
The directors of the Company are of the view that the
subsidiaries of UPE, the joint ventures and associates of the
Group are regarded as related parties.

% — % FEZER AR 2 F Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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34 BEARS (&) 34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)
(a) EEREEE SETHXRS: (@) Transactions with related parties:
ERE TR ZIT The following transactions are carried out with related
parties:
2016 2015
P e ARET ARET T
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
R R t5 & - Sales of raw materials ()
and finished goods:
X IHEBRR Subsidiaries of UPE 200,124 197,754
AEBZEEDLER Joint ventures and associates of
N the Group 174,600 112,841
374,724 310,595
BRETRLR B p R - Purchase of raw materials and ()
finished goods:
m—1E UPE 11,723 -
H—EZHBRAA Subsidiaries of UPE 3,181,518 3,601,255
AEBZEEDLER Joint ventures and associates of
B2 X ) the Group 741,821 758,336

3,935,062 4,359,691

YIRS 5% Logistics service expense: ()
H—EIZHERR Subsidiaries of UPE 15,545 13,461
B ARFEWA - Consuitation service income: ()
H—rEIZHBRAR Subsidiaries of UPE 65,259 62,187
AEBEZEEDLER Joint ventures and associates of
/NS the Group 3,328 3,973
68,587 66,160
HEHA Rental income: (ii)
H—rEIHEBRT Subsidiaries of UPE 67,964 80,437
AEBEZEELER Joint ventures and associates of
/N the Group 730 1,730
68,694 82,167

220 #— %P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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34 BHMAEXS (H&)

(@)

28 B

*

B3

(if)

X5 : (&)

RXEWMIAARARAERES
NP XL EEZSH -

s A B R S R R BREE
BSZWR RS R IR R
THAR B AR B 1 8 2 AR FRETT -

HEeEEEMRZEA  TRE
F#973 FTRT 3L 1hp sk 2 {6k SRCER @

34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(a) Transactions with related parties: (Continued)

*

The English name represents the best effort by the
management of the Company in translating the Chinese
name.

Notes:

(i) The above sales of finished goods and raw materials,
purchases, receipt of logistics service and provision of
consultation service are carried out in accordance with
the terms of the underlying agreements.

(ii) Rental income represents income from lease of
properties and is charged in accordance with the terms
of agreements made between the parties.

% — > ¥ BB R A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. 22»]
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34 BHLRZ (&

(b)

222

EERARSE T AR ER

MR2016F12A31H  KREBEHEHE
RAEt AT E KA

34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)

(b) Balances with related parties:

related parties as at 31 December 2016:

The Group has the following significant balances with its

2016 2015
ARET T AREEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
JiE i A Bt 75 B R - Balances due from related parties:
TEWE Z B3 Trade receivables (Note 15):
(M5E15) -
H—EIHEBRR Subsidiaries of UPE 47,088 41,113
AEBZEEDLE Joint ventures and associates of
PN the Group = 2,370
47,088 43,483
TE T 08 2 A fif Prepayments and other receivables
#E (KisE16) (Note 16):
H—EZHBRAG Subsidiaries of UPE 31,688 40,398
AEBEBZEEDLE Joint ventures and associates of
NG the Group 3,055 7,030
34,743 47,428
81,831 90,911
e A MG 77 R Balances due to related parties:
FE1TE Z R Trade payables (Note 20):
(HF3E20) :
H—EIHERT Subsidiaries of UPE 226,578 197,431
AEBZEEDLE Joint ventures and associates of
&N the Group 42,333 45,242
268,911 242,673

e U
e H

N e RE B 77 M BR e BR EI (B
IHRNEERZATFERS-

sheet dates.

% — %P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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(a)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)

FEEBEAEHM: (c) Key management compensation:
2016 2015
ARET AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
Fe EAREMEF]  Salaries, bonus and other welfares 14,085 14,629
35 AAFEERBERNMHESEE 35 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
AATEEBER (a) Balance sheet of the Company
2016 2015
ARET T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BE ASSETS
ERBEE Non-current assets
R—FKWB AT ZKE Investment in a subsidiary 7,693,167 7,582,366
R—KEEE AR 22 Interest in an associated company 1,436 1,436
AL EsREE Available-for-sale financial assets 13,863 15,358
Y WE KR Property, plant and equipment 11 22
H b IER B U GRIB Other non-current receivables 494 1,327
7,708,971 7,600,509
RBEE Current assets
B FIE X Prepayments and other receivables
H h JE UK IR 1,329 4,538
JE Y Bt B8 & RIRIB Amounts due from subsidiaries 676,327 634,903
B NG Loans to subsidiaries 104,864 793,904
RehkBeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 861,683 1,475,018
1,644,203 2,908,363
EE#E Total assets 9,353,174 10,508,872

% — % BB PR A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. 228
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35 XAEEEEEREGHESST 35 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE
(48) MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

(a AAFEEEER (&) (a) Balance sheet of the Company (Continued)
2016 2015
ARET T AREEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
i EQUITY
&% 7 Share capital 39,764 39,764
%15 5 18 Bk Share premium account 4,829,899 4,829,899
b fE Other reserves 1,364,094 1,633,715
RE AT Retained earnings 467,988 (19,348)
4R Total equity 6,701,745 6,384,030
afE LIABILITIES
ERBERE Non-current liabilities
gEE Borrowings 500,000 2,665,000
REBERE Current liabilities
H M E A RIE & Other payables and accruals
EErE R 51,429 68,088
EE Borrowings 2,100,000 1,389,616
TAESRIA Derivative financial instruments - 2,138
2,151,429 1,459,842
weE Total liabilities 2,651,429 4,124,842
EakaEREE Total equity and liabilities 9,353,174 10,508,872

KABEEBBEBREN2017F3H24
AEESEeit s YHUTESEARE

%o

EZEE
LO Chih-Hsien
HITEE

Executive Director

signed on its behalf.
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35 XATRIEEEBREMHE®E 35 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE

(&) MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)
(b) AAE)FHEE (b) Reserve movements of the Company
B4R AV ERE RERF @t
Contribution Fair value Retained
surplus reserves earnings Total
AREFTT ARBTL ARBEFL AREFL
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R2015%1 810 Balance at 1 January 2015
A3 1,606,326 (18,771) 78,287 1,665,842
FEBR Loss for the year - - (97,635) (97,635)
AEHESBEEY  Fair value gains on avalable-for-sale
RTENG financial assets - 3,283 - 3,283
BXf2014F 2% E  Dividends relating to 2014, paid (57,129) - - (57,123)
20155128318  Balance at 31 December 2015
i 1,549,203 (15,488) (19,348) 1,514,367
FEER Gains for the year - - 487,336 487,336
AEHESREEY  Fair value losses on available-for-sale
DNEEEE financial assets - (1,496) - (1,496)
B X f12015F 2% &  Dividends relating to 2015, paid (168,125) - - (168,125)
#20165128318  Balance at 31 December 2016
A3 1,381,078 (16,984) 467,988 1,832,082
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36 EEEMNRER 36 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS
() EEREETHRAEZHME (a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

BEERERITTBRABZHMEH The remuneration of every director and the chief

FIEAN - executive is set out below:

B Z2016F12A31ALLFE: For the year ended 31 December 2016:

EEpng e Hepw4 Eyiid:4:1 EE®H @
Salary and Travelling Housing

Name of Director Fees bonuses allowance allowance Total

ARBTR AR®ETR AREBTR ARMTR ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

20164 2016
WIES Executive directors
BELSEAE Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien (% %) 63 3,533 - - 3,596
ERERE Mr. Hou Jung-Lung (&4 )
(B 2 i) ) (Note (i) 24 2,046 - 120 2,190
REIE 4 Mr. CHEN Kuo-Hui (R EIfE) 42 1,227 - 144 1,3
FHTES Non-executive directors
BEHEE Mr. Su Tsung-Ming ( #f&284) 42 - - - 42
ERERE Mr. Hou Jung-Lung (&4 )
(Pt £k i) ) (Note (ii) 2 - - - 2
BUNTES Independent non-executive
directors
REELE Mr. Chen Sun-Te (FRZ%) 258 - - - 258
BLEgE Mr. Fan Ren-Da ((E/Z32) 258 - - - 258
BRERE Mr. Lo Peter (B 2) 258 - - - 258
BEREE Mr. Chen Johnny (FR5%)
(F3E) (Note (i) 250 - - - 250

1,219 6,806 - 264 8,289

226 % — %P B R B R 2 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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36 EETEMRER (&) 36 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
(a EBEREETHAEZME (a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(&) (Continued)
HZE2015F 128318 ILFE For the year ended 31 December 2015:
EENL we  HeRkia ElREH FERE st
Salary and Travelling Housing

Name of Director Fees bonuses allowance allowance Total

ARBTT  AREBTT ARBTR AREBTT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

20155 2015
HiTE=S Executive directors
BRERE Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien ( % %) 52 3,812 - - 3,864
REEEE Mr. Hou Jung-Lung (&) 45 3,929 - 240 4214
BREES:E Mr. CHEN Kuo-Hui (B EIE) 39 845 - 144 1,028
FHTES Non-executive directors
HEEEE Mr. Lin Lung-Yi (#6i%)

(P3E() (Note (i) 32 - - - 32

BRgE Mr. Su Tsung-Ming (& =8) 39 - - - 39
BUNTES Independent non-executive directors

BEELE Mr. Chen Sun-Te (RE{E) 234 - - - 234

BLERE Mr. Fan Ren-Da (GE{Z&) 234 - - - 234

BRREE Mr. Yang Ing-Wuu (£ 3)

(P3E() (Note (i) 72 - - - 72
REERE Mr. Lo Peter (B2 £) 234 - - - 234
BERLE Mr. Chen Johnny ([R5 %)

(PG (Note (i) 20 - - - 20

1,001 8,586 - 384 9,971
B 5 Note:
()  M2015%F5F15R BT ()  Retired on 15 May 2015.
(i)  F2015F12F1HEZE- (i)  Appointed on 1 December 2015.
(i) M2016F7A1EMMITESE (i)  Transferred from the executive director to the non-
EIERITES - executive director on 1 July 2016.

% — % BB PR A 7 Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. 227
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36 EEEMNRESR (

4=

n

1=

)

@ EFRESTHRAEZME

(%)

REL Z£20164F %2015 12 A 31
BIEFE BERAAREEHES
AME AR ME \EERES
AT B < VE 75 00 B AN & B 3R
B RE S ERBERmE-

ARARWERAEEZ XHFT L
ARREENETHBEERNER
(TR ABEERXHEE)  BRAF
J 8 SR By S AN 4R E RE AR B A
REMZEARR S RERAH -

37 fEARAF

T B H R20165E12 A31 8 2 = B

36 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

(@)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, no
directors of the Company waived any emoluments and
no emoluments were paid by the Company to any of
the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

37 SUBSIDIARIES

The following sets out the details of the principal subsidiaries

BARRGE- of the Company as at 31 December 2016.
AMRIER
ARER R AH BRIRBRERE FisRE TEER K
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2016 2015
EERER Directly owned
G—mMERERAA HEHS 883,380,000 7T 100% 100% BEER/HEHS
20066 H29A
Uni-President Asia Holdings Ltd. Cayman Islands, USD 883,380,000 Investment holding/
29 June 2006 Cayman Islands
BEREE Indirectly owned
G—0F (PE)REFRAA HRE 1,063,970,0003 7T 100% 100%  BEER/HE
199837108
(Uni-President Enterprises (China) Shanghai, PRC. USD1,063,970,000 Investment holding/PRC
Investments Ltd.*) 10 March 1998
MEG—CERMAR HESEARE 37,500,000% ¢ 100% 100%  4AEREEHH RBM
199241 13H RHEE/ HE
(Uni-President Enterprises (Xinjiang) ~ Urumgj, PRC. USD37,500,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Food Co., Ltd.") 13 January 1992 beverages, foods and

228
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37 BT (&) 37 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

EMALEAR/
NRARB BB KB ERTRBERE Fris e TEEYBEBY
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2016 2015
IRG—RBERATF REER 23,400,000 7T 100% 100% EERBEFER/PE
199244 2R
(Beijing President Enterprises Beijing, PRC. USD23,400,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Food Co., Ltd. %) 2 April 1992 instant noodles/PRC
KR CERDBRATF Bl Rl A 65,000,000 1. 100% 100%  HEREEHH
199364 5148 LA/ HE
(Chengdu President Enterprises Chengdu, PRC. USDE65,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Food Co., Ltd.) 14 April 1993 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
BlE—CERBEBRAR REIE L 96,000,000 7 100% 100%  FERHEHRH
199357148 RHEE,/ HE
(Kunshan President Enterprises Kunshan, PRC. USD96,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Food Co., Ltd.") 14 May 1993 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
REF—CERMEBAR RERE 59,600,0003 1. 100% 100%  HEREEHH
199367 A7R LA/ HE
(Wuhan President Enterprises Wuhan, PRC. USD59,600,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Food Co., Ltd. ) 7 July 1993 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
BHS—EEXERAF M 75,000,000% 70 100% 100%  FERHEHRH
1994412458 RHEE,/ HE
(Guangzhou President Guangzhou, PRC. USD75,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Corp.”) 5 December 1994 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
LS - CEERAF R 39,900,000 1. 100% 100%  HERHEEHH
1995464150 LA/ HE
(Shenyang President Shenyang, PRC. USD39,900,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.”) 15 June 1995 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
ARES-EEERAF REERE 60,000,000 7T 100% 100%  FERHEHRH
199842 A 236 RHER,/ HE
(Hefei President Enterprises Hefei, PRC. USD60,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.%) 23 February 1998 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
BRER-—CEERAR hERRE 25,000,0003 T 100% 100%  AEREEHE
199842 426 H R/ HE
(Harbin President Enterprises Harbin, PRC. USD25,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.") 26 February 1998 beverages and instant

% — % FEZER AR 2 F Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
Annual Report 2016 £ #§

noodles/PRC

229



e MR EmAR M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

37 WMELT (&) 37 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

230

AMRIER
ARAER HHRAH ERTRMRRE Frisi g TEEY/BEBE
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2016 2015
IRGE—HRRERAE REE R 29,500,000% 7T 100% 100% EERBERR/FEH
200142 A208
(Beijing President Enterprises Beijing, PRC. USD29,500,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Drinks Co., Ltd.") 20 February 2001 beverages/PRC
BER—EERAR mEEE 44,000,000% T 100% 100%  HEREEHRH
2001458188 RAEE/HE
(Nanchang President Nanchang, PRC. USD44,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.") 18 May 2001 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
BMGE—LRERRA hERM 20,000,000% T 100% 100%  HEREERH
2001474198 RHEE/ HE
(Fuzhou President Enterprises Fuzhou, PRC. USD20,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.") 19 July 2001 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
EMGE—rEERAA HR 37,000,000% T 100% 100%  HEREEHRH
200246 A258 yRd Ve
(Zhengzhou President Zhengzhou, PRC. USD37,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.") 25 June 2002 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
G— (LB EHEERAR HE g 8,600,000% 7T 100% 100% SR FREERRRES/
20056104178 hE
(President (Shanghai) Shanghai, PRC. USD8,600,000 Trading of beverages,
Trading Co., Ltd.”) 17 October 2005 instant noodles and food
products/PRC
GLEERMERDA ag 1,000,000 & ¥ 100% 100%  ANBRER/ 44
20064127280
(Tong Ren Corp. Limited.”) Taiwan NTD1,000,000 Human resource
28 December 2006 management/Taiwan
ERG—C¥RmARAA B R 30,000,000% T 100% 100%  HERHEERH
2007411 A8H RAEE/+E
(Kunming President Enterprises Kunming, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Food Co., Ltd.") 8 November 2007 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
SEBRERAA B 2,161,920%7C 100% 100%  RERR/EE
200856 H5H
(Champ Green Capital Co., Limited.)  Hong Kong USD2,161,920 Investment holding/
5 June 2008 Hong Kong
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EMALEAR
NRAB B KB BRITRBERE FrisiE TEEYBEBY
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2016 2015
EBEH-—BRKDA FEES 4,150,000 T 100% 100% EERBERR/PE
200942 A208
(Bama President Mineral Water Bama, PRC. USD4,150,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.") 20 February 2009 beverages/PRC
GrERERRERAF B 4,754,995,6007% 7T 100% 100% REZERRES
200944 A30H
(Uni-President Hong Kong Hong Kong HKD4,754,995,600 Investment holding and
Holdings Co., Ltd.) 30 April 2009 trading
SECKERFEA(LE) HE g 150,000% 7 100% 100%  EREH
BRAA 2009658120
(Champ Green (Shanghali) Shanghai, PRC. USD150,000 Management Consulting
Consulting Co., Ltd.") 12 May 2009
BEG—CERREBRAR hEEE - - 100%  EEREEHH/HE
201043 A9H
(Zixi President Enterprises Zixi, PRC. - Manufacturing and sale of
Drinks Co., Ltd.") (Note) 9 March 2010 beverages/PRC
RO FE—CEERRR REED 30,000,000 7T 100% 100% HEREEHH
201097 1R RHER,/ HE
(Changsha President Changsha, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.”) 1 September 2010 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
KBR-DHREEEREERAR AR AE#1,000,0007 100% 100%  BHREREG/FEH
201048 /24H
(Chengdu Unifies The Skillful Chengdu, PRC. RMB1,000,000 Catering services/PRC
Noodle Restaurant Dining 24 August 2010
Culture Limited Company®)
BIG—rERRATF BT 25,000,000 7T 100% 100% HERHERH
2010410 328R RHER,/ HE
(Zhanjiang President Zhanjiang, PRC. USD25,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.”) 28 October 2010 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
BEF—CEERRA hEEE 30,000,000% 7 100% 100%  FEREEHRH
20104118168 LA/ HE
(Nanning President Nanning, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*) 16 November 2010 beverages and instant

MizE: R & E2016F6A7H BTHRE
RERPRT BRERAERIEEEKSE
1B - A201658 A 221  FTA B ERIZfF

RE T

noodles/PRC

Note: As the decision of the Zixi shareholder's meeting on 7 June

2016, Zixi decided to end its business operations. As of 22

August 2016, all the liquidation processes were finished.
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AMRIER
ARAER B R A ERITRMERE Pl TEEY/BEBE
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2016 2015
REG—EERAA FERE 20,000,000% 7T 100% 100% EERBERR/FE
2010412428
(Changchun President Changchun, PRC. USD20,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.”) 02 December 2010 beverages/PRC
MrEgf—tEERRA [ ] 52 20,000,0003 7. 100% 100%  FIRRAERHE
20104127158
(Akesu President Enterprises Akesu, PRC. USD20,000,000 Wholesale of forage and
Co., Ltd.") 15 December 2010 fertilizer/PRC
EMG—LEERRA mE =M 30,000,000% T 100% 100%  HERHEERH
2011415288 RAEE/HE
(Taizhou President Taizhou, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*) 28 January 2011 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
ERR—EERAR RESE 33,600,000% 7T 100% 100% HEERMRAFERME
2011527168 RZE/HE
(Chongqing President Chongaing, PRC. USD33,600,000 Wholesale and retall of pre-
Enterprises Co., Ltd.”) 16 February 2011 packaged food and dairy
products/PRC
ARG CEBRAR REAR 20,000,000 7. 100% 100%  HEREERH
2011428248 RAEE/HE
(Baiyin President Baiyin, PRC. USD20,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd .¥) 24 February 2011 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
PER—BBRREXER RE LG AR #60,000,0007T 100% 100% MELY/+HE
2003587 1H
(Uni-President Shanghai Pearly Shanghai, PRC. RMB60,000,000 Leasing business/PRC
Century Co., Ltd. %) 1 August 2003
TR CREERABRAT HE L AR #20,000,0007C 100% 100%  RERRF
200357 18H
(Uni-President Shanghai Shanghai, PRC. RMB20,000,000 Investment holding/PRC
Management Consulting 18 July 2003
Co., Ltd.%)
BEK—CEERAF REEE 14,000,000% 7 100% 100%  EEREEHRE/HE
201143H8H
(Hainan President Chengmai, PRC. USD14,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of

Enterprises Co., Ltd.*)

8 March 2011
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37 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

EMALEAR/
NRARB HH%RAH ERTRBERE Fris e TEEYBEBY
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2016 2015
ARAF—CEBERDA FEARIE 35,000,000 7T 100% 100% HERHERH
2010411 A15R YRid Ve
(Shijiazhuang President Shijiazhuang, PRC. USD35,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.”) 15 November 2010 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
EEF—CEERRA HEER 30,000,000% 7 100% 100%  FEREEHRH
2011445188 LA/ PE
(Jinan President Enterprises Jinan, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.%) 18 April 2011 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
BB —GEARAR FEER 30,000,000 7T 100% 100% HERHEHH
20117 F6R YRid VAL
(Guiyang President Enterprises Guiyang, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.") 6 July 2011 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
RS- CEBRRKBRAR REER 4,800,000% 7 100% 100%  EEBERK/HRE
201147A6H
(Wuxue President Enterprises Wuxue , PRC. USD4,800,000 Manufacturing mineral
Mineral Water Co.Ltd.") 6 July 2011 water/PRC
HEGERRESBR AT hE g 950,000% 7 100% 100%  EEERMRIAXEM
2011F6528H Bg/hE
(President (Shanghai) Private Shanghai, PRC. USD950,000 Wholesale of pre-packaged
Label Marketing & Trading 28 June 2011 food and dairy products/
Co., Ltd.") PRC
MME—rEBRAF FREM 40,000,000% T 100% 100%  AEREEHRE
2011465218 LA/ HE
(Hangzhou President Hangzhou, PRC. USD40,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.”) 21 June 2011 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
BNF—EEXBRAF R 33,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  EEREEHH/HE
201149A28
(Xuzhou President Enterprises Xuzhou, PRC. UUSD33,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.%) 2 September 2011 beverages/PRC
H-HE(RL)BRAA REEL 10,000,000 7T 100% 100% ERERRNE /TE
201243 A 28H
(President (Kunshan) Trading Kunshan, PRC. USD10,000,000 Wholesale of pre-packaged
Co., Ltd.") 28 March 2012 food products/PRC
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AMRIER
ARAER HHRAH ERTRMRRE Frisi g TEEY/BEBE
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2016 2015
AES—tEERAA R 30,000,000% 7T 100% 100% EERBERE HE
201243A9AH
(Henan President Enterprises Henan ,PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.%) 9 March 2012 beverages/PRC
BERG—CEBRKBRAT REZR 1,700,000% 70 100% 100%  EEERMRIAEEM
2012458308 iyl
(Wuyuan President Enterprises Wuyuan, PRC. USD1,700,000 Wholesale of pre-packaged
Mineral Water Co., Ltd.") 30 May 2012 food and dairy products/
PRC
REG—CEERRA R 50,000,0005 & 100% 100%  HEREERH
201246768 RAER/HE
(Shaanxi President Shaanxi, PRC. USD50,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*) 6 July 2012 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
I&HER—EEERAR HERER 30,000,000% T 100% 100%  HEREEHRH
2012911 A58 R
(Jiangsu President Enterprises Nanjing, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.") 5 November 2012 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
AWK (FH)BRK REEM AR #135,000,0007C 100% 100%  EERESK/HE
BRAA 2013%3A158
(Changbaishan Mountain Jilin ,PRC. RMB135,000,000 Manufacturing mineral
President Enterprises (Jilin) 15 March 2013 water/PRC
Mineral Water Co., Ltd. *)
G-rE(RILEXRE HREELL AR #60,000,0007C 100% 100%  BiE/TE
BRAA 201354 A9R
(President Enterprises (Kunshan) Real - Kunshan ,PRC. RMB60,000,000 Real estate/PRC
Estate Development Co., Ltd.") 9 April 2013
EEH—CEGRAF HRER 16,000,000 7T 100% 100%  EEREERH/HE
201354 4228
(Ningxia President Enterprises Yinchuan, PRC. USD16,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.%) 22 April 2013 beverages/PRC
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EMALEAR
NRAB B KB BRITRBERE FrisiE TEEYBEBY
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2016 2015
SEFE—EERAR BT AN 30,000,000 7T 100% 100% HEREEHH
2013F559R RHER,/ HE
(Uni-President Enterprises Hohhot, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Inner Mongolia) Co., Ltd.") 9 May 2013 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
ERGE—CERHRRBRAR R R 49,000,000 1. 100% 100%  FEREEHRH
2013467430 LA/ HE
(Beijing President Enterprises Beijing, PRC. USD49,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Drink & Food Co., Ltd.") 3 June 2013 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
WAES—EEARAA REIEH 30,000,000 7T 100% 100% EERBERR/PE
20135950
(Shanxi President Enterprises Jinzhong, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.") 5 September 2013 beverages/PRC
B EERAR HE g 40,000,000% 7T 100% 100% ERERRIE/F
20015107148
(Uni-President Enterprises Shanghai, PRC. USD40,000,000 Wholesale of pre-packaged
(Shanghai) Co.,Ltd *) 14 QOctober 2001 food products/PRC
HEES-CEEMERNE BT B B 19,500,000 7T 100% 100%  AEREEHH/HE
BRAA 2013F11A18
(Uni-President Enterprise Hutubi, PRC. USD19,500,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Hutubi) Tomato Products 1 November 2013 beverages/PRC
Technology Co., Ltd.”)
Co.,Ltd.)
FRE-CERHRRBRAR HE g 31,000,000 1. 100% 100%  AEREEHH
2014455150 R/ HE
(Uni-President Enterprises (Shanghai) ~ Shanghai, PRC. USD31,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Drink&Food Co.,Ltd.") 15 May 2014 beverages and instant
noodles/PRC
H-m8 (L) BRAA R L AR 100% 100% BRERMHE /HE
200449A23H 96,000,0007T
(Uni-President Trading Hubei, PRC. RMB96,000,000 Wholesale of pre-packaged
(Hubei) Co.,Ltd.") 23 September 2004 food products/PRC
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AMRIER
ARAER B R A ERTRMRRE Frisi g TEEY/BEBE
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2016 2015
REG—EERATA REXE 12,000,000 7T 100% 100% EERBERR/FEH
201448H15H
(Uni-President Enterprises Tianjin, PRC. USD12,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Tiandin) Co.,Ltd") 15 August 2014 beverages/PRC
WER—CEERDA HEME 6,000,000% 7 100% - EEREEHRE/HE
2015638108
(Uni-President Enterprises Hunan, PRC. USD6,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Hunan) Co.,Ltd") 10 March 2015 beverages/PRC
BEGMAMIEBRAA REES AR 100% - EEREEHH/HE
200956 A9H 100,000,0007C
(Yantai Tongli Beverage Industries Yantai, PRC. RMB 100,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd") 09 June 2009 beverages/PRC
S-0E (B R HRERL 1,200,000% 70 100% - EEREEARH/TE
BRAA 19955124278

(Yantai Tongli Beverage
Industries Co., Ltd")

Kunshan, PRC.
27 December 1995

PRIEMRTE  5E2RELHHERT
ERERECER -RNASESEMK
YZ-FEMBRANERREZARE

(E/NEI

. RNEABDARBEEBRENGHX

£TREEGE -

USD 1,200,000

Manufacturing and sale of
seasoning/PRC

All subsidiaries located in the PRC, Taiwan and Hong Kong

are limited liability entities. One subsidiary incorporated in the

Cayman Islands is an exempted company with limited liability.

* The English name represents the best effort by management of

the Company in translating the Chinese name.
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